
 

Website: https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees       
Live Streaming: https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride  

Regular Meeting of the 

Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority 
 

Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.  
and 3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.  

Utah Transit Authority Headquarters  
669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 

Golden Spike Conference Rooms 
 

1. Call to Order & Opening Remarks Chair Carlton Christensen 
   
2. Pledge of Allegiance Chair Carlton Christensen 
   
3. Safety First Minute Lamount Worthy 

   

4. Public Comment Period Bob Biles 

   

5. Approval of March 13, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes Chair Carlton Christensen 

   
6. Agency Report Steve Meyer 
   
7. Financial Report – February 2019 Bob Biles 
   
8. R2019-03-02 Modifying the Authority’s Organizational 

Structure 
Chair Carlton Christensen 

   
9. R2019-03-03 Leasing Reimbursement Bob Biles 
   
10. Contracts, Disbursements, Change Orders & Pre-

procurement 
 

 a. Disbursement: Siemens Bob Biles 
 b. Pre-procurement: Bridge Inspections Steve Meyer 
    
11. Discussion Items  
 a. Government Relations and Legislative Update Matt Sibul 
    
12. Closed Session  Chair Carlton Christensen 
 a. Strategy session to discuss pending or reasonably 

imminent litigation. 
 

   
 RECESS  
   
 RECONVENE AT 3:00 P.M. FOLLOWING ADVISORY BOARD MEETING 

https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride


 

Website: https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees       
Live Streaming: https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   
13. R2019-03-04 Approving Ogden Central, Midvale TRAX, and 

West Jordan City Center Station Area Plans 
Paul Drake 

   
14. Discussion Items  
 a. TOD Analysis Tool Ranking of Station Area Plans Paul Drake 
    
15. Other Business Chair Carlton Christensen 
 a. Next meeting: March 27, 2019 at 9:00 a.m.  
    
16. Adjourn Chair Carlton Christensen 
   

Public Comment: Members of the public are invited to provide comment during the public comment period. 
Comment may be provided in person or online through www.rideuta.com. In order to be considerate of time and 
the agenda, comments are limited to 2 minutes per individual or 5 minutes for a designated spokesperson 
representing a group. Comments may also be sent via e-mail to boardoftrustees@rideuta.com.   
 
Special Accommodation: Information related to this meeting is available in alternate format upon request by 
contacting calldredge@rideuta.com or (801) 287-3536. Request for accommodations should be made at least 
two business days in advance of the scheduled meeting. 

https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride
http://www.rideuta.com/
mailto:boardoftrustees@rideuta.com
mailto:calldredge@rideuta.com


In case of fire, exit the building 
before tweeting about it!

SMSM

SAFETY & SECURITYSAFETY & SECURITY
March 2019

SM



 

 

 

Board Members Present: 

Carlton Christensen, Chair  

Beth Holbrook 

Kent Millington 

 

Board Members Excused/Not in Attendance:  

 

Also attending were members of UTA staff, as well as interested citizens. 

 

 

Welcome and Call to Order. Chair Christensen welcomed attendees and called the meeting to 

order at 9:10 a.m. with three board members present. Following Chair Christensen’s opening 

remarks, the board and meeting attendees recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Safety Minute. Chair Christensen yielded the floor to Sheldon Shaw, UTA Manager of Safety, for 

a brief safety message. 

 

Public Comment Period. Public comment was given by George Chapman via online submission. 

In his comment, which was read for the record, Mr. Chapman recommended sponsoring free 

fare days on Saturdays. 

 

Approval of March 6, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes. A motion to approve the March 6, 2019 

Board Meeting Minutes was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by Trustee Holbrook. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

Agency Report. Steve Meyer, UTA Interim Executive Director, recognized UTA’s facilities and 

maintenance of way crews for their efficient management of snow days.  

 

Minutes of the Meeting 

of the 

Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority (UTA) 

held at UTA FrontLines Headquarters located at 

669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 

March 13, 2019 

, 

 



 

Financial Report – January 2019. Bob Biles, UTA Chief Financial Officer, delivered the January 

2019 financial report. Discussion ensued. Questions on diesel fuel price forecasts, wage and 

benefits accruals, expense balances over the year, impacts to January budgets from capital 

rollovers, the manner in which time and materials are charged to capital projects, the level at 

which time is charged to projects, the composition of “Other Revenue” on the financial 

statements, and sources of property lease revenue were posed by the board and answered by 

Mr. Biles.  

Pre-Procurement – Microtransit Pilot RFP. Mr. Meyer spoke about potential funding sources 

for the microtransit pilot and introduced Jaron Robertson, UTA Program Manager for 

innovative Mobility Solutions. Mr. Robertson then delivered a presentation on a proposed 12-

month microtransit pilot program to be implemented in the fall of 2019 in the southwest end of 

the Salt Lake Valley. Discussion ensued. Questions on how the pilot might benefit the 

community, pricing for the service, how contingency funds for the project will be managed, 

projected launch dates, how realistic the proposed implementation timeframe is, when the 

request for pricing (RFP) will be issued, how long the RFP review will take, and who is 

responsible for marketing the service (e.g., UTA or the vendor) were posed by the board and 

answered by Mr. Robertson. Trustee Millington requested monthly updates to the board on the 

pilot. Chair Christensen recommended taking the appropriate amount of time needed to ensure 

the pilot has the best chance for success. 

Discussion Items. 

Government Relations and Legislative Priorities Update. Matt Sibul, UTA Government 

Relations Director, provided a summary of potential legislation affecting UTA. A 

question on the timing of the appropriations bill was posed by the board and answered 

by Mr. Sibul. 

Future of FrontRunner (Part 2 of 3).  Mr. Meyer recapped the presentation on the 

Wasatch Central Corridor initiative from the March 6, 2019 board meeting and then 

provided an overview of the study assessing options for the future of FrontRunner. 

Kerry Doane, UTA Manager of Long Range Strategic Planning, and Bruce Cardon, UTA 

Commuter Rail General Manager, delivered a presentation on the Future of 

FrontRunner Study’s scope of work, scenarios, service characteristics by scenario, 

scenario schematics, capital cost estimates, travel model results, reliability projections, 

and travel time projections. They also presented an informal scenario including higher 

train speeds and full double track. Discussion ensued. Questions on the scope of the 

Wasatch Central Corridor Study, 2030 low investment double track scenario, impact of 

consist size on train acceleration, location of difficult and/or infeasible double track 

sections, involvement of the Utah Department of Transportation in conversations on 



 

double tracking, right of way acquisition needs on track flyovers, location of Salt Lake 

siding, operating costs associated with electrification, operations transition from diesel 

to electric, components included in the travel model, assumptions for running shuttles 

in Pleasant View, and system reliability were posed by the board and answered by staff. 

Chair Christensen suggested a study to assess funding gaps in implementation. Mr. 

Meyer mentioned that this study addresses the transit aspect of future travel demand, 

but is not included in UTA’s future funding scenarios. 

Chair Christensen called a brief recess at 10:57 a.m. 

The meeting resumed at 11:04 a.m. 

August Change Day Update. Andrea Packer, UTA Communications Director, and Eric 

Callison, UTA Manager of Service Planning, gave a presentation on proposed service 

changes to be implemented in August. The presentation reviewed bus route changes 

necessary to effect some of the service purchased by Salt Lake City to support the city’s 

transit master plan, as well as proposed changes to east-west connections, west side 

connections, east side connections, service to the Avenues and the State Capitol, service 

to the Tooele Valley, service to the airport and International Center, service to Ogden 

and Weber counties, service to north Utah County, and the microtransit pilot. Questions 

on peak hours for Tooele Valley residents, public hearings, the possibility of attending 

and discussing proposed changes at the stakeholder meetings, and accounting for 

additional miles and associated costs were posed by the board and answered by staff.  

The public outreach plan for change day was reviewed. It was noted that opportunities 

for public feedback on the changes include six public open houses as well as the option 

to provide online comment. Communicating the changes to the public will be 

accomplished using multiple platforms, including posting the information on the home 

page of UTA’s website, distributing collaterals directly to the public, and providing 

information to employees.  

Speaking on future system adjustments, Chair Christensen suggested reviewing the 

feasibility of a potential circulator in Midvale when the city opens its next major 

development. 

Other Business.  

 

Next Meeting. The next meeting of the board will be on Wednesday, March 20, 2019 at 

9:00 a.m. 

 

  



 

Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 11:36 a.m. by motion. 

 
Transcribed by Cathie Griffiths 
Executive Assistant to the Board Chair 
Utah Transit Authority 
cgriffiths@rideuta.com  
801.237.1945 
 
This document is not intended to serve as a full transcript as additional discussion may have 
taken place; please refer to the meeting materials, audio, or video located at 
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/sitemap/notice/520767.html for entire content. 
 
This document along with the digital recording constitute the official minutes of this meeting. 

mailto:cgriffiths@rideuta.com
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/sitemap/notice/520767.html


UTA Board Dashboard: 
February 2019

Financial Metrics Feb Actual Feb Budget

Fav/ 

(Unfav) % YTD Actual YTD Budget

Fav/ 

(Unfav) %

Sales Tax (December '18 mm $) 27.7$       29.4$     (1.65)$    -5.6% 282.9$             278.9$                4.03$        1.4%

Fare Revenue (mm) 3.3$         4.5$       (1.21)$    -26.7% 8.0$                  9.0$                     (0.97)$      -10.8%

Operating Exp (mm) 22.1$       24.0$     1.92$     8.0% 45.9$               49.0$                  3.06$        6.2%

Subs idy Per Rider (SPR) 5.31$       5.40$     0.09$     1.7% 5.21$               5.40$                  0.19$        3.5%

UTA Diesel Price ($/gal) 1.85$       2.50$     0.65$     25.9% 1.82$               2.50$                  0.68$        27.1%

Operating Metrics Feb Actual Feb-18 F/ (UF) % YTD Actual YTD 2018 F/ (UF) %

Ridership (mm) 3.53         3.46       0.1           2.0% 7.28                  7.17                     0.1              1.7%

Alternative Fuels CNG Price (Diesel Gal Equiv) 1.78$  

.

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

Ja
n-

12

A
p

r-
12

Ju
l-

12

O
ct

-1
2

Ja
n-

13

A
p

r-
13

Ju
l-

13

O
ct

-1
3

Ja
n-

14

A
p

r-
14

Ju
l-

14

O
ct

-1
4

Ja
n-

15

A
p

r-
15

Ju
l-

15

O
ct

-1
5

Ja
n-

16

A
p

r-
16

Ju
l-

16

O
ct

-1
6

Ja
n-

17

A
p

r-
17

Ju
l-

17

O
ct

-1
7

Ja
n-

18

A
p

r-
18

Ju
l-

18

O
ct

-1
8

Percent
UTA Sales Tax Growth

(2012 to 2018)

Long Term Fcst 12 Month Chg 6 Month Chg



Utah Transit Authority 
Financial Statement 

(Unaudited) 
 
 
 
 

 
February 28, 2019 

 

 

 
 



KEY ITEM REPORT EXHIBIT 1-1
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

1 Sales Tax
2 Passenger Revenue
3 Other Revenue
4 Total Revenue

5 Net Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income (Loss)

6 Debt Service
7 Other Non-Operating Expenses
8 Sale of Assets

9 Contribution to Capital Reserves

10 Bond Debt Service - Series 2016 UT COUNTY
11 Amortization
12 Depreciation
13 Total Non-cash Items

GOALS

RIDERSHIP

14

OPERATING SUBSIDY PER RIDER - 
IPR with Fuel Adjustment

16 Net Operating Expense Net Operating Expense
17 Less: Passenger Revenue - Less: Passenger Revenue -
18 Subtotal Subtotal
19 Divided by: Ridership ÷ Divided by: Ridership ÷
20 Subsidy per Rider Investment per Rider

2019 %
FAVORABLE

(UNFAVORABLE)

286,854                1,005,830              

2019 VARIANCE
FAVORABLE

(UNFAVORABLE)

-$                      
(972,461)               

0%

-                         

(12,618,529)$        

ACTUAL
YTD

13,460,834            
64,121,015            

(48,994,365)          

15,126,650            

26,739,348            

YTD
BUDGET

41,671,036$         
8,989,145              

(896,094)              

(11,365,650)$       

896,094                

1,252,879$           

(2,013,300)            
(2,985,761)            

69,930                  

3,055,691             

0                            

(1,041,445)           

26,739,348           
718,976                

332,551                

41,671,036$        
8,016,684             

11,447,534           

15,196,580           

61,135,254           

(45,938,674)         

-11%
-15%
-5%

6%

0%

0%
29%

24,001,717           

February 2018

3,463,99044,200,955
2018 Actual February 2019

3,534,464

23,292,823$        

7,284,434            7,284,434                  
5.21$                   4.98$                         

45,938,674$        45,938,674$              
(8,016,684)           (8,016,684)                 
37,921,990          36,269,039                

119,279
2018 YTD Difference

SPR

2019 YTD

7,284,434 7,165,155
Difference

70,474



SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA EXHIBIT 1-2
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

BALANCE SHEET

2/28/2019 2/28/2018
CURRENT ASSETS

1 Cash 10,920,976$      19,653,877$      
2 Investments (Unrestricted) 94,536,645        49,550,795        
3 Investments (Restricted) 136,437,714      126,962,536      
4 Receivables 58,186,859        47,643,339        
5 Receivables - Federal Grants 10,710,534        18,881,110        
6 Inventories 35,603,220        33,740,167        
7 Prepaid Expenses 1,481,170          2,440,206          
8 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 347,877,118$    298,872,030$    

9 Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) 3,041,338,053   3,046,703,628   
10 Other Assets 140,350,881      133,996,229      
11 TOTAL ASSETS 3,529,566,052$ 3,479,571,887$ 

12 Current Liabilities 23,729,625$      28,146,317$      
13 Other Liabilities 277,870,721      248,468,591      
14 Net Pension Liability 100,876,554      101,705,388      
15 Outstanding Debt 2,205,836,047   2,138,293,575   
16 Equity 921,253,105      962,958,016      
17 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,529,566,052$ 3,479,571,887$ 

RESTRICTED AND DESIGNATED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RECONCILIATION

RESTRICTED RESERVES
18 Debt Service Reserves 36,547,028        36,940,962        
19 2018 Bond Proceeds 46,024,070        
20 Debt Service Interest Payable 26,624,031        21,509,043        
21 Risk Contingency 7,753,558          7,556,701          
22 Box Elder County ROW (sales tax) 7,040,441          6,359,998          
23 Mountain Accord 149,754             
24 Joint Insurance Trust 4,153,848          3,894,919          
25 UT County Bond Proceeds 920                    19,155,777        
26 SL County Escrow (Streetcar Double Track) 2,003,839          
27 Amounts held in escrow 6,289,979          31,395,382        
28 TOTAL RESTRICTED RESERVES 136,437,714$    126,962,536$    

DESIGNATED OPERATING RESERVES
29 Service Stabilization Reserve 15,272,000$      13,916,046$      
30 Fuel Reserve 1,915,000          1,915,000          
31 Parts Reserve 3,000,000          3,000,000          
32 Operating Reserve 28,507,000        25,976,619        
33 Early Debt Retirement Reserve 47,384,438        17,699,386        
34 TOTAL DESIGNATED OPERATING RESERVES 96,078,438$      62,507,051$      

35 TOTAL RESTRICTED AND DESIGNATED CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 232,516,152$    189,469,587$    



SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA EXHIBIT 1-3
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

REVENUE & EXPENSES
ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD YTD
Feb-19 Feb-18 2019 2018

REVENUE
1 Passenger Revenue 3,312,426$   4,549,613$       8,016,684$    8,615,630$    
2 Advertising Revenue 204,167        200,000            408,335         400,000         
3 Investment Revenue 478,109        143,163            778,464         687,899         
4 Sales Tax 21,040,882   19,126,969       41,671,036    38,712,835    
5 Other Revenue 172,077        94,021              281,828         292,554         
6 Fed Operations/Preventative Maint. 4,825,791     3,984,813         9,978,907      10,330,551    
7 TOTAL REVENUE 30,033,452$ 28,098,579$     61,135,254$  59,039,469$  

OPERATING EXPENSE
8 Bus Service 8,187,410$   6,780,057$       17,004,775$  14,945,357$  
9 Commuter Rail 1,818,652     1,070,989         3,788,869      3,485,774      

10 Light Rail 3,172,585     2,933,318         6,371,541      6,183,512      
11 Maintenance of Way 1,349,060     1,388,487         2,878,933      2,570,208      
12 Paratransit Service 1,655,463     1,706,891         3,508,207      3,350,670      
13 RideShare/Van Pool Services 242,590        131,948            493,519         324,897         
14 Operations Support 3,603,235     3,238,212         7,626,551      7,184,723      
15 Administration 2,040,488     2,230,213         4,266,279      4,528,670      
16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 22,069,483$ 19,480,115$     45,938,674$  42,573,811$  

17 NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 7,963,969$   8,618,464$       15,196,580$  16,465,658$  

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE (REVENUE)
18 Planning & Development 343,170$      327,234$          718,976$       705,891$       
19 Bond Principal 1,222,902     1,533,333         9,586,635      11,816,666    
20 Bond Interest 7,964,237     7,676,713         15,928,474    15,232,653    
21 Bond Cost of Issuance/Fees (7,500)           1,500             -                     
22 Lease Cost 562,592        514,896            1,222,739      1,029,916      
23 Sale of Assets (3,285)           (2,994,412)        (896,094)        (3,912,340)     
24 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE 10,082,116$ 7,057,764$       26,562,230$  24,872,786$  

25 CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVES (2,118,147)$  1,560,700$       (11,365,650)$ (8,407,128)$   

OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH)
26 Bond Debt Service - Series 2007A CAB 16,667$            33,334$         
27 Bond Debt Service - Series 2016 UT COUNTY 166,275$      332,551$       
28 Bond Premium/Discount Amortization (1,270,452)    (826,518)           (2,540,904)     (1,766,912)     
29 Bond Refunding Cost Amortization 682,153        683,649            1,364,307      1,367,298      
30 Future Revenue Cost Amortization 67,576          67,576              135,152         135,152         
31 Depreciation 12,290,941   11,372,769       24,001,717    23,311,432    
32 NET OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH) 11,936,493$ 11,314,143$     23,292,823$  23,080,304$  



  ACTUAL REPORT EXHIBIT 1-4
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

CURRENT MONTH
VARIANCE %

ACTUAL BUDGET FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
Feb-18 Feb-18 (UNFAVORABLE) (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE
1 Passenger Revenue 3,312,426$     4,517,787$     (1,205,361)$      -27%
2 Advertising Revenue 204,167          204,167          -                        0%
3 Investment Revenue 478,109          715,167          (237,058)           -33%
4 Sales Tax 21,040,882     21,040,882     -                        0%
5 Other Revenue 172,077          295,417          (123,340)           -42%
6 Fed Operations/Preventative Maint. 4,825,791       5,515,667       (689,876)           -13%
7 TOTAL REVENUE 30,033,452$   32,289,086$   (2,255,634)$      -7%

OPERATING EXPENSE
8 Bus Service 8,187,410$     8,397,333$     209,923$           2%
9 Commuter Rail 1,818,652       1,917,213       98,561               5%

10 Light Rail 3,172,585       2,990,132       (182,453)           -6%
11 Maintenance of Way 1,349,060       1,451,727       102,667             7%
12 Paratransit Service 1,655,463       1,910,302       254,839             13%
13 RideShare/Van Pool Services 242,590          268,420          25,830               10%
14 Operations Support 3,603,235       3,991,579       388,344             10%
15 Administration 2,040,488       3,062,543       1,022,055          33%
16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 22,069,483$   23,989,249$   1,919,766$        8%

17 NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 7,963,969$     8,299,837$     (335,868)$         -4%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE (REVENUE)
18 Planning & Development 343,170$        502,915$        159,745$           32%
19 Bond Principal 1,222,902       1,222,902       -                        0%
20 Bond Interest 7,964,237       7,964,237       0                        0%
21 Bond Cost of Issuance/Fees (7,500)            (7,500)            -                        0%
22 Lease Cost 562,592          562,592          -                        0%
23 Sale of Assets (3,285)            -                 3,285                 
24 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE 10,082,116$   10,245,146$   163,030$           2%

25 CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVES (2,118,147)$   (1,945,310)$   (172,837)$         -9%

OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH)
26 Bond Debt Service - Series 2007A CAB -$                   
27 Bond Debt Service - Series 2016 UT COUNTY 166,275          
28 Bond Premium/Discount Amortization (1,270,452)     
29 Bond Refunding Cost Amortization 682,153          
30 Future Revenue Cost Amortization 67,576            
31 Depreciation 12,290,941     
32 NET OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH) 11,936,493$   



BUDGET TO ACTUAL REPORT EXHIBIT 1-5
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

YEAR TO DATE
VARIANCE %

ACTUAL BUDGET FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
Feb-19 Feb-19 (UNFAVORABLE) (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE
1 Passenger Revenue 8,016,684$        8,989,145$        (972,461)$         -11%
2 Advertising Revenue 408,335             408,334             1                       0%
3 Investment Revenue 778,464             1,430,333          (651,869)           -46%
4 Sales Tax 41,671,036        41,671,036        -                        0%
5 Other Revenue 281,828             590,833             (309,005)           -52%
6 Fed Operations/Preventative Maint. 9,978,907          11,031,333        (1,052,426)        -10%
7 TOTAL REVENUE 61,135,254$      64,121,015$      (2,985,761)$      -5%

OPERATING EXPENSE
8 Bus Service 17,004,775$      17,136,235$      131,460$          1%
9 Commuter Rail 3,788,869          3,982,128          193,259            5%

10 Light Rail 6,371,541          5,980,264          (391,277)           -7%
11 Maintenance of Way 2,878,933          2,951,010          72,077              2%
12 Paratransit Service 3,508,207          3,807,482          299,275            8%
13 RideShare/Van Pool Services 493,519             536,840             43,321              8%
14 Operations Support 7,626,551          8,036,668          410,117            5%
15 Administration 4,266,279          6,563,738          2,297,459         35%
16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 45,938,674$      48,994,365$      3,055,691$       6%

17 NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 15,196,580$      15,126,650$      69,930$            0%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE (REVENUE)
18 Planning & Development 718,976$           1,005,830$        286,854$          29%
19 Bond Principal 9,586,635          9,586,635          -                    0%
20 Bond Interest 15,928,474        15,928,474        0                       0%
21 Bond Cost of Issuance/Fees 1,500                 1,500                 -                    0%
22 Lease Cost 1,222,739          1,222,739          -                    0%
23 Sale of Assets (896,094)           -                    896,094            
24 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE 26,562,230$      27,745,178$      1,182,948$       4%

25 CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVES (11,365,650)$    (12,618,529)$    1,252,879$       10%

OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH)
26 Bond Debt Service - Series 2007A CAB -$                      
27 Bond Debt Service - Series 2016 UT COUNTY 332,551$           
28 Bond Premium/Discount Amortization (2,540,904)        
29 Bond Refunding Cost Amortization 1,364,307          
30 Future Revenue Cost Amortization 135,152             
31 Depreciation 24,001,717        
32 NET OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH) 23,292,823$      



CAPITAL PROJECTS EXHIBIT 1-6
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

2019 ANNUAL
ACTUAL BUDGET PERCENT

EXPENSES
1 REVENUE AND NON-REVENUE VEHICLES 68,483$              10,290,000$       0.7%
2 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 255,424 11,120,532 2.3%
3 FACILITIES, MAINTENANCE & ADMIN. EQUIP. 49,863 2,547,169 2.0%
4 CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,657,732 69,212,295 2.4%
5 PROVO OREM BRT 426,823              2,500,000 17.1%
6 AIRPORT STATION RELOCATION 143,046 2,650,000 5.4%
7 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR 1,558,831 28,046,172 5.6%
8 TIGER 23,100                15,012,832 0.2%
9 TOTAL 4,183,302$         141,379,000$     3.0%

REVENUES
10     GRANT 311,074$            50,031,000$       0.6%
11     PROVO-OREM TRIP -                          2,500,000           0.0%
12     LEASES (PAID TO DATE) -                          10,090,000         0.0%
13     BONDS 1,001,255           16,520,000         6.1%
14     LOCAL PARTNERS 34,706                15,686,000         0.2%
15     UTA FUNDING 2,836,267           46,552,000         6.1%
16 TOTAL 4,183,302$         141,379,000$     3.0%



FAREBOX RECOVERY & SPR EXHIBIT 1-7
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

BY SERVICE

Feb-19 Feb-18 2019 2018
UTA

Fully Allocated Costs 22,069,483         19,480,115         45,938,674         42,573,811         
Passenger Farebox Revenue 3,312,426           4,549,613           8,016,684           8,615,630           
Passengers 3,534,464           3,463,990           7,284,434           7,165,155           
Farebox Recovery Ratio 15.0% 23.4% 17.5% 20.2%
Actual Subsidy per Rider $5.31 $4.31 $5.21 $4.74

BUS SERVICE
Fully Allocated Costs 10,646,264         9,417,336           22,193,968         20,052,521         
Passenger Farebox Revenue 1,405,067           1,869,117           3,470,470           3,583,185           
Passengers 1,638,284           1,524,935           3,406,778           3,161,040           
Farebox Recovery Ratio 13.2% 19.8% 15.6% 17.9%
Actual Subsidy per Rider $5.64 $4.95 $5.50 $5.21

LIGHT RAIL SERVICE
Fully Allocated Costs 6,202,071           5,771,819           12,780,760         12,243,000         
Passenger Farebox Revenue 1,037,773           1,607,015           2,538,169           2,967,691           
Passengers 1,329,800           1,388,800           2,712,805           2,869,198           
Farebox Recovery Ratio 16.7% 27.8% 19.9% 24.2%
Actual Subsidy per Rider $3.88 $3.00 $3.78 $3.23

COMMUTER RAIL SERVICE
Fully Allocated Costs 2,994,106           2,166,743           6,269,750           5,878,845           
Passenger Farebox Revenue 338,055              452,045              761,604              933,688              
Passengers 401,832              374,038              837,060              789,427              
Farebox Recovery Ratio 11.3% 20.9% 12.1% 15.9%
Actual Subsidy per Rider $6.61 $4.58 $6.58 $6.26

PARATRANSIT
Fully Allocated Costs 1,808,300           1,831,976           3,828,979           3,667,757           
Passenger Farebox Revenue 191,386              306,128              556,762              479,383              
Passengers 64,764                66,873                138,408              138,934              
Farebox Recovery Ratio 10.6% 16.7% 14.5% 13.1%
Actual Subsidy per Rider $24.97 $22.82 $23.64 $22.95

RIDESHARE
Fully Allocated Costs 418,743              292,241              865,217              731,688              
Passenger Farebox Revenue 340,145              315,308              689,678              651,682              
Passengers 99,785                109,344              189,383              206,556              
Farebox Recovery Ratio 81.2% 107.9% 79.7% 89.1%
Actual Subsidy per Rider $0.79 ($0.21) $0.93 $0.39

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE



FAREBOX RECOVERY & SPR EXHIBIT 1-8
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

BY TYPE

Feb-19 Feb-18 2019 2018

FULLY ALLOCATED COSTS
Bus Service $10,646,264 $9,417,336 $22,193,968 $20,052,521
Light Rail Service $6,202,071 $5,771,819 $12,780,760 $12,243,000
Commuter Rail Service $2,994,106 $2,166,743 $6,269,750 $5,878,845
Paratransit $1,808,300 $1,831,976 $3,828,979 $3,667,757
Rideshare $418,743 $292,241 $865,217 $731,688
UTA $22,069,483 $19,480,115 $45,938,674 $42,573,811

PASSENGER FAREBOX REVENUE
Bus Service $1,405,067 $1,869,117 $3,470,470 $3,583,185
Light Rail Service $1,037,773 $1,607,015 $2,538,169 $2,967,691
Commuter Rail Service $338,055 $452,045 $761,604 $933,688
Paratransit $191,386 $306,128 $556,762 $479,383
Rideshare $340,145 $315,308 $689,678 $651,682
UTA $3,312,426 $4,549,613 $8,016,684 $8,615,630

PASSENGERS
Bus Service 1,638,284           1,524,935           3,406,778           3,161,040           
Light Rail Service 1,329,800           1,388,800           2,712,805           2,869,198           
Commuter Rail Service 401,832              374,038              837,060              789,427              
Paratransit 64,764                66,873                138,408              138,934              
Rideshare 99,785                109,344              189,383              206,556              
UTA 3,534,464           3,463,990           7,284,434           7,165,155           

FAREBOX RECOVERY RATIO
Bus Service 13.2% 19.8% 15.6% 17.9%
Light Rail Service 16.7% 27.8% 19.9% 24.2%
Commuter Rail Service 11.3% 20.9% 12.1% 15.9%
Paratransit 10.6% 16.7% 14.5% 13.1%
Rideshare 81.2% 107.9% 79.7% 89.1%
UTA 15.0% 23.4% 17.5% 20.2%

ACTUAL SUBSIDY PER RIDER
Bus Service $5.64 $4.95 $5.50 $5.21
Light Rail Service $3.88 $3.00 $3.78 $3.23
Commuter Rail Service $6.61 $4.58 $6.58 $6.26
Paratransit $24.97 $22.82 $23.64 $22.95
Rideshare $0.79 ($0.21) $0.93 $0.39
UTA $5.31 $4.31 $5.21 $4.74

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE



SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE EXHIBIT 1-9
(UNAUDITED)
As of February 28, 2019

Classification Total Current 31-60 Days 61-90 Days 90-120 Days Over 120 Days
1 Federal Government ¹ 10,710,534$   10,710,534$   
2 Local Contributions ² 44,037,533     44,037,533     
3 Warranty Recovery 1,174,755       1,174,755       
4 Product Sales and Development 1,488,924       1,287,939       146,518          35,576            7,044              11,847            
5 Pass Sales 420,031          336,274          (17,806)          10,824            3,110              87,629            
6 Property Management 53,079            25,326            8,400              -                 (1)                   19,354            
7 Vanpool/Rideshare 54,881            8,353              7,685              19,513            6,092              13,238            
8 Capital Development Agreements 9,823,424       438,137          9,321,320       63,608            -                 359                 
9 Mobility Management 6,700              5,000              1,700              

10 Paratransit 11,250            11,250            
11 Other ³ 1,116,282       1,116,282       
12 Total 68,897,393$   59,151,383$   9,466,117$     129,521$        16,245$          134,127$        

Percentage Due by Aging
13 Federal Government ¹ 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
14 Local Contributions ² 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
15 Warranty Recovery 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
16 Product Sales and Development 86.5% 9.8% 2.4% 0.5% 0.8%
17 Pass Sales 80.1% -4.2% 2.6% 0.7% 20.9%
18 Property Management 47.7% 15.8% 0.0% 0.0% 36.5%
19 Vanpool/Rideshare 15.2% 14.0% 35.6% 11.1% 24.1%
20 Capital Development Agreements 4.5% 94.9% 0.6% 0.0% 0.0%
21 Mobility Management 74.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 25.4%
22 Paratransit 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
23 Other 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
24 Total 85.9% 13.7% 0.2% 0.0% 0.2%

¹ Federal preventive maintenance funds, federal RideShare funds, and federal interest subsidies for Build America Bonds
² Estimated sales tax to be distributed upon collection by the Utah State Tax Commission
³ Build American Bond Tax Credits, fuel tax credit



SUMMARY OF APPROVED DISBURSEMENTS OVER $200,000 EXHIBIT 1-10
FROM FEBRUARY 1, 2019 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2019
(UNAUDITED)

Contract # and Description Contract Date Vendor Check # Date Check Total



 

 1 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY MODIFYING THE AUTHORITY’S ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

 
2019-03-02 March 20, 2019 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a public transit district 
organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and exercise 
all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local Government Entities- 
Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act (“Act”);  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) established an organizational 
structure to provide for the administration of the Authority on January 9, 2019 in 
Resolution 2019-01-01; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board desires to modify the organizational structure established 

by Resolution 2019-01-01 to provide for the effective and efficient administration of the 
Authority.   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Utah 
Transit Authority: 
 

1. That the Board hereby adopts the organizational structure set forth in 
Exhibit A to provide for the administration of the Authority. 
 

2. That Resolution 2019-01-01 is hereby superseded.  
 

2. That the Board formally ratifies actions taken by the Authority, including 
those taken by the Interim Executive Director and staff, that are necessary 
or appropriate to give effect to this Resolution. 

3. That the corporate seal be attached hereto. 
 
 
Approved and adopted this 20th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 2 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
         (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 
 



 

 3 

Exhibit A 
 



UTA Board of 
Trustees

Government Relations 
Director

Chief Internal Auditor

Strategic Board Operations 
Director

Executive Director

Chief Operating 
Officer Chief Finance Officer

Chief 
Communications & 
Marketing Officer

Chief People Officer

Chief Service 
Development Officer

Safety & Security

UTA Organizational Structure

Information Technology

Compliance

Operations Analytics & 
Solutions

Legal Services
(Attorney General’s Office)

March 20, 2019



DECLARATION OF OFFICIAL INTENT OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY TO REIMBURSE ITSELF FOR THE CERTAIN CAPITAL 

EXPENDITURES THROUGH LEASE FINANCING; MAXIMUM 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF LEASE FINANCING; NATURE OF PROJECT 

COSTS 

 

R2019-03-03       March 20, 2019 

WHEREAS, the Utah Transit Authority (“UTA”) expects to incur significant 
costs for transit system improvements, including without limitation, revenue service 
vehicles, and all related improvements (collectively, the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, UTA has determined that it intends to finance the cost of the 
Project with the proceeds from one or more lease financings, the interest on which 
is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes (the “Leases”); 
and 

WHEREAS, no costs of the Project were paid more than 60 days prior to 
the date of this Official Intent, other than preliminary expenditures (not exceeding 
20% of the aggregate price of the Leases to be executed to finance the Project), 
provided that such preliminary expenditures shall not include cost of land 
acquisition or site preparation or other costs of construction or acquisition of the 
Project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority 
hereby declares the Official Intent of the Utah Transit Authority, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Declaration of Official Intent to Finance Capital Expenditures; 
Maximum Authorized Debt.  UTA hereby declares its intention and reasonable 
expectation to use proceeds from the lease financings to reimburse itself for 
expenditures for costs of the Project. UTA intends that the Leases are to be 
executed and the reimbursements are to be made by the later of 18-months after 
the payment of the costs or after the Project is placed in service, but in any event, 
no later than three years after the date the original expenditures was paid. UTA 
anticipates that the maximum principal amount of the Leases executed to finance 
the Project will not exceed $10,090,000. 

Section 2. Authorization.  The Secretary/Treasurer or Comptroller of 
UTA are each hereby authorized to execute reimbursements intents on behalf of 
UTA and all prior reimbursement intents previously executed by the 
Secretary/Treasurer or Comptroller of UTA are hereby ratified. 

Section 3. Nature of Project Costs.  The costs of the Project consist 
entirely of capital expenditures or costs of issuance of the Leases, and no cost of 
the Project to be reimbursed with the proceeds from the Leases is a cost of working 
capital. 



 
Section 4. No Replacement Proceeds.  UTA will not, at any time within 

one   year after any allocation of proceeds from the Leases to reimburse any 
expenditure, use the reimbursed funds to create a sinking fund for the Leases, or 
to otherwise replace the proceeds of any of the Leases. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Official Intent shall take effect 
immediately. 

  
 
Approved and adopted this 20th day of March, 2019. 
 

UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 

 
________________________________  
Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
(Corporate Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 



Agenda Item #:

Action Requested:

Criteria:

Check #: Contract Title: N/A

Project Manager: Contract Administrator: N/A

Impacted Areas: Included in budget?: Yes

Procurement method: Contractor: Siemens Mobility Inc.

Sole-Source Reason: Total Disbursement:  $               209,434.50 

Qty & Unit price:

Contract term (Months): N/A Contract options (Months): N/A

Contract start date: Contract end date:

$ Value of Next Lowest Bidder:

Attachments: N/A

Motion to approve disbursement

Disbursement over $200,000 not on an approved contract

Detailed Contract Description & Purpose

343924

Troy Bingham

Board Review and/or Approval Date: 3/20/2019

Light Rail Inventory

Attachment - Check Detail List

Contract routing sheet attached?

Supply Chain has implemented a forecasted inventory strategy for light rail parts that generates orders daily 

based on what maintenance staff has forecasted for the light rail fleet.  These orders generate purchase orders 

daily from $1 to $150,000 dollars based on lowest bidder responses to fulfill those orders.  As those orders 

arrive at UTA, they are submitted for payment to Accounts Payable and occasionally multiple payments to a 

single vendor add up to be over $200,000.   

This disbursement is compromised of 20 purchase orders and invoices that were generated by Siemens 

Mobility Inc. from November 2018 to January 2019.  The individual invoice charges range from $19.60 to 

$54,400.  More detailed invoice information is on the attached check detail list.

Lowest Bidder

Number of responding firms:

Detailed Description & Purpose:

N/A

Rev.061418



Siemens Mobility Disbursement Detail 

Invoice Number Purchase Order Invoice Due Date Part Description Payment Amount

5610154190 01110279 2/4/2019 3 Indictators, Buzzer Fault 2,199.00

5610154188 01108385 2/4/2019 45 Bridgeplate Heated Mats 13,950.00

5610153541 01110392 1/30/2019 10 Relays 1,110.00

5610153030 01111185 1/28/2019 25 Fittings, Quick Coupling 1,117.50

5610153548 01110143 1/30/2019 3 Cable Boxes 333.00

5610146519 01108416 2/4/2019 20 Nuts 1,482.00

5610154185 01110427 2/4/2019 10 Swivel Fittings 31.00

5610146518 01111360 2/4/2019 75 Conical Bumpers 1,515.00

5610153033 01109592 1/28/2019 110 Equalizers 3,905.00

5610154191 01110922 2/4/2019 30 Hinges 10,260.00

5610154189 01109252 2/4/2019 1 Plug Block and 100 Locking Levers 104.10

5610146517 01108499 2/4/2019 28 Layer Springs 15,680.00

5610153547 01106540 1/30/2019 5 Surge Arresters 5,235.00

5610154187 01110125 2/4/2019 3 Bus Bars 1,020.00

5610155407 01111185 2/13/2019 4 Washer Bottles 233.60

5610155405 01110143 2/13/2019 2 Sheet Corners 4,122.00

5610150164 01108385 2/13/2019 616 Bridgeplates 19,773.60

5610150163 01110392 2/13/2019 2 Brackets 2,108.00

5610154898 01110392 2/8/2019 3 Hinges 1,026.00

5610154897 01108100 2/8/2019 5 Support Bars 18,065.00

5610154896 01110435 2/8/2019 44 Train Keys 3,484.80

5610154895 01109995 2/8/2019 500 Washers 1,250.00

5610154892 01111184 2/8/2019 5 Couplers 438.00

5610154891 01111185 2/8/2019 2 Couplers 175.20

5610154890 01106653 2/8/2019 3 On-Delays 399.00

5610154879 01106741 2/8/2019 10 Adjusting Brackets 4,340.00

5610154877 01110126 2/8/2019 14 Clamps 3,332.00

5610154197 01109453 2/4/2019 4 Control Valves 580.00

5610154196 01107660 2/4/2019 2 Back Sheets  and 12 Rods 11,848.00

5610154195 01110392 2/4/2019 4 Rubber Gaskets 74.80

5610154194 01109592 2/4/2019 102 Assembly Arresters 2,866.20

5610154192 01109014 2/4/2019 17 Friction Disks 7,480.00

5610154878 01107045 2/8/2019 2 Floor Panels 1,700.00

5610153540 01107374 1/30/2019 5 Heaters, 10 Nuts, 1 Isolator, 1 Headlight 9,798.10

5610154893 01107374 2/8/2019 2 Lower Connectors 1,372.00

5610155406 01110819 2/13/2019 3 Clamps 2,607.00

5610151547 01109931 2/13/2019 1 Knob 19.60

5610154193 01106472 2/4/2019 8 Destination Signs 54,400.00

209,434.50



Board Review Date: 3/20/2019 Document Type:

Pre-Procurement

Action Requested:

Criteria:

Contract Title: Contract #: 18-02958BM

Project Manager: Contract Administrator: Brian Motes

Impacted Areas: Included in budget?: Yes

Procurement method: Contractor: TBD

Sole-Source Reason: Qty & Unit price:  5 Years @ 

Change Order Value: $0 

Total Contract Value: $1,050,000 

Contract term (Months): 36 Contract Start Date: 5/30/2019

Contract options (Months): 24 Contract End Date: 5/29/2024

TBD $ Value of Next Lowest Bidder:  TBD 

Attachments: N/A (Pre-Procurement)

N/A

Bridge Inspections

Detailed Contract Description & Purpose

Dan Hofer

Other attachments? (list)

Contract routing sheet 

attached?

The Utah Transit Authority (UTA) is requesting proposals from local bridge inspection firms that can perform culvert and 

bridge inspections.  These culverts and bridges are located along UTA’s rail corridors, both Commuter Rail and Light Rail.  

The intent is to procure these services for a period of three years with an option to renew with two one year option years 

at UTA’s discretion.  

All bridges and culverts that are a minimum of 10 feet wide must be inspected every year.  These inspections are to 

include all bridge and culvert components including but not limited to: deck, handrails, parapet walls, superstructure, 

substructure, abutments, footings, piers, rip rap, and wing walls.  

UTA employees have been performing these inspections since construction, however as the structures age it has become 

necessary to utilize a firm with this type of expertise, knowledge, and credibility to validate and/or make 

recommendations for improvements.  This will also free up UTA employees to work on other State of Good Repair 

projects and Capital projects and assignments.

Best value (RFP)

Number of responding firms:

General Description & Purpose:

(Items to include: Current condition, Benefits, Return on investment, Savings, Other alternatives considered)

Pre-Procurement (information only)

Contract is > $1,000,000

Bridges

Rev.122718



RS7RSSREQ REQUISITION FOR PURCHASE-RSS Page-

Requisition Number 6498 OU Department 3700 ASSET MANAGEMENT- SGR Requested By 1366097 Hofer,Daniel Charles Date 3/5/201
Request Date

Title 20 19-2023 Bridge Inspection Pr Justification

Line Description Qty UoM Unit Price Extended Line Status Account Number Subledger-Type Percent

1.000 2ol9BridgelnspectionProg I BA **********fl 210,000.00 Approved 40-7359.68912 S0R35919 C 100.0000

2.000 2020Bridge Inspection Prog 1 EA “‘“““ 210,000.00 Approved 40-7359.68912 5GR35919 C 100.0000

3.000 2021 BridgelnspectionProg 1 EA ** flfl 210,000.00 Approved 40-7359.68912 SGR359l9 C 100.0000

4.000 2o22BridgelnspectionProg I BA 210000.00 Approved 40-7359.68912 SGR359l9 C 100.0000

5.000 2023 Bridge Inspection Prog I BA ““““ 210,000.00 Approved 40-7359.68912 SGR359l9 C 100.0000

Approval History

Process ID Line No. Approver Numberand Name ApproverAction Taken Date and Time Updated

342 OrderLevel 1366097 HoferDaniel Charles Approved 31712019 161411

342 OrderLevel 1456823 Hancock,David W Approved 3/7/2019 161411

342 OrderLevel 1440978 Cmnins,DonaldE Approved 317/2019 184558

342 Order Level 4835 Meyer,WiIIiam Sleven Approved 317/2019 202342



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY APPROVING OGDEN CENTRAL, MIDVALE TRAX, AND WEST 

JORDAN CITY CENTER STATION AREA PLANS 
 
 
R2019-03-04                 March 20, 2019 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a public transit 
district organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact 
and exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local 
Government Entities – Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act;  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s Board of Trustees has adopted Executive 

Limitations Policy No. 2.2.4 – Transit-Oriented Development (the “Policy”); 
 
WHEREAS, the Policy requires the Authority to establish Station Area Plans 

in collaboration with applicable municipalities;  
 
WHEREAS, the Policy requires the Local Advisory Board to review and 

approve Station Area Plans it determines to be in the best interest of the Authority 
and the applicable municipalities prior to approval by the Authority’s Board of 
Trustees; 

 
WHEREAS, the Local Advisory Board approved Station Area Plans for 

Ogden Central Station, Midvale TRAX Station, and West Jordan City Center 
Station in Resolution AR-2019-03-01 on March 20, 2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees believes it is in the best interest of the 

Authority and the applicable municipalities to approve the Station Area Plans for 
Ogden Central Station, Midvale TRAX Station, and West Jordan City Center 
Station.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 
Utah Transit Authority: 

 
1. That the Board hereby approves the Station Area Plan for Ogden 

Central Station, attached as Exhibit A. 
 

2. That the hereby approves the Station Area Plan for Midvale TRAX 
Station, attached as Exhibit B. 

 
3. That the Board hereby approves the Station Area Plan for West 

Jordan Central Station, attached as Exhibit C. 
 

 



 2 

Approved and adopted this 20th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
 

________________________________  
Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
(Corporate Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 
 
  



 3 

Exhibit A 
  





��������	��
�	
���
���
��	������
�



�����������	��	
����������
��
��	
	�������������	����������������



��

�������	
�����
��	�������	�������������	� !!"#�$%	&	'( # !�(	)*+*, -!*#$	)�.*($ ./	012*#	��$%3445	����6��	7*1� #8,	9*#*.8,	:8#81*.;	:$	012*#	<"=�#*==	>#�$/	>?@AB��	C�BDE�	F.G	:8#81*.	 H	7*8,	'=$8$*	8#2	?0)/	>?@IB�E�	3JE���	� "#$%	� !!�==� #*./	K*L*.	� "#$%M64�EN	O��JE��	'P*("$�+*	)�.*($ ./	K8=8$(Q	R. #$	7*1� #8,	� "#(�,SB��B	TB6��6�	U,8##�#1	)�.*($ ./	>?@V�DE	TB�W��	7*1� #8,	)�.*($ .	 H	U,8##�#1/	X#$*.! "#$8�#	Y*8,$Q(8.*Z�W�B�4	T5E��	[�(*	�Q8�./	012*#	��$%	� "#(�,IB5	S�N4E��	U"L,�(	F*.+�(*=	)�.*($ ./	012*#	��$%\���	AE�E���6�	7*1� #	]	)�.*($ ./	>)0?^���	�B�J�_�	>#�+*.=�$%	)*-8.$!*#$	�Q8�./	K*L*.	F$8$*	>#�+*.=�$%

àbcdefghijgckl
mno�p	q
�r	q��p�
stE6	̂B4���D��	�Q8�.M6uE�B	���JE�DB�	[�(*	�Q8�.Z�W�B�4	T5E�	vU8=$	�Q8�.wtB��	t�B��S���	S��ExC��u	y�E��E6�VB�W�B	z���Emno�p	q
�r	�s�pp
pn	q���
{{
�p�B��5	t�B��4E��M6uE�	�B������	CB|E	O�B}Z�JE��	TE��B6V�6���E�	S����E	T���B6IE66�}E�	yB64B�t�5B6	yW�B4EZ�WD	y����N�WDIB6���	z��u��

~����	~������	��	���	������	��	����	�������������	����	���	������	��	~����	���	��������	�	�������	��	������������	�������	�����	����	�������	������	����	��	����	��������	��������	�������	���	�������	���������������	���	�����	��������	���	��������



���

��������	
��
�����
���������������
���������
 !"#
$%&!%''()
*&+'%
 !"#,��-.�
/0.����00�
1(2
1'(3!4'
567%%'()
89:;�0���.
<.00�
 =>>?%!47"!=%@
A7%7&'()
B%"'(>=?%"7!%
C'76"D47('
E���
FG����H�
I'J?"#
5('4=%@"(?4"!=%
$%&!%''()
8I*9;.�K
L.0-���G��
:@@=4!7"'
M!4'
5('@!+'%"
N=(
O74!6!"!'@
P
 7>J?@
567%%!%&)
Q'R'(
1"7"'
8%!3'(@!"#L.0
�GS��G��
A7%7&'(
=N
5(=T'4"
I'3'6=J>'%")
89:U�-��
V�G�
9*I
5(=T'4"
1J'4!76!@")
89:W��H
;G��HGX��Y�
567%%!%&
I!('4"=()
*&+'%
 !"#<.00��
Z�[�
9(7%@J=("7"!=%
567%%'()
Q7@7"4D
O(=%"
\'&!=%76
 =?%4!6V�-�
]Ĝ �����
:B 5)
1"(7"'&!4
567%%'()
89:/�GGK�
_��[.���
Q'R'(
 =?%"#
 =>>!@@!=%
*Ǹ4'W0���
_YX���
5=6!4#
:%76#@")
*&+'%
 !"#
 =?%4!6

a��b���
c���d�����
����U�-��
V�G�
9*I
5(=T'4"
1J'4!76!@")
89:W��H
;G��HGX��Y�
567%%!%&
I!('4"=()
*&+'%
 !"#V�-�
]Ĝ �����
:B 5)
1"(7"'&!4
567%%'()
89:W0���
_YX���
5=6!4#
:%76#@")
*&+'%
 !"#
 =?%4!6����e	����
����V�0.��
<G���0���H
W�G�fE�S�
g
h����_GX���i�.�.X�00G
g
���Gj�.���:++!"!=%76
@?JJ=("
J(=3!+'+
R#kB%
l6?'
5(=+?4"!=%@
m3!+'=
J(=+?4"!=%nB%&(!+
*@'&?'(7
m1J7%!@D
"(7%@67"!=%n

a��b���
a�������



��

������	
�
��
�����
�����
��������
�
������������ �!"��#��$%"�&��&'�(&)&�*+,&���---------./0"�*"������ �1&2*,,&�'���*�#���'�03�#�� ��------..4,+�&,&�����*��5��"�6�----------------------------------789:�'�� �1&#*:"2&#�---------------------------------------7.;
<
�
�=
���������������������������������������>?@A��
���=
�BC)����D�&�:�'&"�#&+�"��&�2*)&"EC-��*""�'*"�F�#�*��G*"H#3*+�I:,,�"�J-�5�"H&��C����#�#�-�9*",�J**H�(-�C2��)&�!"��#+*"����*��C:'��K-�!"��#+*"����*��J�#&���&9-�L*:#�� �I�"��& �M-��*,,:������3�""&��&�I:,,�"�

>��N�
��O����
��<�P��
��P�Q�
��0:"+*#&���'�J�2H "*:�'�--------------------------------R�*,,:�������'�0�"��&"�K� � &,&���----------------S@��T
���
���
���P�����O����
�!3&��*��&6��U*"�!"��#��$%"�&��&'�(&)&�*+,&���---RR�*""�'*"��3�"�2�&"�--------------------------------------R/V&��J�""�&"#�-----------------------------------------------WWV&��%++*"�:����&#�---------------------------------------WX5�"H&���*�'���*�#�---------------------------------------/8Y��N�
�ZO�O�
��<�P��
�[��\�����
�<���
�=
�N�
�����]��������!3&��*""�'*"�F�#�*��--------------------------------------/̂!"��#��$%"�&��&'�M*��#���'�%D_&2��)&#�------------/.I����*��!�+&#�----------------------------------------------̀8a��N�
����bP��
��
��Z�
�
c��d9"�,&e*"H�%)&")�&e�-----------------------------------̀7M*���Rf�I�"*� ��*��&2��*�#�-------------------------̂8M*���Wf�4�2�:#�)&�0��2&#�-------------------------------̂SM*���/f��*,+�&�&�g&� 3D*"3**'#�----------------X8h�������������
�����]��=
�����*�2&+��4� "&'�&��#�------------------------------------XS% '&��I����*�f�C��i"D����&��&"�-------------------X7Ŵ�3���'�5*�"*&f�C�g&� 3D*"3**'��&��&"�----S̀/W�'���'�L�""�#*�f�C��K,&" �� ��*""�'*"�------SXGIij52V��$(&&�L*#+����f�C��4�#���:��*������,+:#�------------------------------------------------.8



�

�������	
�	�
������	����
��	���	����
����������	��	���
�	�������	��������	�����	 �
����	!�	���
�	�������	�����
�	���	"�	�#�$	���	�����
	�����
����	#�	%����&��	'���
����	�����
����	(�	)�*+%�&�����	�����
����	,�	 �����	��������	-��.�$	/01����1
��	2	3���������4	�5
"6�5#5	���	7�	�����	 �
�	�����������	���
&���	8�	 ��
&&	��	0&&
�����	�
����
&	���	3�������	3��9
��&:�;<=�	�>?	@ABCD=�E���
	�F
�	%��G6���
	��������	-��.�$	3��9
�����&H	�5
,6�5!,E���
	!F
�	�������	E��
&	���	�$�����
�&I����
	
F
�	'�E	E�1
���
I����
	
F��	J�G�����$��	3�&�
�	*&
�	��	��11�����	0�
��&I����
	�F
�	�
&��
��&	���	01����

&	��	�����&�����H	�5
,I����
	�F��	 �
���
	'���K	��L
	/ ��
&4H	�5
7I����
	�F!�	�����
	����
�	�
&���&	�$�.���	M
�	'����
�	N�������&I����
	�F"�	%��&
$���&	��	I�1���	E��
H	��������	�����	 �
�H	�5
#I����
	�F#�	0����1��	���	�
�
�
���1
��	 �
�&I����
	!F
�	�������	E��
	0��1��
&		I����
&	!F�6!F#�	�������	�$�����
�	I����
	"F
�	����
�������	���&&.��K	O
&���	0�
1
��&I����
	"F��	�������K	���&&���	O
&���	0�
1
��&I����
	"F!�	�$��
�	'�&+'�K
	���

�	O
&���

I����
	"F"�	�������	 1
����
&	���	 ��
&&�������I����
	#F
�	���
�	�������	*����	I��1	���	����
�������I����
	#F��	�
�1�������	�$
	���

�&���
	/���
�	�������4I����
	#F!�	���
�	�������	����
��	3$�&
	
I����
	#F"�	���
�	�������	����
��	3$�&
	�I����
	#F#�	�#�$	���	�����
	*����	I��1	���	����
�������I����
	#F(�	M
�	0�
1
��&	�G	�$
	�#�$	���	�����
	�������I����
	#F,�	!���	���	%����&��	*����	I��1	���	����
�������I����
	#F7�	M
�	0�
1
��&	�G	�$
	!���	���	%����&��	�������I����
	#F8�	�
�1�������	�$
	���

�&���
	/%����&��	'���
����4I����
	#F
5�	)�*+��M��	O

	%�&�����	*����	I��1	���	����
�������I����
	#F

�	M
�	0�
1
��&	�G	�$
	)�*+%�&�����	�������

:PQRS	T@	UTV:SV:W





���������	
����
����	
����������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!����������"���#��������������$���#��������!%��$��&$���������!�����&$�"��!��#�"�#���������������������$���!����$�����������������$��������'�(($���!�(�()���������"����������������������������������������������������!�����"$����������������$)"������������*������������������������"���(������������$���!�����"���������#����������������!����������"���#���+�"��(�����������$"����,���"�����"��������#$�$���)$�������������������������������'��!���������-���� �������.$������!�/- .0���+��)������$�!������������#��(����������������������#����+���������������������)����������������$�������#����,�)��$�����1223�����(���+��������������������4����������"!�����������5*�)���6�����-��+�����!� �������6�$�!�/12730�����((������)$����������������/89 0������������:������������������*6-�+���13���6�������8$�"���������""���������,����������)������;�(���������������(($���!���+�������#$�$�����+�"��(�������$���#$�$������������������������������<����������������������+�������+�������#��$�������=>� ?�����+������(�;��#��&$���)"����$����@>� A���������������������������"����+����@>� '����������""5���������������"��(���������������������������@����>� ?��+�������(���+�������+�������������������������������������������������+��!���������������"����������!���(�

BCD�EFGEHID�HJ�HKLDM�HMNHOGLPQRSTUV�WTUUXWRYTUQZ�QRSTUV�UXYV[\TS[TT]Q

^
_̀�abbc�dbefgeh�ib�g�jbek�ieglmni�benklikh�ophklqrs�tuvanw�wbjjkli�



�

�������	
����
����������������������������������������������������� !!��! �����"����#��$!%��������&&�!'�(������)*�(������!����! ���������������+�,�!���-��������.�!���%�����#!((%��������������(/�0����������12�����3���-���45�&�!6����#!�6���������������#��#!���#��!���-���������7!�����#!((%������������!����������������!�+�

89:;<
=>?

@ABB�CDEF

=GHDBIAJD
CDEF�PAHDO

PABBGEHGJJD
TABBG>FFUVJAFDBHGJJD

V>WFL�MNIDOVWOEDF V>WFL�CDXDBYJGOF>O CAELGONF>O�ZDBBA[D

QJAGO�YGF?

\GOFAL]̂_̀

ab
]̂_̀]̂_̀abcfgabcde abdfh

abì abdjf
abf̀abdjgklm�n�opqrstuv�wstxpyx�utz�wsttp{xr|rx}

~�����������7!������%�������� !#%����!������ %�%���7%����&�����������#!����!��#!���#������������������(!�����%7������!-��!-�/�-����$#��������3!�&���������"�����!-���������7��!-��$�&�1�+��~���#!����!����%����������#�%�����%��!%������������-����������(����������#�� �!(�������~������(���+

���~���������~������!��





�

�������	�
�����
���������������������������������������� �!�"���#$��%������������$���&&'� (��� (�)��$��$���&&�*�+�,,�-.�/���0�1.2��1��,/�.�-
,���32
�4$�����$��%�����#�����$5��)� ��"�� � ���$���$����6�������"��5�6�����$�(6��(���%���������#��������� ��������$�$���!��#%��!� ���%��� � $��� (���������7#��$���%*�8(�)�������%�� (��!$�% ������� $��� ��!���)��#6�����#�6$���9� ���� ������� ��� ��(�����$�%:�"($�(��������$��)�%��"�$�����"� ���%��� � $����� $��%*��;�<1�,3��00��/�	���.2
�7���%%� (������ �)�����$�� (�����$��:�(��%$����!!����6$�$ )���� $���%� ��6����#�=���$%%����%� (������6� "����$���#������(��%$�����% %�"$���%*�>� "�����&&?������&��:� (���� ���!���� ���(��%�(���%�%����$���#���� (����&������� ��!�$���#�����(��%$���(�%����"��% ���$�)*�@���A<���.2��,/�-�,3�1.��,��11<�1
�8� ������������($����#$��%� ������$%��� $�$�� ��� ��$�����%��!��#���#$��$���$���&��� ��������*B�#$��$���$���&�&:�����$��� ��"��%��$����$��C���$ )�$%%��%:�#���� $#��% ��5�$�� ��!!$�:����������������������%��$�������� $�$ )*��D�����EF�,.�E�..��,1
�G$�����&�&:������)��&H��!���"����� #�� ���$ %����% ��� ���$��G�� �I�5��J��� )�(����6����"$ ($��K�#$����!���!$L�����$��% � $��*?�M<	��-�
���.

�N$ (��������#$���$�����%��$���()%$����$��� $�$ ):���$�(6��(���%� (� �������#��� :�"��5�6��:���������%%$6��� �����������!��� $��� ���%��� � $����� $��%�����(��������������"��5$��:�6$5$��:����� ���%$ ��%�*��
O�PQRS�T�UVW�XYQVZ[YR\]�̂_Q�̀ab\cY\c�dVeb[YR\faYg�WY[a�XQYhY\c�b\i�[aV�jSgeYZb[YR\f�kRQ�TSVQYZb\lf�P_[_QVm�no�pjdq�ri_Zb[YR\�P_\i�PQR\[YVQ�qQR_gm�ogQY\c�stOuvs�PQRS�T�UVW�XYQVZ[YR\]�̂_Q�̀ab\cY\c�dVeb[YR\faYg�WY[a�XQYhY\c�b\i�[aV�jSgeYZb[YR\f�kRQ�TSVQYZb\lf�P_[_QVm�no�pjdq�ri_Zb[YR\�P_\i�PQR\[YVQ�qQR_gm�ogQY\c�stOuvu�nwT�ŵ X�o[Qb[VcYZ�peb\�b\i�o[b[V�Rk�n[ba�TkkRQibxeV�yR_fY\c�TffVffSV\[�peb\z�nwT�ŵ X�o[Qb[VcYZ�peb\�b\i�{Pd̀�wQbhVe�XVSb\i�|RiVe�}�nwT�ŵ X�o[Qb[VcYZ�peb\�b\i�r\hYfYR\�n[ba�b\be~fYf�

�������������������������������������������





�

�������	
��
����
��	��������� ���������������������������������������������
������� ������������	
����������
����
��!"�������#���!��"���� �������	
����������	��������� ��$���"��������������
�����%��
�&'()*+�,-,�./0�01234153
6789:;<=>?�@��������������	�����
��#���������������A�
B�%��	�����CDEFGH�������I�����J
%�""��A��K������!"�������#��CJA!H�K
������%
���%�����
��
����������
K��@��%���L��@����"�%��
��
K��@��JA!�M���������
�����FNOP
��@��������
��#�"��������������"�������#�����%"������������%�����������
���M
����%�I%��"���P�����C$������FLFHL��@��������
��%�"���
������@��JA!��
���%"������GLQOP�"������"�������M����������R����P
��"���������������S������T��%�����"����������������%�S�������	�����
��#������S�����U%V��O����W
�����"L��@�����������P�%
���%�����X�����#��
�����%@�M��@����������S�����������S����%��"O�����������
������������%������������@����
%����C�P����������@�HL��#���""S�������"����
K��@��"
%���
������P
��S��@��P�B
�����
K���
�"���X������������
���K
��������������
B�%����������L�R��$�""�DEF�S�����������S����%
""��
����
��M��@�
�!S�M����M��������������K�
P��@��$�����"���������!�P���������
��C$�!H��
��X�"
����������O
����������#�"
�P�����"������������P�"�P������
���"
����@����
�
��������%
����
�L��@���"��������������������
%����K
��������������������%
�����%��
��
%%�������������""�"��
��@�����������
������������
%���L��
�����%��
��
K���������%@���"����
����������DEDES�M��@���DEDD�
������L��@����%@���"�����%
�����������
���@���M����
K�K�����"�������K������S�M@�%@�������""��������L

YZ[\]̂_[̀a\b�Ŷ_Zcb̀b�def_[\g\eh][ijklmnolplq�rstsl�umvwlqxvsy�zqtmxvs{q|}l~srs�ky�������������������������l~l�plq��������

����������� �¡¢£ ¤¥�¦��¢£�§¦¤¦��̈  �©��ª�«¬¦�­¡�¬��¡�¦¬� ¦�®¡�©� ���£¢£�§¦¤¦¯���¦¤ ���£­���°��±¬���¥�¢ �£ �²³́





�

�������	
���
�

������������������������������� ����!"�#!����$%�����&'()*(+,�-+�./0�&12�34-50667�./(6�8.'*9�:())�5-+.(+'0�./0�5-+;046<.(-+6�:(./�./0�30-3)0�-=�>,*0+�<+*�540<.0�-33-4.'+(.(06�=-4�6.<?0/-)*046�<+*�./0�,0+04<)�3'@)(5�.-�A00.�<+*�0+,<,0�:(./�-./046�(+.0406.0*�(+�3'@)(5�.4<+6(.�<+*�*0;0)-3A0+.�<)-+,�./0�>,*0+�&12�B-44(*-4CD��E�!�F��G� F��H� ����F �!# F��GH��2/(6�8.'*9�:())�5-+.(+'0�./0�A-A0+.'A�<+*�5-+;046<.(-+�=4-A�./0�24<+6(.�I4-J05.�8.'*9�KLMNOP�<4-'+*�3'@)(5�.4<+63-4.<.(-+7�*0;0)-3A0+.�<+*�5/<+,0�<)-+,�./0�5-44(*-47�:(./�<�=-5'6�-+�0<69Q.-Q'+*046.<+*�<+*�<55066(@)0�(+=-4A<.(-+C�R���F� ���$##�F�������!�S�F�T�G��!�U��V F��G�# ������I4-;(*0�A').(3)0�<+*�;<4(0*�-33-4.'+(.(06�=-4�<�:(*0�4<+,0�-=�5-AA'+(.9�A0A@046�<+*�3<4.+046�.-�34-;(*0�A0<+(+,=')�(+3'.CW������ X�F ��� ���T�S�FY�Z�G�!���[\ ]��%��B-))05.�'60=')�<+*�40)0;<+.�3'@)(5�(+3'.�./<.�40̂05.6�)-5<)�0_304.(60�<+*�;<)'06�<+*�(+=-4A6�*05(6(-+QA<?(+,�40)<.0*�.-�./0�8.'*9C�̀�������a��%�b�FY�� # G��H� ���c�##�F��S�F�V�X��G�bF �!��� ���bF �!��[$F�������Z�U���#Y�����&'()*�6-5(<)�5<3(.<)�<+*�6'33-4.�./-60�0+,<,0*�./4-',/�./0�34-5066�.-�6.<9�(+;-);0*�<+*�6/<40�+-.�-+)9�5-+504+6�<+*�(66'067�@'.�<)6-�6-)'.(-+6�<+*�6.4<.0,(06�+05066<49�.-�(A3)0A0+.�./0�3)<++(+,�<+*�<+<)96(6�:-4?�-=�./(6�8.'*9C

-+�dA<()�)(6.e<50@--?�fg(?06h8'4;09�4063-+*0+.6<.�i8j�I-3Q'3�d;0+.<.�k-63(.<)�I-3Q'3�0;0+.<.�l(6(-+�i-4?6/-3<.�m06(,+�B/<440..0<.�m4<=.�I)<+�>30+�k-'60e-5'6�n4-'3�A00.(+,6op+.04;(0:6p+.04;(0:6�:(./��/-'6(+,�0_304.6q*;(6-49�B-AA(..00�A00.(+,6

RrrDrrs�RtWrsr̀sD̀ sWrsWrsuW�r

vwxyz�vz{v|}x�~v���z�����|}��~��|��vz�{����y�z��{y}�









��

�������� �	
���
���	�� �

�
�������������������������� !"�#��"$��������%��&'(��)��&�*+,��('-�&��!��*+,��!�!'���.

/	��0
���1�234
5678��9:;	<��

�/�
=0�	�
>1?@�ABCDE9�E@

FGH�I�JKLMN�JNOPQRL�SPRRTLPR�UVWLX�YRMQ





��

�������	
����
��������
�����
�
�
���

���������
�� !� "��#
$%!!
&%'(

�)*)+,-
./�
0����1��
2
./�
�
���2
3��4�
���
����
���5��2
.6�������2
��	
3��5���2
7����5
�8�
9

���
�
���

:�����2;	��
���
����
���



.6������
:�����

�����
��1���

���
<6�5
���

=��
���5
>?
�
�
���
 7�
9
=���@AB CDE F GH
IJKLMJKL

NO
PQROSQRO
TUVWOX
SYW
Z[\
]Q̂ _̂VQ̂
]QOOW]S̀
SYW
NOSŴaQVbc
\̂bÒ_S
dWOSŴ
bOV
eO_QO
fSbS_QO
SQ
gb̀Y_OUSQO
ZQhcWib̂VX
R_SY
b
̂bOUW
Qj
]_i_]X
WOSŴSb_OaWOSX
bOV
WakcQlaWOS
h̀Ẁm
PQROSQRO
_̀
SYW
]_i_]X
]hcSĥbcX
̀k_̂_ShbcX
bOV
W]QOQa_]
]WOSŴ
Qj
TUVWOm
gY_cW
Y_̀SQ̂_]
noSY
fŜWWS
bOV
SYW
phO]S_QO
k̂Qi_VW
b
RbcqbrcW
WskŴ_WO]W
SYbS
_̀
]QOiWO_WOS
SQ
abOl
V_jjŴWOS
VẀS_ObS_QÒX
QSYŴ
b̂Wb̀
b̂W
]Yb̂b]SŴ_tWV
R_SY
cQOUŴ
rcQ]q
cWOUSỲX
hOVŴh̀WV
k̀b]Ẁ
Q̂
WskbÒ_iW
̀ĥjb]W
kb̂q_OU
cQS̀m


uvw
x
yz{|}
~�����}
~����|�
��

g_VŴ
̀ŜWWS̀
jQ̂a
cb̂UW
rcQ]q̀
_O
b
ŜbV_S_QObc
Û_V
kbSSŴOX
R_SY
̀QaW
a_V�rcQ]q
]QOOW]S_QÒm
\YW
ab�Q̂_Sl
Qj
TUVWO
fSbS_QO
_̀
_O
SYW
dWOŜbc
Zh̀_OẀ 
̀P_̀Ŝ_]S
�dZP�
Q̂
dZP
NOSWÒ_iW
P_̀Ŝ_]S
R_SY
VWiWcQkaWOS
̂W�h_̂WaWOS̀
SYbS
RQhcV
WO]QĥbUW
Y_UY
VWÒ_SlX
ŜbÒ_S�Q̂_WOSWV
VWiWcQkaWOSm





��

�������	�
�� �
����������
����������� ������������ � ������  ! " #$%&�'$()*+&,�-*($,./�01&+&/%*23�456..1

��7�89:�;#<�'1$=/+&/%>�;#<�4%.?,>�@*2A,�*/(�B?&/�4?*5&,>�;C$1($/=,>�<*D�@*25&1,>�E.//&5%$F$%3��*/(�4%2&&%�G&,$=/>�0D$,%$/=�H,&,�*/(��;C$1($/=�G&,$=/�I 0551&,�J$,%.2$5�G$,%2$5%)&KK&2,./�J$,%.2$5�G$,%2$5%
L

MNOPNNQ�RSTUVQWOXQ�MXYZN[S\]�SQ]�̂S\\VTXQ�MXYZN[S\]_�OUN�SZVWQ̀ NQO�\YQT�NSTOaPNTO�SZXQW�bcOU�dO\NNOe�fUVT�TNgOVXQ�gXQOSVQT�S�̀VhOY\N�Xi�UVTOX\Vg�UX̀ NT_�gX̀ Ǹ\gVSZ�SQ]�gV[Vg�YTNT_�VQgZY]VQW�OPX�UVTOX\Vg�]VTO\VgOT�SQ]�OUN�\NgNQO�S\OT�]VTO\VgOe�jY\OUN\�NSTO_�ZSQ]�YTNT�S\N�k\V̀S\VZl�]NOSgUN]�TVQWZN�iS̀ VZl�UX̀ NT�OUSO�OSmN�]V\NgO�SggNTT�OX�bcOU�dO\NNOe�fUN\N�VT�WXX]�X[N\SZZ�gXQQNgOV[VOl�PVOU�S�O\S]VOVXQSZ�W\V]�TO\NNO�kSOON\Q_�PVOU�TX̀ N�ZS\WN\�nZXgmT�]V[V]N]�nl�S�TUX\ON\�W\V]�TlTOǸ e�

opq�r�stuv�wxy�z{x|{}�~��w|}w
��

fUVT�S\NS�VT�k\V̀S\l��XQN]�iX\�̀YZOVkZN�iS̀ VZl�X\�OPX�iS̀ VZl�\NTV]NQOVSZ_�PVOU�OUN�NSTON\Q�TV]N�Xi��XQ\XN��[NQYN��XQN]�ST��NVWUnX\UXX]��X̀ Ǹ\gVSZe�RUVZN�OUN�gX̀ Ǹ\gVSZ��XQVQW�SZZXPT�iX\�S�̀VhOY\N�Xi�YTNT�SQ]�QX�̀VQV̀Ỳ �ZXO�S\NS�\N�YV\Ǹ NQOT_�OUN�UNVWUO�̀ShV̀Ỳ �VT��c�iNNOe��NTV]NQOVSZ��XQVQW�\N�YV\NT�̀VQV̀Ỳ �ZXO�S\NST�OUSO�\SQWN�i\X̀ ��_����OX�c_����T�YS\N�iNNO_�VQgZY]VQW����OX�c��iXXO�ZXO�PV]OU�̀VQV̀Ỳ Te�fUN�fPX�jS̀ VZl��NTV]NQOVSZ��XQN����STO��NQO\SZ�SZTX�ZV̀VOT�\NTV]NQOVSZ�YTNT�OX�TVQWZN�SQ]aX\�OPX�iS̀ VZl�]PNZZVQWTe�





��

�������	
���
�����


��
�����
����
������
���� ��� !
"#�$
%&$''(

)*
��� !
+,!#'-
"#�$


./0/123
456
7(#�!8 !*9
456
%*':;9
<=->;
=!�
�: !
%:=& ;9
4,#(�#!�;9
6=?
<=-& (;9
@'!! &*#A#*B

=!�
%*-  *
C ;#�!9
D?#;*#!�
E; ;
=!�

4,#(�#!�
C ;#�!
F

GHIJ
KLLMN

N LO LK
LFL

PQRRSTUV
WUXYZ[QR\
ST
Q
]Q̂UR
VUR_̀aTUX_̀
RZbSUVQY
cUVVZc_UR
T_RZZ_
YSVdSVb
UeeUTS_Z
ZV\T
Uf
gb\ZV
QV\
̀U]ZTh
iXTSVZTTZT
QV\
Tc̀UUYT
SV
iZ_jZZVk
WZ_jZZV
lm_̀
n_RZZ_
QV\
op_̀
n_RZZ_h
TSVbYZ
fQ]SYq
̀U]ZT
_QdZ
\SRZc_
QccZTT
UV_U
PQRRSTUV
WUXYZ[QR\k
rXR_̀ZR
TUX_̀h
_̀Z
jZT_ZRV
T_RZZ_
TS\Z
SVcYX\ZT
cU]]ZRcSQY
QV\
UfscZ
XTZTh
QV\
]QVq
eQRcZYT
̀Q[Z
TXRfQcZ
eQRdSVb
iZ_jZZV
_̀Z
iXSY\SVb
QV\
T_RZZ_h
cRZQ_SVb
QV
QX_UtURSZV_Z\
ZV[SRUV]ZV_k
nS\ZjQYdT
QYUVb
PQRRSTUV
WUXYZ[QR\
QRZ
VQRRUj
UR
cXRit_Sb̀_h
_̀ZRZ
QRZ
fZj
cRUTTSVbTh
QV\
cUVVZc_S[S_q
_U
Q\̂QcZV_
RZTS\ZV_SQY
VZSb̀iUR̀UU\T
Uff
Uf
PQRRSTUV
WUXYZ[QR\
ST
SVcUVTST_ZV_k
uUT_
Uf
_̀ST
QRZQ
ST
vUVZ\
RZTS\ZV_SQYh
jS_̀
cU]]ZRcSQY
vUVSVb
QYUVb
TU]Z
Uf
_̀Z
jZT_
TS\Z
Uf
PQRRSTUV
WUXYZ[QR\k
w S̀YZ
_̀ZRZ
ST
TU]Z
uXY_SeYZtrQ]SYq
xZTS\ZV_SQY
vUVSVb
jZT_
Uf
PQRRSTUV
WUXYZ[QR\h
_̀Z
]Q̂URS_q
Uf
ZyST_SVb
XTZT
QRZ
cXRRZV_Yq
TSVbYZ
fQ]SYqk

z{|
}
~���
���
��������
�������
��





��

�������	
��
������������
��� ��

��
�� �� ���� ���  !"#$%�&''�()*+,-$. &''�/0'1-*�2'1-'3��$-��4'5'3�6-$-'�71,0'3*,-% 89:9;<=�>?@�A.,B1C'1-D�>?@�6-)+*D�E$3F*�$1G�H+'1�6+$"'*D�>I,.G,1B*D�@$J�E$3"'.*D�2)11'"-,0,-%��$1G�6-3''-�&'*,B1D�/J,*-,1B�7*'*�$1G��>I,.G,1B�&'*,B1

:KLMNOPQR�SLKT

:ULVVWLM�SXMN

4'5'3�6-$-'�71,0'3*,-%� ���

YZ[�\]̂�_ à\bcdee�fghijk\l�\me�n\ogm�êhkj]\kjg]h�j]�pq̂e]r�sgm�hkt̂e]khr�i\kje]khr�ujhjkgmh�\]̂�hk\ssv�wlg]q�f\mmjhg]�xgtleu\m̂r�\tkgcgmje]kê�̀gnnem̀j\l�theh�\]̂�l\mqe�htms\̀e�i\myj]q�\me\h�̂gnj]\ke�kze�hkmeeksmg]kv�{ze�k|g�n\ogm�j]hkjktkjg]\l�̀\nitheh�\lhg�z\ue�̂jsseme]k�̀jm̀tl\kjg]�i\kkem]hv�Yzjle�kze�YZ[�̀\nith�gssemh�̀g]ue]je]k�\]̂�|\ly\}le�i\kz|\bh�kg�\]̂�kzmgtqz�̀\nithr�kze�_ à\bc�dee�fghijk\l�\]̂�~ue]kh��e]kem�z\ue�l\mqe�i\myj]q�\me\h�kz\k�ljnjk�̀g]ue]je]k�lj]y\qeh�kzmgtqz�kzehe�\me\hv�

��������������������������

���g]j]q�sgm�kzjh�\me\�j]̀lt̂eh�kze��mgsehhjg]\l��]hkjktkjg]\l��g]e�|zj̀z�ljnjkh�zejqzkh�sgm�lgkh�lehh�kz\]�ke]�\̀meh�kg����seek�\]̂�\�n\�jntn�lgk�̀guem\qe�gs����iem̀e]kv�{ze��gnnt]jkb��gnnem̀j\l��g]e�\lg]q�f\mmjhg]�xgtleu\m̂�\lhg�z\h�\�n\�jntn�}tjl̂j]q�̀guem\qe�gs����iem̀e]k





��

��������	��
��
�����������������
����������������������������� �����!����� ����"������#������$%&'()*+%,�-.%/*0�0)1�)�2+.34*�.31'(*�+,�*03�235),2�6%.�0%'1+,-�),2�4%553.4+)(�),2�35&(%753,*�1&)43�89):(3��;<=;�>.%/*0�+,�*03�4%..+2%.�0)1�:33,�1(%/3.�*0),�*03�/+23.�.3-+%,?�)(*0%'-0�*03�-.%/*0�.)*3�6%.�@%/,*%/,�0%'130%(21�+1�0+-03.�1'--31*+,-�+*�0)1�)**.)4*32�1+-,+A4),*�.3-+%,)(�-.%/*0;�@+663.3,*�).3)1�%6�*03�4%..+2%.�)(1%�0)B3�2+663.3,*�,'5:3.1�%6�.31+23,*1�),2�35&(%7331;�
C3+*03.�*03�D)1*�E3,*.)(�,%.�F)..+1%,�G%'(3B).2�1':2+1*.+4*1�).3�5)H%.�).3)1�%6�35&(%753,*�8I+-'.3��;<=;�F%/3B3.?�D)1*�E3,*.)(�0)1�*03�5%1*�.31+23,*1�)(%,-�*03�4%..+2%.?�/0+(3�F)..+1%,�J�231&+*3�:3+,-�*03�15)((31*�4%..+2%.�1':2+1*.+4*�J�0)1�5%.3�.31+23,*1�*0),�*03�KLMNF%1&+*)(�).3);�O*�10%'(2�)(1%�:3�,%*32�*0)*�*0313�,'5:3.1�2%�,%*�+,4('23�1*'23,*1�4%55'*+,-�*%�),2�6.%5�KLM;�P)&�Q�%,�*03�6%((%/+,-�&)-3�10%/1�23,1+*7�%6�,3/�&%&'()*+%,�),2�35&(%753,*�+,�*03�1*'27�).3)�*0.%'-0��RSR;�

TUVWXY�Z[\��]̂_̀]ab̂�cà��defgh]]̂�ih�
jì_̂bk_lbm�nopq rstuvswxt��yz{|}~������sst��yz{|}~���������������������������������������������������� � ¡¢£ ¡¢ ¤¥¦£�§̈¢£©¥ª «¥©©¬¦ ¢�­ª®̄° ±²³́« ¦µ¬£¥ª¶·̧¹¹¹¶º̧¹¹¹¶¹̧¹¹¹»̧¹¹¹¼̧¹¹¹·̧¹¹¹º̧¹¹¹

½¾¿ÀY�Z[\�ÁcfÂÃÄ_f]�Ågkk_̀gk�ÆkgÇbÈ�ÉkgÊ]lb_gâm�nopqÃnoËq
������������̧�ÌÍ���������������������������������������������������������Î������������������������������Ï¹¹��Ð�����Ñ�������������Î��

ÒÓÔÕ�Ö×ØÙ Ú×ØÙ�ÛÔÕÜÝÞÓ�ßààáâã��äåæçØè�éâØÖ ÒÓÒÕ�Ö×ØÙ ÒÓêÕ�Ö×ØÙ ÔÓÜëÖâå��äåæçØè�ìæØâã �ÒÓÜëÖâå�äåæçØè�ìæØâãíæîáãâØïæà ÒðñòóÓ R;Sô õ<?õSR õõ?RRR <?SRR õ?<SRöæá×Öèæã÷× ÔÔñÔóÓ <;Rô <�?õRR <õ?øRR <?<SR �?ùSRßîîåæ�ï�âØÖ�éÖ×ï÷ÖàØïâã��àïØ��Ö�âà÷ <?<RR �?ùRRÚ�îãæë�ÖàØ ÒÓñÒÓÓ <;�ô �õ?RRR �ø?RRR �?øRR S?øRRßîîåæ�ï�âØÖ��æ��Öå�ïâã���Ú�îãæë�ÖàØ��îâ�Ö��Ö�âà÷�	×
Ù��Ø� Q
R?RRR <?ø�R?RRR





��

������	
��
���������������������������������������� !������������"#����#��������#�$��%����&#'������ ��()�*(������������+���"��#�(���������������������������������#�����������&��&���(!���"���� ��(������������������������#��)�,�%!����)��-���$�.��#�"���#���$���%����������+��-��������.�"��#������#�/!�����0(�����!���������)�1���2��#���!�����������"��#��#��#�%#����&��&�������� ����%��0 �(��'���$���&(����#�$���#���(��������$���%����������+�)3�4��5������6��57��8����4�����5���9��:��
,�����(��;%�������������2�������������#��&��(��'�(��#���� ������&��������������"�������%��� ����$������#����������������� ����$��'��'��� �<��#��%�����'������2�(��������������2���#����2�&����2�%�$���(�������$�����!�����%�2�������#���������������)�=�����������(&������� ���&��&�����$��%�����  ��������#�!���%����������#�$���� ��������( ��������"�����%��������'����%������������������������>��#�'�(�'����(����������������������������(��#���� ������&��������2����(�'�������������&���������� ��#��������(����������&����������'�!���%�&!������������)�?#��!%#�!���#����((!���'���%�%�(��������!������2������������ ���&����������2��'������2�������������!�����"�������&�&������'������������)�

@ABCDE�FGF�HIJKLMJ�NOPQR�STUJ�VLQKJSWX�YZ[\
]̂ _̀�abc�defaghijj�klmnopaq�arj�qarsj�cjtjqlnujbpm�pvap�wlqqlx�a�yeaunzmhmpgqj{�cjtjqlnujbp�nappjrb|�}qle~�mo�jm�arj�pvjrjwlrj�ulrj�cow�ezqp�pl�aeezrapjqg�ujamzrj|��zrpvjr��obpjrbaq�eorezqapolb�abc�xaq~a�oqopg�om�ulrj�nrjtaqjbp�ob�pvjmj�cjtjqlnujbpm|�_lzrej��̂ ���|�

������������������������ ���������������� ������������ ���� ¡¢£���¤����¥@ABCDE�FG¦��§ ÖT̈J�©ªKIJ«�¬JSªO­S�©®P̄ T̈M�°J«�±LKKTJK�²PQL­TP̈S

³�ltj���jmzqpm�wrlu�pvj�lbqobj�mzrtjg|�́jqqlxµlrabsj�obcoeapjm�qleapolbm�xopv�pvj�ulmp�eluujbpm�lr�srjapjmp�bzu�jr�lw��arrojrm|�¶_lzrej��d·̧





��
��������	
��


����������������������������������� !"�#$%$&'!�()*+&$,+%�$+-�&!"�#"."/�$+-�01-"+�2,3"/%�$/"�4/)5,+"+&�6)/571,3"/%�&)�&!"�8,&9:� !"9�$'&�$%�3,%*$;�$+-�/"'/"$&,)+$;�$5"+,&,"%�<!,;"�4)%,+1�%)5"�-"3";)45"+&�')+%&/$,+&%:� !"�8,&9�)6�01-"+=%�>"+"/$;�?;$+�4/)3,-"%�$�*+,@"-�3,%,)+�6)/�&!"�',&9A�,+';*-,+1�4);,',"%�$+-�,+,&,$&,3"%�&)�"+!$+'"�&!"�')55*+,&9�,-"+&,&9:�

B�C������DE�FF�G�H��F��DH����I01-"+�8,&9�!$%�.""+�4/)$'&,3"�,+�,&%�$44/)$'!�&)�"+')*/$1,+1�5)/"�4")4;"�&)�<$;J�)/�.,J":� !"��KL��M,'9';"�($%&"/�?;$+�,-"+&,@"-�!,1!74/,)/,&9�;)'$&,)+%�6)/�.,J"�%!$/"�%&$&,)+%�$+-�01-"+�%*''"%%6*;;9�%"'*/"-�6*+-%�,+��KLN�6/)5�#$%$&'!�O/)+&�2"1,)+$;�8)*+',;=%� /$+%4)/&$&,)+�P;&"/+$&,3"%�?/)1/$5�&)�4$9�6)/�J,)%J�,+%&$;;$&,)+�6)/�&!"�@/%&�4!$%"�)6�.,J"�%!$/"�%&$&,)+%:



��

������	
��
���
���������������
����
��
�����������������������������
�����
���������� !�"!��  �#"$%�&'�(���)"��&*"������ ")�(�*�+",'(",'��'*��$"-(�"'�.(�&�*�����&'�(���/0123"%4&(� �����5�/�$���0(�(��&%�"'��"!�(���!�%(�%(�6�",&'6�-'&���%&(&�%�&'�(���%(�(�7�%��&'6��'�&')���%��"!�� 8"%(��99�%(-*�'(%�&'�&(%�("(� ��'�"  8�'(�!�"8��9:;�("��9:�5�<���1(���0=%(�8�"!�3&6����>*-)�(&"'�?103>@�!"��)�%(%�/01�,&  �6�",�$=��5A�4��)�'(�4���=����"����(���'�B(�:9�=���%5�<�&%�6�",(��&%� &C� =�("�*�&���*�8�'*�!"��'�,�*��� "48�'(�&'�(���%"-(���'�%�)(&"'%�"!�(���)"��&*"��D�4��(&)- �� =�!"��%(-*�'(�"��8��C�(.��(��8- (&!�8& =��"-%&'65�
���E��
�

������������
��F��
��
G
�<���)"��&*"��)"'(�&'%�%���'��)(&����'*�4 �''�*�"��4�"4"%�*�H�*��� "48�'(�I���%�?H+I%@��'*�J"88-'&(=�H�&'��%(8�'(%�I���%�?JHI%@D�8"%(�"!�,�&)������) -%(���*�*",'(",'5�H+I%��'*�JHI%�!���K��(���(�B��� -�(&"'�!"���  �(�B�$ ��4�"4��(&�%�&'%&*����%,�(��"!� �'*�(��(L%�$��'�(��6�(�*�$=�(���)&(=�!"����&'��%(8�'(5�<��%������%�4�"�&*��M'�')&� �&')�'(&��%�(��(�)�'�6���( =�&84�"���(���!��%&$& &(=�"!�'�,�*��� "48�'(��'*�����(����!"���&84"�(�'(�("�)"'%&*���,��'�&*�'(&!=&'6�"44"�(-'&(=�%&(�%5�<���J&(=�� %"�"!!��%��"8�$-=���) "%&'6�"��8"�(6�6��)"%(�%-44"�(7���*��� "48�'(��'*���%� ��"!�!"��) "%�*��"8�%�!"����*&%)"-'(�*�4�&)�7��'*�(�B�&')��8�'(�M'�')&'6�!"�� ��6���4�"#�)(%5�N
O�
��P����
��Q
�
���
�<����6*�'2/01�RH<�,&  �$-& *�-4"'��'*�&84�"����'�� ���*=�%-))�%%!- �(��'%&(�)"��&*"�7�8�C&'6�&(�8"���)"'��'&�'(�!"����,&*�����'6��"!�4"(�'(&� ��&*��%5�J-���'( =7�H"-(��;9A�)���&�%�:7S99��&*��%2*�=5�/&(��&84�"��*�!��T-�')=7�%4��*7��'*�%("4��8�'&(&�%7�&(�&%�4�"#�)(�*�(��(�(���'�,�RH<��"-(��,&  �%�����A7A99��&*��%2*�=�4 -%��'"(����A7999��&*��%7��%�(���RH<�&%�4 �''�*�("���4 �)��(����B&%(&'6�/�$���0(�(��0�-(( ��$=�4�"�&*&'6���8"���*&��)(�)"''�)(&"'�(��"-6��)�84-%5

3&%("�&)� �*&%(�&)(%��'*��&%("�&)� �$-& *&'6%������ %"��%%�(%�(��(�8�C����'�&6�$"��""*�8"��� &C� =�("�$����*��� "4�*5�3&%("�&)� ��%%�(%�����(���%-��*�$=����&%&'6�%�68�'(�"!�(���4"4- �(&"'�U�(�"%��,�"8��)"'"8&%(�H&)���*�V "�&*��(��8%�(���WJ���(&���J �%%5X�<�&%�6�"-47��,�"%��8�8$��%�6�'���  =�,"�C�&'�)&(&�%�&'�)�����%�%(�-)(-��*���"-'*�&''"��(&"'7���4��%�'(%�(���'�,�*&��)(&"'�"!�(���10�4"%(.&'*-%(�&� ��)"'"8=5�<���6�"-4�4 �=%��� ��6���" ��&'�(���(��'*�(",��*�(������&(� &K�(&"'�"!��&%("�&)�(",'��'*�)&(=�)�'(��%��'*�(�����-%��"!�!"�8���&'*-%(�&� �K"'�%5�I%�����%- (�"!�(��%��(��'*%7�(�����'"��(&"'�"!��&%("�&)�$-& *&'6%�&%�$�)"8&'6�8"���!�%�&"'�$ ���8"'6���� ��%(�(��*��� "4��%��'*�)"'%-8��%5

YZ[\]̂Z_�̂̀[]â_̀[��bcd�̂̀eZ\bfZgb\Z]c

hijklmn�oiipq�rstumkq�viuwxsyq�humzxs{|mq�s{}�rm|{wuilpq�~{{|mq��ikm��m�mtiz�m{u��ik��ijk��ks{w|u��ittskn�~{�~{st�w|w�i������ikux�~�mk|ls{��ks{w|u��ikk|}ikwq�����



��

�������	
��	��
�	���
�������	����������	���	����� ��	�!	!"���"# � 	$%	!�&	'�(#�)*� +� 	,*'##�#+	-�.."#�/��!0	1	.'2���/%	�3	/��	!�&	��.."#�/%	4*'#!	�#5�!��#	/�	�'5�	$�//��	.'!!	/�'#!�/	'# 	/�	�#��"�'+�	'#	�#/�+�'/� 	/�'#!4��/'/��#	!%!/�.	/�'/	�.4*�%!	."*/�4*�	.� �!	'# 	!'3��	!/���/!	3��	'**	"!��!6	�!4���'**%	4� �!/��'#!	'# 	$��%�*�!/!0	����"+��"/	/��	��.."#�/%	�#+'+�.�#/	�5�#/!	'# 	�#*�#�	�"/��'��	�33��/!6	.'#%	4'�/���4'#/!	5���� 	/����	!"44��/	3��	/�'#!�/	'# 	�&��/�.�#/	3��	/��	3"/"��0	7��88�8	������	9��:��;	��8	�<����8	=���>�	��������������	���?�������	.'2���/%	�3	/��	����� ��	�!	��##��/� 	$%	'	+��  � 	!/���/	#�/)��(6	3��.� 	$%	/��	���+�#'*	$*��(	4'//��#	�3	/��	 �!�+#	3��	/��	��/%0	@#	4'�/��"*'�6	/����	'��	!�5��'*	#��/�A!�"/�	'# 	�'!/A)�!/	!/���/!	/�'/	$�!��/	/��	���	����� ��	'# 	4��5� �	+�� 	'���!!	/�	�/���	4'�/!	�3	/��	��/%	'# 	��+��#0	���	B+ �#	���%�*�	C'!/��	,*'#	D�EFGH	'*!�	��#/'�#!	����..�# '/��#!	3��	'	�'#+�	�3	$��%�*�	3'��*�/��!	D$�/�	����� ��	'# 	�#/��!��/��#	*�5�*H0	,*'##� 	$�(�	3'��*�/��!	'*�#+	��	#�'�	/��	����� ��	�#�*" �#+	$�(�	*'#�!	'*�#+	!/���/!	4'�'**�*�#+	�I/�	J/���/	'# 	'*�#+	K'���!�#	��"*�5'� 0		���;�L	7����������L	��8	=�����	��	���	M��8�������	���	����� ��	�!	'*!�	' 2'��#/	/�	5'���"!	4'�(!	'# 	�4�#	!4'��!	�#�*" �#+	/��	C"#���4'*	N'� �#!6	O�# P"�!/	Q��* 6	O�!/��	,'�(6	R��	C�.���'*	,'�(	'# 	N*'!!.'#	,�# 	/�	/��	!�"/�0	1���!!	/�	/��	/�'�*	#�/)��(	�!	'*!�	.' �	/���"+�	!�5��'*	�'!%A)�!/	!/���/!	�33	�3	K'���!�#	��"*�5'� 	$�%�# 	/��	ST.�*�	!/" %	'��'	0	U'���"!	�/���	4'�(!	'# 	�4�#	!4'��!	3'**	)�/��#	'	VT.�*�	�3	/��	���	����� ��0	J/�**6	!�.�	'��'!	�3	/��	����� ��	*'�(	4'�(!	��	+���#!4'��!	)�/��#	'	��#5�#��#/	)'*(�#+	 �!/'#��6	�!4���'**%	'*�#+	K'���!�#	��"*�5'� 	'# 	#�'�	B+ �#	J/'/��#0

=	W�>����	X�������YB+ �#	�!	'	��.."#�/%	�3	 �33���#/	�"*/"��!0	C�!/	#�/'$*�	�!	/��	��/%Z!	*'�+�	K�!4'#��	4�4"*'/��#0	���	4��4��/��#	�3	/��	4�4"*'/��#	�3	K�!4'#��	���+�#	�!	�5��	 �"$*�	/�'/	�3	/��	��+��#6	)�/�	�#�	�#	�5��%	/)�	 �)#/�)#	��!� �#/!	�3	K�!4'#��	���+�#6	'# 	/)�	�#	�5��%	[5�	�#	\'!/	-�#/�'*0	�����	'��	.'#%	."*/�T�"*/"�'*	$"!�#�!!�!	'*�#+	��	#�'�	/��	����� ��6	'# 	 �33���#/	�"*/"��!6	*'#+"'+�!6	'# 	�"!/�.!	/�'/	��*4	.'(�	/��	��/%	5�$�'#/	'# 	 %#'.��0			



��

������	

�
��
�	�������

����	
���	���	
�����
�������	
������
��	��
����	�����������
�������	
��������
�
�������	
����
�	
��	
����	���
��	
��	
�
�������

 �	�������	��
���
��������
�
�!��������

����������
��	���	��	����	
������
�
�
��
����	����������"�����������
�������	
��#$	
�
�������
�
�%�	�
	���
�	����
��������
�	����

��
�
������&��
�����������	���
	
��
�'"����(�������������
����	
���	
���
��
�	
��	
����
���	
����)*+,-./�0,12�1/3*.45�)-56+.-7�71228.-9:



��

��������	
��	
����������
���������
���
	��	�������	
�����
��	�
����	

����
��	�������
����������
�����
��	��
���	
���	���	��
�
��
����
��	��� ��	�����	�����!���	�
�� ��	�� ���������	�����
���
����"
��
�
�
������������
	����������������	���	
�����#
���$���
	������
����#
���������	
�������%����
��	���&����	�
����'������%�
�����	
��	
�����������������	�������
����!�
��	����	�����
������������
�
����	�
��	��������
��
�
���	�
����	���	���(
�'
�
	��	������%�
��

��
	�)�*�+��!�%�
��
��	��
���
����
��
����

�������!
�����
������������
�����	�����
�
��

,-./01�2345616347

8� 19:;<=<>?:@@AB�C>DEFC>@;E�G<=C�HC<@;9F?�C:IF�J:I>9F;�@>GF9�;F?E<=A�C>DE<?K�=ALFEM�N>GFIF9B�<J�=CF�=9:?E<=�EF9I<HF�H:?�:HH>OO>;:=F�PFQ<R@F�EHCF;D@FEB�=9:?E<=�DEF�H>D@;�CF@L�F:EF�:JJ>9;:R<@<=A�RD9;F?E�J>9�O:?A�J:O<@<FEM�

S����
�%��	�	����������	�������
��	�������
��	����	���
��������	
���	������������������


�
�����������
	��
	
���
���	
���	��	���
������	�	����
��	��������������
�������������������������
��	�

�	
�������
������	�	��	
�����)������
'�T+U�S���������
��������	�����
�	���V�����T&S���


��
�����
W�������
���
��	���	��������	�
�����	����
���	���	��	
���
	��

��	�������������	U�XYZZ[\YZ�]̂_ỲZabc[de���
�'
��	����f����
���	���������������
��	�����


��
��
������
��
���	����

��
��	�
��	���
��	���
�SV"�)g
��
��hUi+U�S����

��
��	�
��	���
��	���
�SV"�	��
������
���������
����������������)�����
�����jk�	���i����
�������������
�
�+��������������
	�������
��
��������	
���
	���������	������������������������
���������
�
��U�S����������
����
��	���
�	
���
	��

��	�������������	�
���������
�������
��	�������	��
��������
��������������)�U�U���	����	�+U�!�


������������
	����
��
��j��
��	������	��
�W���	�	���		
��	�	��SV"�����������������	���
�hj���
���	�����'
�	
��������������
��	�����


��
U�laZm̂n�onẐp̀nc�qlaZm̂n�r̂a\[p̂eest�����	
�����
��	���

�����u��������
��	�����������
�	��������
�	
���	
��������������	
��	
���	
����u�
��
�������
��
��	
��������
��	��	
���	�U�S�
���
��	�
���������������	�����	��
��
��������
�%��	�	������
��������
����������
��������
�������
������	�	����
��	�����
	
���U�g�
��'�������SV"�
�������������
����
��v�
�
	��w���
��	�����	������������
����
��v���
�
��w���
��	���
	������
�����
�	������W����
����
����	
������
�������
�����������
U�v�	
���w���
��	���
���	��
���������������	�����	���
��
���	����U�

xyz{|}~���~x�y���|}�{�{|}�





��

������	
��
������	��
	�������������	���	��������	 	 !"#$	%&'&(")*&+$	"))",$-+.$.&#	/,&	("0/$&%	/$	&.$1&,	&+%	"2	$1&	0",,.%",	3!/)	456	 	 7&*/+%	2",	/%%.$."+/(	1"-#.+8	%&'&(")*&+$	.#	/+$.0.)/$&%	$"	.+0,&/#&9	%,.'&+	:;	#.8+.<0/+$	)")-(/$."+	8,"=$1	$1,"-81"-$	$1&	,&8."+6	 	 >$-%&+$	1"-#.+8	.#	&*&,8.+8	/#	/	2/'",/:(&	%&'&(")*&+$	$;)&	.+	$1&	0",,.%",	%-&	$"	+/$."+/(	$,&+%#	/+%	("0/(	1.81&,	&%-0/$."+	.+#$.$-$."+#	.+0,&/#.+8	&22",$#	$"	,&0,-.$	*",&	"-$?"2?#$/$&	/+%	.+$&,+/$."+/(	#$-%&+$#6 	 >&'&,/(	)(/++&%	@".+$	'&+$-,&	3)-:(.0	/+%	),.'/$&	)/,$+&,#1.)#5	),"@&0$#	=.((	1&()	$"	:-.(%	*/,A&$	*"*&+$-*9	&#)&0./((;	%"=+$"=+9	)"$&+$./((;	.+0,&/#.+8	$1&	2&/#.:.(.$;	"2	*",&	#.8+.<0/+$	/+%	("+8&,?$&,*	%&'&(")*&+$	),"@&0$#	+&/,:;9	#-01	/#	$1&	,/.(;/,%#6	
 	 B.81?%&+#.$;	1"-#.+8	),"@&0$#	8&+&,/$&#	%&*/+%	2",	0"**-+.$;?#&,'.+8	,&$/.(	#-01	/#	,&#$/-,/+$#9	0/2C#9	0"22&&	#1")#9	/+%	8,"0&,;	#$",&#6	 	 D&%&'&(")*&+$	E8&+0;	),"@&0$#	/,&/#	.+	7"=+$"=+	/+%	F/#$	G&+$,/(	3H.8-,&	�6I5	),"'.%&	#.8+.<0/+$	%&'&(")*&+$	.+0&+$.'&#	$"	1&()	:,.%8&	2-+%.+8	8/)#	2",	(/,8&,	),"@&0$#6	E%%.$."+/(	),"@&0$	/,&/#	.+	$1&	0",,.%",	="-(%	.+0,&/#&	%&'&(")*&+$	"))",$-+.$.&#6	 	 JK7	$;).0/((;	/01.&'&#	,&+$	),&*.-*#	"2	:&$=&&+	<'&	$"	�L	)&,0&+$	/:"'&	$1&	*/,A&$	/'&,/8&	2",	,&#.%&+$./(	%&'&(")*&+$9	/+%	ML	$"	MI	)&,0&+$	2",	0"**&,0./(	%&'&(")*&+$9	=1.01	="-(%	1&()	:,.%8&	%&'&(")*&+$	2&/#.:.(.$;	8/)#	.+	$1&	0",,.%",6	

NOPQRS	TUV	WXYZY[\X	]Ẑ	_̀^̀àbYc[̀Zd	ef̀]g
hijklmn	opqrs	tmumk	rijvwxs	tyqrs	z{p|qs	}~�mv	r�wx	�v�	�m��v�	riv�j�w�v~	pkij�









��

������	
����
�����������
����	��
	�	���
���
�������
��
	���
	�����	
����
��
��	���
��
���
�������
��	������
��
�����	
����
���
����������
��
�����
�����
��
��
��
	�����
�������
�������
��
������
���
����������
��
����	�
��	���		�	�
�����
���
��	����������
�	�	�
���
������
	����	
��������
������
���	
	�	���
������������
�����	
���
���
��	�
��
����
������������
���
	���������	
������	
��������
������������
���
 ������
��
�����
!"#"$%





��

�������	
�������
�
���
���

���������
�����
���
�����
�������
��� !
"��
���#!��$����#��%
%�&� ����#�
� �#�
���
'����%��(
)���
�* ��� �
�+,�'��&�!
����
�� ��%
�*�%�
%�&� ����#�
�"
��'����#%����#!
�#%
%�!��#
'�#'���!
�#
-������!

.
�#%
/0
���
�+,�'��&�!
� !�
���&�%�
%�!'������#!
����
�1� ��#
��)
���
'���*#���
'�#
�'���&�
��'�
��� 0
���
��� !
"���*��
�1��� �
�����!
�"
!*''�!!"* 
!��'�!
�#%
"�'� ����!
*!�%
����*���*�
���
!�*%�
���'�!!0


232

456789:
59;
<=<689:
>?@ABC
5>B
;8>B<A
59;
89AB:>5AB;23D

E8:F
G@568A=
A>59C8A
8C
B5C86=
5<<BCC8H6B23I

JKL>?MBKB9AC
A?
A>59C8A
CF?@6;
H@86;
?9
BN8CA89:
>?@ABC
59;
CA?LC23O

PFB>B
8C
<6B5>
C8:95:B
A?
;8>B<A
=?@
A?
59;
AF>?@:F
AFB
<8A=
�
��
QR
�STUVT
WXYZ[\
]Z[[̂ ]X_Z[W

̀aVb
cTVVTS
deffTdVagaVh
cTV̀TTf
VbT
i�j
dUklmno
VbT
benlaVUpo
Ufq
�è fVè fo
Ufq
lSegaqT
TrsdaTfV
Ufq
defnanVTfV
nTSgadT
Upeft
VbT
̀UhR





��

�������	�
���
����	��	���	�������	�����	���	����	���������	
��	��������	� ���	���	!"���#�	������	
��	$�������	%&�"���	'()	���	��*��	'()+(	,������	� ���	����	��"���-�	���	���"�	��	���������	��"��������	���	���������	�������	�����	���	���.��*�	��/	���������	.���������	���	�������������	/���	.�����*���	��	���	������.���"	������(	,������	� ���	�������	���	0���������	1��/	/���	����	��.�����	���.����	��	���	������23	���	1��/	/���	��/	�������4���	5�	/�����	�6�����"	���"�*�������(3	

������7�����8	9�:�7��:�;<��<	9�;;�=�;
���<>?�;>��=	9����;7;?��	9����;

@ABCDE	FGH	�IJIKLM	�NOP	�QJROSPT	





��

������	
���
 �����	��������
������� ����������� ����������
���� �������� !"#$��%&$'&! ()*+,*-,�./0�12�3-*-�/45637/48�.36,/92+./6:;�51..*)5/+6;�12<5*;�5/=/5;�/4-,/,3,/14+6�+47�*4,*),+/4.*4,>/0�12�3-*-�*0,*47-�,?)138?�.36,/@6*�A615B-�2)1.�,)+4-/,�-,+,/14
C.+66*)�A615B�-/D*-�E/,?�@*7*-,)/+4�5144*5,/14-�A*,E**4�6148*)�A615B�6*48,?-(117�5144*5,/=/,:�+,�+66�/4,*)-*5,/14-

>1-,�A3/67/48-�A3/6,�,1�-/7*E+6B-�+47�-,)**,->1-,�A3/67/48-�E/,?�@+)B/48�A*?/47�1)�A*-/7*�,?*�-,)**,�+47�A3/67/48�2)14,�
>/79�,19?/8?9)/-*��A3/67/48-�FG9HI�-,1)/*-JK)+4-/,/14+6;�-,*@@*7�A3/67/48�?*/8?,-�+,�*78*-�12�)*-/7*4,/+6�1)�?/-,1)/5�4*/8?A1)?117-�FL9��-,1)/*-J

(117�-/7*E+6B-�+47�E/,?�?/8?*-,�@)/1)/,:�,1�@*7*-,)/+4-(117�A/5:56*�)13,*-�+47�/42)+-,)35,3)*M55*--�,1�.+4:�,)+4-/,�)13,*-�E/,?�7/)*5,�5144*5,/14-�,1�-3))1347/48�4*/8?A1)?117-�+47�8)*+,*)�)*8/14N$O'N' 'NP$#Q�%#RS O T4-,/,3,/14+6U5/=/5�3-*-�+)*�+45?1)-�,1�*.@61:.*4,;�-*)=/5*-�+47�?13-/48>/0�12�3-*-�1)/*4,*7�,1�,?*�,)+4-/,�-,1@>/0�12�3-*-�*0/-,-�E/,?/4�+�A615B�2)1.�,)+4-/,�-,+,/14>/0�12�+,,+5?*7�-/486*92+./6:�+47�.36,/92+./6:�?1.*-
V+)8*)�A615B�-/D*-�E/,?�@*7*-,)/+4�5144*5,/14-�A*,E**4�6148*)�A615B�6*48,?-(117�5144*5,/=/,:�+,�.1-,�/4,*)-*5,/14-V+47-5+@*7�@*7*-,)/+4�5144*5,/14-�6/4B/48�/4-,/,3,/14+6�3-*-

W>+/4�C,)**,X�A3/67/48-�561-*-,�,1�,)+4-/,�-,)**,�+)*�A3/6,9,1�-,)**,C3)2+5*�@+)B/48�61,-�+)*�,35B*7�A*?/47�1)�A*-/7*�A3/67/48-V+)8*)�-5+6*�A3/67/48-�21)�?*+6,?5+)*U*735+,/14U)*-*+)5?
C1.*�./79)/-*�A3/67/48-�561-*-,�,1�,)+4-/,�-,)**,�FG9Y�-,1)/*-JK+66*)�A3/67/48-�@6+5*7�,1E+)7-�5*4,*)�12�/4-,/,3,/14+6�5+.@3-()+73+6�,)+4-/,/14�,1�61E9)/-*�7*=*61@.*4,�+E+:�2)1.�/4-,/,3,/14+6�5+.@3-�FL9��-,1)/*-J

(117�-/7*E+6B-�+47�A/B*�)13,*-(117�5144*5,/14-�,1�,)+4-/,;�A/B*�)13,*-;�+47�-/7*E+6B-U-,)**,�5)1--/48-

Z[\]̂�_̀a�Obcbdef�'ghij�cfk�%lcmcnbimdjbdnj



��

������	
���
 �����	��������
������� ����������� ����������
���� �������� !"#$%&'$&&(��)! *!' +,-�./�0121�.3,24526�5.�572�53841,5�15.9�85�:.57�153225�1,621�846�28;7�:<.;=�;.3423+.15<>�<.?23�6241,5>�;.@@23;,8<�0121�8<.4A�83523,8<1+,-�./�1,4A<2�/8@,<>�846�1@8<<B1;8<2�@0<5,B/8@,<>�7.@21
C.41,15245�A3,6626�153225�425?.3=�?,57�9262153,84�;.442;5,.41�:25?224�<83A23�:<.;=�<24A571D215�;.442;5,E,5>�6,32;5<>�/3.@�572�1585,.4

C.<<2;5,.4�./�:0,<6,4A1�?,57�983=,4A�:27,46�.3�:21,62�572�153225�846�:0,<6,4A�/3.458A21�4283215�53841,5�15.91�F8461;89,4A�846�:0,<6,4A1�:3.0A75�;<.12�5.�153225�5.�93.E,62�12412�./�24;<.1032�/.3�9262153,841
F.?B3,12�:0,<6,4A1�����GHBI�15.3,21JK8<<23�:0,<6,4A1�85�@8L.3�,452312;5,.41�G�BM�15.3,21J N262153,84B.3,24526�;<.1215�5.�53841,5�15.91O0,2523P1<.?23�321,6245,8<�1532251�8?8>�/3.@�53841,5�15.91Q..6�1,62?8<=1�846�8;;211�5.�:,=2�3.0521Q..6�8;;211�5.�53841,5�15.91�846�3.052�53841/231!R!'#" #�)&''"(&' C.@@23;,8<�0121�8<.4A�83523,8<1�G.42�.3�:.57�1,621�./�153225J+,-�./�1,4A<2�/8@,<>�846�1@8<<B1;8<2�@0<5,B/8@,<>�7.@21

F83A23�:<.;=�1,S21�?,57�1.@2�9262153,84�;.442;5,.41�:25?224�<.4A23�:<.;=�<24A571D215�;.442;5,E,5>�6,32;5<>�/3.@�572�1585,.4T�6,@,4,17,4A�/035723�8?8>
U2?�62E2<.9@245�:0,<5�;<.123�5.�572�153225�?,57�.//B153225�983=,4A�:27,46�.3�:21,62�:0,<6,4A1�F8461;8926�:0//231�1298385,4A�:01>�1532251�/3.@�572�1,62?8<=

F.?B3,12�:0,<6,4A1�����GHBI�15.3,21J+,6B3,12�321,6245,8<�846�@,-26B012�:0,<6,4A1�85�;.34231�846�9<8;26�5.�932123E2�;7838;523�./�321,6245,8<�42,A7:.37..6�G�BM�15.3,21J
Q..6�1,62?8<=1�846�8;;211�5.�572�:,=2�425?.3=V;;211�5.�.42�.3�@.32�53841,5�15.91



��

�������	
���
��������
��������
��
�����������	�����
���	

��������
����
������������ �!"�#�$�%#��&'()*�!+*,+'
�	������





��

������	
���
������������������
�
������������
����
����
����������
�
������

	��������������� !�"#�$�%�&$��'(�)*)+,-(,�".++-/.+









��

�������	
��
�����������������������
����

�
�������
���
����
�����
��� !"���#$%&'�
�����&$�
�('���)�*���
���'���)�$
���)���+,����
���)����&�&
��
�&�
������(��-�
������.�/012345�6575892:;<�=3<<5>9:4:9?�93�@925<A9B5<�C>>588�93�D885<9:;E�@524:>58�F230�9B5�G2;<8:9�=322:732HIJKLMN�OPQ�RSTUK�VWXX�URYZKRNK�Y�VWJK�RYLIK�S[�\KJKNURWYL�KLZWRSL]KLUN̂�[RS]�U_K�VYX̀YaXK�bSVLUSVL�US�U_K�N\RYVXWLI�TLWZKRNWUc�YLJ�_SN\WUYX�dY]\TNKNe�bW[[KRKLU�\SRUWSLN�S[�U_K�dSRRWJSR�LKKJ�JW[[KRKLU�]SJWfdYUWSLN�US�dRKYUK�Y�NY[Kg�dS][SRUYaXK�KLZWRSL]KLU�[SR�URYLNWU�TNKRNe�Q_KRK�YRK�NKZKRYX�dSRRWJSRhVWJK�RKdS]]KLJYUWSLN�US�KL_YLdK�dSLJWUWSLN�[SR�\KJKNURWYLNg�YLJ�U_YU�dYL�_KX\�dRKYUK�NURSLIKR�dSLLKdUWSLNe�i_Y\UKR�j�\RSZWJKN�Y�JKUYWXKJ�XWNU�S[�\RWSRWUc�\RSkKdUN�[SR�U_K�YdUWZK�URYLN\SRUYUWSL�LKUVSR̀el�m�nopq�r�sWt�aRS̀KL�NWJKVYX̀�NKdUWSLN�YLJ�]WNNWLI�NWJKVYX̀�IY\N�YRSTLJ�NUYUWSL�YRKYNe�r�uLNTRK�U_YU�NWJKVYX̀N�_YZK�U_K�Y\\RS\RWYUK�IRYJK�YLJ�YRK�LSU�NXS\WLI�WLUS�U_K�RSYJVYce�r�uLNTRK�Y�]WLW]T]�vwx�dXKYR�ySLK�[SR�\KJKNURWYLN�SL�U_K�NWJKVYX̀�ac�RK]SZWLI�SZKRIRSVL�ZKIKUYUWSLg�YLJ�ac�RKXSdYUWLI�TUWXWUc�\SXKN�U_YU�]Yc�aK�aXSd̀WLI�U_K�NWJKVYX̀e��r�uLNTRK�U_YU�NWJKVYX̀N�YXSLI�U_K�dSRRWJSR�_YZK�dTRa�RY]\N�YU�WLUKRNKdUWSLNg�US�YddS]]SJYUK�\KS\XK�WL�V_KKXd_YWRN�YLJ�SU_KR�]SaWXWUc�JKZWdKNe�r�iTRa�RY]\N�N_STXJ�_YZK�URTLdYUKJ�JS]KN�YLJ�aK�JWRKdUWSLYXXc�YXWILKJ�VWU_�U_K�dRSNNVYX̀Ng�RYU_KR�U_YL�JWRKdUWLI�\KJKNURWYLN�WLUS�U_K�WLUKRNKdUWSL�YU�Y�JWYISLYX�YLIXK�zsWITRK�ve{|e�

}���������o�m�l������~������� iTRa�RYJWW�N_STXJ�aK�JKNWILKJ�YN�UWI_UXc�YN�\SNNWaXK�US�RKJTdK�\KJKNURWYL�dRSNNWLI�JWNUYLdK�YLJ�NXSV�UTRLWLI�N\KKJN�VWU_STU�YJZKRNKXc�Y[[KdUWLI�URYLNWU�S\KRYUWSLNe��� �JJ�dRSNNWLI�UW]K�US�U_K�\KJKNURWYL�\_YNKN�YU�WLUKRNKdUWSLN�SL��YN_WLIUSL�OSTXKZYRJ�YLJ��YRRWNSL�OSTXKZYRJg�US�KLNTRK�U_YU�NXSVKRh]SZWLI�\KJKNURWYLN�dYL�NY[KXc�dRSNN�U_KNK�RSYJN�VWU_WL�U_K�UW]K�YZYWXYaXKe��� HL���U_��URKKUg�NXSV�URY[fd�US�W]\RSZK�dSLJWUWSLN�[SR�\KJKNURWYLN�U_RSTI_STU�U_K�dSRRWJSRe��URYUKIWKN�dSTXJ�WLdXTJK�aTXaSTUN�YU�K̀c�WLUKRNKdUWSLN�US�KLdSTRYIK�NXSVKR�JRWZWLI�YLJ�WLdRKYNK�\KJKNURWYL�ZWNWaWXWUc��_WI_�ZWNWaWXWUc�dRSNNVYX̀N�YU�WLUKRNKdUWSLN�LKYR�URYLNWU�NUYUWSLN��N\KKJ�[KKJaYd̀�NWILN��YLJ�XYLJNdY\KJ�]KJWYL�RK[TIKN�zsWITRKN�ve{�YLJ�ve�|e��� �RSZWJK�\YR̀NURW\�XYLJNdY\WLI�US�aT[[KR�\KJKNURWYLN�[RS]�_WI_hN\KKJ�URY[fde��� �SJW[c�U_K��jU_��URKKU��YRRWNSL�OSTXKZYRJ�WLUKRNKdUWSL�US�RKJTdK�U_K�Y]STLU�S[�\YZK]KLU�SL��jU_��URKKUg�YLJ�dXYRW[c�XYLK�XSdYUWSLNe�

r��]\RSZK�\KJKNURWYL�dSLLKdUWZWUc�US�NURKLIU_KL�YddKNN�US�KNNKLUWYX�NKRZWdKN�[RS]�U_K�URYLNWU�dSRRWJSRer��LUKIRYUK�aWdcdXK�RSTUKN�YLJ�WL[RYNURTdUTRK�VWU_�NUYUWSL�JKNWIL�r�uLdSTRYIK�N]YXX�ZK_WdXK�N_YRWLI�US�W]\RSZK�[WRNU�XYNU�]WXK�dSLLKdUWSLN�
���������������������������������������





��

������	
��	
�������	��������	������	��������

� 	!"#$%&'(%)&	%)	"*+"),-	./	"	,0.11		2"$3	4"3-1	5-*-1(0%")1	4.0-	+%1%6$-	(.	4.(.0%1(1	")*	,"01	4.0-	+%1%6$-	(.	5-*-1(0%")17�8	9(.5	$%)-1	"(	4%*6$.,3	,0.11%)&1	1'.:$*	6-	1-(	6",3	�;<�;	/--(7�=	9(0%5-	('-	,0.112"$3>	0-&"0*$-11	./	('-	5"+%)&	5"((-0)	.0	4"(-0%"$7�?	@-*%")	.0	1"/-(#	%1$")*	/.0	5-*-1(0%")	0-/:&-�A	B"%1-*	,0.11%)&1	"(	,.))-,(%.)1	(.	-11-)(%"$	1-0+%,-1C,(:"(-*	5-*-1(0%")	1%&)"$1	D'"$/		1%&)"$1E>	'#60%*	6-",.)1>	.0	0"5%*	F"1'	6-",.)1	4"#	6-	,.)1%*-0-*	"(	&0--)2"#	,0.11%)&1>	4%*6$.,3	$.,"(%.)1>	.0	:)1%&)"$%G-*	,0.11%)&1	2'-0-	%)/0-H:-)(	,0.11%)&1	4"3-	"	(0"/I,	1%&)"$	.0	1(.5	1%&)	:))-,-11"0#7	J%K-*	L(%4-	1%&)"$1	.0	5"11%+-	*-(-,	(%.)	"0-	50-/-0"6$-	(.	5:1'L6:((.)	*-(-,(%.)7MNOPQRS	TUQVNWNPX	YPZUT	MVPRRV	[R\]XT	̂UTOU_



��

������	��
��
�
��
������
	��
����	����
����
����
��	����
������
������ 
!"#$#%�
&' (�)
*%'�+
'�,-(��
"�
./01+
" 
(2�
�3"�"��
�,#34��(
5,)
6"#$#%�
5'#"%"("� 
"�
(2�
#"($7
82�
*%'�
9' 
-)�-')��
9"(2
(2�
:�,9%����
,5
(2�
-%'����
!;8
),3(�+
'��
),3(� 
9�)�
-),-, ��
"�
%,#'(",� 
�� "����
(,
#,4-%�4��(+
63(
�,(
#,�<"#(+
9"(2
(2�
!;8
63 � 7
�=�)%'-
6�(9���
-),-, ��
6"#$#%�
5'#"%"("� 
'��
(2�
!;8
),3(�
" 
(2�)�5,)�
4"�"4'%+
63(
 ,4�
"4-),=�4��( 
#'�
6�
4'��
'%,��
(2�
!;8
#,))"�,)
(,
53)(2�)
��2'�#�
6"#$#%�>63 
"�(�)'#(",� 7
?2'-(�)
1
-),="�� 
'
��('"%��
%" (
,5
-)",)"($
-),@�#( 
5,)
(2�
'#("=�
()'� -,)('(",�
��(9,):7ABCDEF
GHIJGKLMLNE
IODEEO
FEIKPQR%,��
.�)�
S()��(+
6�(9���
T'%%
R=��3�
'��
U)'�(
R=��3�+
(2�
-%'����
 ()��(
�� "��
"�#%3�� 
'
 �#(",�
,5
(2�
VT�6�)
T"%�#'(WX
'
-),-, ��
6":�
6,3%�=')�7
Y�
(2" 
%,#'(",�+
6� (
-)'#("#� 
5,)
 2')��
63 >6":�
%'�� 
 2,3%�
'--%$
Z8?;*
;�-,)(
0[�X
R
U3"��6,,:
,�
8)'� "(\S3--,)("=�
;,'�9'$
S()'(��"� 
-),="�� 
�� "��
,-(",� 
5,)
 2')��
63 >6":�
5'#"%"("� ]7
.�)�
S()��(
'% ,
2' 
'��%��
,�\ ()��(


R##,)�"��
(,
(2�
!3 
;'-"�
8)'� "(
*%'��"��
U3"��+
V(2�
-),=" ",�
,5
 �#3)�
6"#$#%�
-'):"��
"�5)' ()3#(3)�
" 
�  ��("'%
5,)
#$#%" ( 
(,
5��%
#,45,)('6%�
"�
%�'="��
(2�")
6"#$#%� 
-)",)
(,
6,')�"��
(2�
 $ (�4̂ 
8,
'�
�_(��(+
(2�
%,#'(",�
,5
(2�
6"#$#%�
-'):"��
5'#"%"($
#'�
'#(
' 
'
4'):�("��
(,,%
(,
��#,3)'��
6"#$#%�
3 �7
82�
4,)�
=" "6%�
'��
'(()'#("=�
(2�
#$#%"��
5'#"%"($+
(2�
4,)�
%":�%$
"(
" 
(,
�'"�
(2�
'((��(",�
,5
-,(��("'%
3 �) 7W

àbcde
fcghgij
kalbcde
mnlb

opqrst
uvw
xyz{|}
~���~��|
x�{||�
�|����

�������
����
������
����
�
���������
��
���� ��¡��������¢�
����£�¤
������¥�� 

-'):"��+
92"#2
#,3%�
6�
�%"4"�'(��
,)
4,�"¦��
(,
)��3#�
#,�<"#( 
6�(9���
6":� +
63 � +
'��
#') 7
Y5
,�\ ()��(
-'):"��
" 
��#�  ')$+
)� ()"-"��
(2�
'��%��
-'):"��
(,
-')'%%�%
-'):"��
9,3%�
"4-),=�
=" "6"%"($
,5
#$#%" ( 
(,
�)"=�) 
-3%%"��
,3(
,5
(2�
-'):"��
 -'#� 
Z§"�3)�
̈7�]7
©,9�=�)+
"5
'��%��
-'):"��
" 
��#�  ')$+
)�ª3")�
6'#:\"�
-'):"��
(,
"4-),=�
=" "6"%"($
,5
#$#%" ( 
92��
-3%%"��
,3(7
*')'%%�%
-'):"��
#,3%�
'% ,
6�
3 ��
' 
'
6355�)
(,
 �-')'(�
63 
'��
=�2"#%�
()'5¦#
5),4
#$#%" ( +
'(
(2�
?"($� 
�" #)�(",�7



��

�������	�
��	��
���	��
����	��������������	���� !�"#	���	$�% 	��� �	��	#�&���&�	'�# �	&��(�	�! "��)	&���	�� 	�*+	"��� ,	+� 	�*+	�������	��	����������	���� !�"#	�����#	��� �"�� 	�� 	$�% 	��� 	����	$��	���)	# ����-	��	�"# "	��	.�������	�	(���������	"��� 	/�"	(0(�����	��#	����	" #�( 	(��1�(��	$ �&  �	(0(�����	��#	�"�����,	'� 	�)����	��	��	(" �� 	�	"��� #	$�% 	��� 	$ ���#	�� 	$��	�������	)���/�".-	��	����&	(0(�����	��	(������ 	��	�	# ������ #	�)�( 	"��� "	����	. "����	����	! ��(� 	�"�/2(	3�  	)����	 4�.)� 	�$�! 5,	6����	��
�7+� 	89:;	��(0(� 	<��� "	=���	)"�)�� #	�	>)��� #	�.)� . �������?	$�% 	/�(����0	��	@�""����	���� !�"#-	&��(�	��	��� �# #	��	$ 	�	� )�"�� #	$�% &�0	�"	(0(� 	�"�(%	����	&���#	�// "	��. 	# �"  	�/	� )�"�����	/"�.	! ��(� 	�"�/2(,	+� 	)"�)�� #	@�""����	���� !�"#	# ����	/�"	�� 	�*+	��(��# �	�	$�% 	��� -	&��(�	&���#	�.)"�! 	(�"" ��	(��#������	/�"	(0(�����	��	@�""����	���� !�"#,	@�& ! "-	�� 	A��0	��#	BC'+	�����#	(������ 	��	���%	/�"	�))�"������ �	��	�.)� . ��	�	� )�"�� #	$�% &�0	��	@�""����	���� !�"#,	

DE��	��F��+� 	89:;	��(0(� 	<��� "	=���	����	(����	/�"	�&�G���� 	� /�	��"�	$�4 �	��	8;��	H�"  �	��#	I;��	H�"  �	��	@�""����	���� !�"#-	(���(�#���	&���	�� 	�*+	"��� ,	+� � 	$�4 �	)"�!�# 	�	# ������ #	�)�( 	/�"	(0(�����	��	("���	$��0	"��#�-	$0	�"�����������	�� .	/"�.	�� 	"����	��# 	$�% 	��� 	�/	�� 	��"  �	����	�� 	�" �	� �"	�� 	���)	$�"	��	�� 	("���	��"  �	&� " 	�� 0	&���#	��% 	��	��"�	� /�,	+���	�.)"�! �	��/ �0	/�"	(0(�����	$0	" #�(���	�� 	�  #	/�"	(0(�����	��	�	"����G��# 	$�% 	��� 	��	. "� 	�("���	.����)� 	��� �	�/	�"�/2(	��	�(( ��	�	� /�G��"�	)�(% �	��	�	�������J #	��� "� (����,	+� 	$�4 �	�����#	$ 	��� �"�� #	����	�� 	2���	# ����	/�"	�� 	�*+	)"�K (�,	�������	�
�7���% 	"�(%�	&���	$ 	)"�!�# #	��	�� 	�"�����	���)�-	��	& ��	��	��	$�� �,	B+L	��#	�� 	A��0	�����#	 ���" 	����	$�(0(� 	"�(%�	�" 	������� #	(�"" (��0	��#	����&	/�"	)"�) "	��#	� (�" 	���"�� 	�/	$�(0(� �,	+���	��(��# �	�	�  #	��	" !� &	)��( . ��	��	.�% 	��" 	����	�"  �-	������	(�$�� ��-	�����-	�"	��� "	�$���(� �	�" 	���	$��(%���	�� 	�/	$�% 	"�(%�,	





��

�������	�
���
��
�
������������
����
��
���


�����
��
���
����
��
�������
���
��	
��
����
�������	�
���
��
�����
���
���
�������
������
����
��
�

���
��
�
��
�������
��
�
	��
���������
��
��
���
�
�����
������
������

	
����
�����
�����
��
���
���
���
����������
����
	����
��
��
��������
���
���
������

�
�������
�������
��
��
���
���	������
�������
����
�������
�
���


���
��
��
����
����
���������

�����
���������
��
����
�����
��
���
������
	�

�����
��
�
�����

�������
 ����
��
!�
�
"���
#���$�
"���%���&�
��
����
���
���
�������
���
'(!
 ����
��
%���
��
"���
�
��
�����
����������
!�
�
"���
���
����
�����
������&�
)*+,-)-.*/*012
/340
)*/5
+-665+0*-64



��

������	�
��
��������������������������
���������� �
�!��������� "�#�$�
! ����
�����%
�����&���"�$�"� ��& ���"��� &��"� '(� ��$�& ���"��&���"(�#
�)��"(���&�� " �
�"���&�����"" * $ �%�+
���$$��* $ � �"���&�!
* $ �%�!
&�"	,-./012./�2-3�45--/6.�789:;6�<=26/>�?;.@�<.2.;5-�A1/2>�2-3�71;51;.;B/�C>/1�45DE51.F�A66/>>;9;:;.GF�2-3�7:26/D2H;-0IJKLMN�OPQNROS�MTNLJUMTV�PQWXOS�PLQYQOS�QTU�VWRRTOPQNROS�URLMZRW�Q�WQTVR�[\�N[]]JTM̂_�KRTR̀ Ô�QTU�QWR�NRT̂WQL�̂[�aRLN[]MTV�QTU�MTNLJOMZR�̂WQTOM̂�ÔQ̂M[TO�QTU�̂WQTOM̂b[WMRT̂RU�TRMVcK[Wc[[UOd�ecRWR�QWR�ORZRWQL�UROMVT�RLR]RT̂O�̂cQ̂�Oc[JLU�KR�JORU�̂[�VJMUR�TRa�PJKLMN�OPQNRO�TRQW�̂WQTOM̂�ÔQ̂M[TO�QTU�QL[TV�̂cR�fge�N[WWMU[Wdh� iNjJMWR�[W�WRjJMWR�URUMNQ̂M[T�[\�PLQYQ�OPQNR�KQORU�[T�ÔQ̂M[T�N[TNRP̂O�klcQP̂RW��mdh� n[NQ̂R�PLQYQO�MT�cMVc�ZMOMKMLM̂_�QWRQO�OJNc�QO�MT̂RWORN̂M[TOS�N[]]RWNMQL�QWRQO�QTU�N[]]JTM̂_�T[UROh� oTN[JWQVR�̂cR�UROMVT�[\�QUpQNRT̂�KJMLUMTVO�[̂�[WMRT̂�aMTU[aOS�[PRTMTVOS�QTU�RT̂WQTNRO�[̂aQWUO�̂cR�PJKLMN�OPQNRd�h� qMTM]MYR�OcQUR�\W[]�̂cR�QUp[MTMTV�KJMLUMTVO�QTU�U[�T[̂�L[NQ̂R�PJKLMN�OPQNRO�[T�̂cR�T[Ŵc�\QNMTV�RUVR�[\�Q�KJMLUMTVdh� rROMVT�PJKLMN�OPQNRO�N[]]JTM̂_�VQ̂cRWMTV�QTU�PLQ_dh� sTNLJUR�Q]RTM̂MRO�OJNc�QO�KRTNcROS�̂WRRO�QTU�LQTUONQPMTVS�PRURÔWMQTbONQLRU�LMVĉMTV�QTU�OcQUR�ÔWJN̂JWROd

t�sT̂RVWQ̂R�QTU�N[TTRN̂�PJKLMN�OPQNRO�aM̂c�ÔQ̂M[T�QWRQO�QTU�PWM[WM̂MYR�JORW�N[]\[ŴS�QNNROOMKMLM̂_S�QTU�PLQNR]QXMTVdt�lWRQ̂R�Q�ÔWRR̂\W[T̂�̂cQ̂�MO�]JL̂Mb\JTN̂M[TQL�QTU�UROMVTRU�QW[JTU�Q�PRURÔWMQT�ONQLRd�t�lWRQ̂R�NLRQWL_�UR\MTRU�VQ̂RaQ_O�̂[�TRMVcK[Wc[[UO�QTU�ÔQ̂M[T�QWRQOdt�uOR�OJÔQMTQKLR�UROMVT�RLR]RT̂O�MT�̂WQTOM̂�ÔQ̂M[TO�QTU�ÔWRR̂�M]PW[ZR]RT̂�QTU�URZRL[P]RT̂�PW[pRN̂Od�t�s]PLR]RT̂�Q�fge�vQ_\MTUMTV�IW[VWQ]d

wxyz{{x|}~��z|����zw��|y�����x���~yx�
h� sTNLJUR�OPRNMQL�PQZMTV�MT�̂cR�PLQYQO�̂[�MTNWRQOR�ZMOMKMLM̂_�QTU�MURT̂M̂_S�QTU�̂[�UR̀TR�RT̂WQTNRO�QTU�̂WQTOM̂M[TO�̂[�̂cR�OMURaQLX�QTU�̂WQTOM̂�Ô[Pdh� v[WX�aM̂c�PQŴTRWO�̂[�PW[VWQ]�OPQNRO�OJNc�QO�r[aT̂[aT�iLLMQTNRS��VURTbvRKRW�eRNcdS�QTU�v�udh� sT̂RWPWR̂�L[NQL�cMÔ[W_�QTU�NJL̂JWR�̂cW[JVc�OMVTQVRS�QŴS�QTU�QWNcM̂RN̂JWR�QTU�JOR�[\�L[NQL�QŴMÔO�QTU�NWQ\̂OPR[PLRd�



��

��������	���	
����
���������
������������������������ � ����!����"#$�%#&#'()*#+,�)-(.#/,0�1+%�0,1,2(+�%#023+�04(5'%�#+/(5-13#�1�0,-(+3�0#+0#�(6�1--2&1'7�8420�04(5'%�9#�1//(*)'204#%�9:�-#2+6(-/2+3�)-2*1-:�#+,-1+/#0�2+,(�%266#-#+,�+#2349(-4((%0�1'(+3�,4#�;<8�/(--2%(-�1+%�1,�0,1,2(+�1-#107��=� >(+0,-5/,�#+,-:�31,#$1:0�,41,�6-1*#�&2#$0�1+%�/-#1,#�&2051'�/5#0�1+%�0#+0#�(6�1--2&1'7�=� ?0#�)59'2/�1-,�,(�#0,19'204�31,#$1:�6#1,5-#0�,41,�0,-#+3,4#+�,4#�/41-1/,#-�1+%�2%#+,2,:�(6�@3%#+�1+%�(6�05--(5+%2+3�+#2349(-4((%07�?0#�'1+%0/1)2+3A�023+0A�0,-5/,5-#0�(-�(,4#-�6#1,5-#0�,41,�2%#+,26:�,4#�+#2349(-4((%7�=� B�/(-+#-�'1+%�*1-C�/(+020,2+3�(6�1�/(*92+1,2(+�(6�()#+�0)1/#�1+%�1-/42,#/,5-1'�952'%2+3�%#023+�6#1,5-#0�/1+�1'0(�9#�2+/(-)(-1,#%�10�)1-,�(6�,4#�31,#$1:�6#1,5-#07�

D��� ����� ��� E��� � �� ����FGH �IJG�K ����H�����L��������!��G�����M���� ������K�H��N+41+/#�0,-##,�6-(+,13#0�1+%�02%#$1'C0�9:�%#O+2+3�%266#-#+,�02%#$1'C�P(+#07�84#�02%#$1'C�P(+#0�1-#�,4#�02%#$1'C�)59'2/�0)1/#0�,41,�6-(+,�1�952'%2+3�1+%�/(+020,�(6�,4#�Q2%#$1'C�B*#+2,:�R(+#A�S#%#0,-21+�R(+#�1+%�B/,2&2,:�R(+#�TU235-#�V7VW7XYZ[\]̂�_̀ [Z84#�B*#+2,:�R(+#�/1+�/(+,12+�'1+%0/1)2+3A�0#1,2+3A�'234,2+3�1+%�(,4#-�5-91+�65-+2,5-#7�84#�B*#+2,:�R(+#�%#023+�*50,�2+/(-)(-1,#�1//#00292'2,:�1+%�041''�+(,�9'(/C�1//#00�,(�,-1+02,�0,()0A�2+,#-0#/,2(+0A�1+%�/-(002+307aZbZc]d\e[�_̀ [Z84#�S#%#0,-21+�R(+#�20�1�/'#1-�)1,4$1:�1''($2+3�f($�(6�)#%#0,-21+�*(&#*#+,�1+%�65''�1//#00292'2,:�1'(+3�,4#�02%#$1'C7Xg]\h\]̂�_̀ [ZB/,2&2,:�R(+#�)-(&2%#0�0)1/#�6(-�1/,2&2,2#0�05/4�10�(5,%((-�%2+2+3�2+�6-(+,�(6�/(**#-/21'�50#0�1+%�1�9566#-�P(+#�1,�-#02%#+,21'�50#07�84#�B/,2&2,:�R(+#�*50,�9#�%#023+#%�,(�2+/(-)(-1,#�1//#00292'2,:�-#i52-#*#+,07jklmno�pqp�rstsuvw�xyzwusuz{�tw|�x}}z{{u~u�us�



��

�������	
��

����������������	�������
���	��	
	�����
����	���	�����������	�
�������������	�������	������ !�"#$ %&!#!'�(�()%�*+�$ %#"'!'�*,�-!.�� !��)!�"'/% $% .�"%'�%-�(�(�."'.0*!��!/)'%*%1"!(2�"'/*�+"'1�(%*. �!'! 1,2�'.�"&!�).0"�.�� !(�% .�"%'2�.'+�%�)! �#!�)%+(��%�"'/ !.(!�!'&" %'#!'�.*�(�(�."'.0"*"�,2�). #%',�3"�)��)!�4.(.�/)�� %'��*.'+(/.$!2�.'+�&"(�.*�"'�! !(��-% �� .'("���(! (�.'+�$!+!(� ".'(5�6�7 "% "�"8!�(�(�."'.0*!�+!("1'�!*!#!'�(�.��'!"1)0% )%%+�.'+�(�.�"%'�1.�!3.,(�3)! !��)!,�3"**�/%'� "0��!��%��)!�"+!'�"�,�%-�91+!'�.'+�/!*!0 .�!��)!�/"�,:(��'";�!�(!'(!�%-�$*./!�"'��)!� !1"%'5�6�<'�!1 .�!�(%*. �!'! 1,�-% �� .'("��(�.�"%'�.#!'"�"!(�.'+�(�.�"%'�$%3! ��(!5�6�=%'� %*�(%*. �)!.��1."'�.'+�1*. !��("'1�().+!56�=%'("+! �+!("1'"'1�1 !!'�"'- .(� �/�� !�$ %>!/�(�.(�"'�! ./�"&!�% �!+�/.�"%'.*�($./!(��).��$ %&"+!�.++"�"%'.*�(%/".*�-�'/�"%'(�%'�("�!2�$. �"/�*. *,�3)!'��(!+�3"�)"'�$�0*"/�($./!(5�6�?�"*"8!�*%3@#."'�!'.'/!�.'+�'.�"&!�$*.'�(��%�"#$ %&!�'.�� .*�-�'/�"%'�.'+� !+�/!� !(%� /!��(.1!5�

ABCDEBEFG�H�IJK�LHMNFOPFQ�RSTQSHB?UV�()%�*+�+!&!*%$�/%'("(�!'��0 .'+"'1�.��!./)�(�.�"%'�.'+�.*%'1��)!�/%  "+% �.(�$. ��%-�WXU�+!("1'�$ %>!/���%�#.Y!�0 .'+"'1�/%% +"'.�!+�3"�)�� .'("��.#!'"�"!(�.'+�(�.�"%'�+!("1'5�V(�$. ��%-��)!" � !/!'��U .'($% �.�"%'�Z.(�! �7*.'2�91+!'�="�,�+!&!*%$!+�.�4.,['+"'1�\!("1'�]�"+!��%�!(�.0*"()�.�/%'("(�!'��0 .'+�.'+�(�,*!�%-�3.,['+"'1��) %�1)%����)!�/"�,5�U)!�4.,['+"'1�\!("1'�]�"+!�$ %&"+!(�.�*"(��.'+�#.$�%-�.**%3.0*!�+!(�"'.�"%'(��%�"'/*�+!�%'�3.,['+"'1�("1'(2�"'�.//% +.'/!�3"�)�*%/.*�1�"+!*"'!(�.'+�0!(��$ ./�"/!(�%'�3.,['+"'15�4.,['+"'1�("1'.1!�'!. ��)!�WXU�(�.�"%'(�()%�*+�"'/% $% .�!��)!��!#$*.�!(�.'+�(�,*!(�%��*"'!+�"'��)!�4.,['+"'1�\!("1'�]�"+!�̂.�(.#$*!�("1'�"(�()%3'�)! !_2�.'+�()%�*+�0!�/%% +"'.�!+�3"�)�91+!'�="�,5�



��

�������	
��
����������������������������� !!"##��$�%$&#'��$
#�()'� (
�"##"(�� ��#"*+�!"#,-./.012�3�45-�5/.6037�819.�:16�26;16;<7�=<3<;19�36.3=>�?@A�BCDEFGH�IJ�G�KBGLIMN�OBMD�LPGL�IQRFDQDMLJ�GM�GEEGH�BS�TDCDFBRQDML�EDNUFGLIBMJ�LPGL�JURRBEL�LEGMJIL�UJGND�GMT�VEDGLDJ�G�CIWEGML�MDINPWBEPBBT�GEBUMT�G�LEGMJIL�JLGLIBMX�>J�ILJ�MGQD�IQRFIDJY�LPD�BCDEFGH�OBMD�IJ�RFGVDT�BM�LPD�OBMIMN�QGR�BCDE�GM�DZIJLIMN�OBMIMN�TIJLEIVL[J\X�?PD�BCDEFGH�OBMD�QBTI]DJY�DFIQIMGLDJY�BE�GTTJ�EDNUFGLIBMJ�LB�LPD�WGJD�OBMIMN�TDJINMGLIBM�WH�DSSDVLICDFH�VBMLEBFFIMN�FGMT�UJD�̂ILPBUL�IMVEDGJIMN�LPD�VBQRFDZILH�BS�OBMIMN�EDNUFGLIBMJX�@NTDM�VUEEDMLFH�PGJ�JDCDEGF�TISSDEDML�BCDEFGH�OBMDJ�SBE�JLEDDL�VBEEITBEJ�[_̀LP�aLEDDL\Y�JDMJILICD�GEDGJY�GMT�KBBTRFGIMJX�?@AbJURRBELICD�OBMIMN�JDLJ�JRDVI]V�TDCDFBRQDML�JLGMTGETJ�SBE�LPD�GEDG�JUEEBUMTIMN�LEGMJILY�DMVBUEGNIMN�LEGMJIL�UJD�WH�EDcUIEIMN�PINPDE�TDMJILIDJY�G�QIZ�BS�UJDJY�WIVHVFD�GMT�RDTDJLEIGM�GQDMILIDJY�GQBMN�BLPDE�ILDQJX�?PD�BCDEFGH�OBMD�JPBUFT�DZLDMT�G�d̂GFeGWFDf�TIJLGMVD�GEBUMT�LPD�JLGLIBMY�REBCITIMN�JRDVI]VILH�SBE�LPD�SBFFB̂ IMN�VPGEGVLDEIJLIVJXg�h��i�j���kMVBUEGND�G�QIZ�BS�FGMT�UJDJY�IMVFUTIMN�EDLGIFY�QUFLISGQIFHY�BS]VDY�GMT�IMJLILULIBMGF�UJDJX�lDELIVGF�QIZDTbUJD�JPBUFT�WD�GFFB̂ DT�WUL�MBL�EDcUIEDTX�mPIFD�PINP�QIMIQUQ�TDMJILIDJ�QINPL�TDLDE�IMILIGF�TDCDFBRQDML�IMLDEDJL�[GJ�̂DFF�GJ�IMVEDQDMLGF�BE�RPGJDT�TDCDFBRQDML\Y�JDLLIMN�QIMIQUQ�FIQILJ�SBE�KBBEbGEDG�EGLIB�GMT�T̂ DFFIMN�UMILJ�RDE�GVED�B̂UFT�FIeDFH�DMVBUEGND�JUWUEWGMY�FB̂ bTDMJILH�TDCDFBRQDMLX

n�ADCDFBR�G�?@A�@CDEFGH�oBMD�SBE�REIBEILH�JLGLIBM�GEDGJXn�kZRGMT�pDEQILLDT�>EDGJ�SBE�aLUTDML�qBUJIMNX�n�kMPGMVD�DZIJLIMN�RBFIVIDJ�LB�DMVBUEGND�NEDGLDE�EDJITDMLIGF�IMSIFFXn�rBMJITDE�EDSIMDQDMLJ�LB�RGEeIMN�RBFIVIDJ�MDGE�LEGMJILXn�rBQQUMIVGLD�TDCDFBRQDML�RBFIVIDJ�GMT�IMVDMLICDJXn�rBMTUVL�G�MDINPWBEPBBT�PBUJIMN�JLUTHX�n�sBEQ�G�PBUJIMN�̂BEeNEBUR�BE�LGJe�SBEVDX

tuvwxxuyz{|}wy~��wt�vwx��u|u�yu}���wt�wwz~
�ii���������������mPIFD�G�?@A�BCDEFGH�̂IFF�MBL�VEDGLD�GMH�GSSBETGWFD�PBUJIMN�BM�ILJ�B̂ MY�GM�BCDEFGH�VGM�WD�VEGSLDT�LB�QGeD�JUED�LPD�SBEQJ�BS�GSSBETGWFD�PBUJIMN�LPGL�WDJL�JUIL�@NTDM�GED�RDEQILLDT�BE�IMVDMLICIODTX�sBE�DZGQRFDY�TDMJILH�WBMUJDJ�GMT�EDTUVDT�RGEeIMN�QIMIQUQJ�SBE�GSSBETGWFD�PBUJIMN�JPBUFT�WD�VBMJITDEDT�GJ�RGEL�BS�LPD�BCDEFGHX�������������������pDEQIL�PINPDEbTDMJILH�REB�DVLJ�MDGE�JLGLIBM�GEDGJ�GMT�WD�KDZIWFD�̂ILP�TDCDFBRGWFD�FBL�TIQDMJIBMJ�LB�DMVBUEGND�IM]FF�REB�DVLJX�?PD�rILH�JPBUFT�VBMJITDE�PINPDE�LPEDJPBFTJ�SBE�LPD�BCDEFGH�OBMD�LB�DMVBUEGND�PINPDEbTDMJILH�TDCDFBRQDML�̂ILPIM�LPD���?�VBEEITBEX�>L�QIMIQUQY�MD̂ �EDJITDMLIGF�TDCDFBRQDML�JPBUFT�WD�DMVBUEGNDT�LB�EGMND�WDL̂DDM�̀��LB����UMILJ�RDE�GVEDX



��������	
��
�������

	

�������������������������� �����!"�����#�$���������������!����������!��%#�&'�#��!"��()�*�+����!#(�,�'#����������-�#�)��!���&����!�����!��,����������%�%���������.����!"���'��!"�/�)%����'#%�#(��!�����0%���1�!��%#�%!��2%�����!�3�'#�-%����'&����������/�&'�����(�%����������%��&#���!����������4�����%!���%!���#)�&'�#������!�'���!������%�5��*�6�-��%#� �����!"�����#�$���'��!"�)���'�����%-��&��!�����!�#(�&'�#���!�����7"��!�%��%�/���!�����%&#(������'!������%!���"������!���(�������!��%#�'!���*�7!���'����.%�)#�����������,!������%��8���9�%��,��%��:�-��&�!���)���'�����!�������##�,�!"�)%"�*�9����!"�����#����'��!"�����()��%##(� �%����$����&'�#��&��%'������%##�,��%���-�#�)�������%5��%�-%!�%"��������!�����������%#��%!����;'�����#�����!���%#��!-�����!�����%����������%)��%#�<%!����!����!���%������%��&�#��(=*

>?@@?AB�>?CCDE�FGH@?ABIJKJLMNOPQ�PQK�ROSTSUJ�VNOJQKUT�WSPUJ�PQK�XJLOYQ0!��'�%"��)�������%!4��%#�����-�#�)��!��&(���;'���!"�&'�#��!"������!������,%���������������,����)%�5�!"�&���!���%�������%!��!����!�*�0!��'�%"����-�#�)��!����%������#�����������������������'"�����'�������&%�5������Z����#���#�!����-�#�)��!�*�IPN[OQY�\PQPYJ]JQM:��'���)%�5�!"���!��'���%!���!��'�%"����%����)%�5�!"*�:��'��!"�)%�5�!"���!��'�������)��̂������!���%!����Z�!������)���%##(�����%�����%&#����'��!"��%!��%##�,�!"����������)%�5�!"�_�.�&�#��(�%����,��,%(��7"��!���'#�����'����������������&������-�#�)����%!����!%!��*�8���'"��̀ �:1a��8�%!�)���%���!�%!��b%!��c���1�!!�����!�d��"�%���7"��!�1��(�,�##�&����'�(�!"�%��;'%���)%�5�!"���%!�%��������e�,!��,!���!�#'��!"���f!���!������Z�!�!"���"'#%���!������%5��%))��)��%�����-����!������)%�5�!"*�c#���%��#(��)%�5�!"���%!�%�������'#��-%�(�&%�����!���������������%���!��()��<1�%)����g=*������.%�)#�����%���!��()���,����%���"������.�'��������)#�(��!��%!��������!��%#�'����<�'���%������c�&%!�1�!����%!��h!����'���!%#�1%�)'����%���!��()��=����'#���%-��)%�5�!"��%��������')�����!���)%���)����,�##�!"�'!�������,��)�����iii��;'%�������������������%#��)%��*



��

������	
��
�����	�����	���	�������	������������	�����	� 	!"�	!#	�$�	#� �� �	%�!&�"%	'"�(�� ���� 	�"	�$�	 ����)	 ���"%	�"	�"*��� �	!#	�+,! �	-..	 �'/�"� 	�"	�� 	�!��+	�"�!++,�"�	#�!,	�.0�	�!	�.0-1	2$� 	%�!&�$	� 	+�3�+4	�!	/��(�	/�,�"/	#!�	"�&	/�(�+!5,�"�	�"	�$�	 !'�$��"	 �*��!" 	!#	�$�	*!���/!�	6	5����*'+��+4	#!�	 �'/�"�	!�	,��3��7����	,'+��#�,�+4	$!' �"%1	8"	3��5�"%	&��$	"���!"&�/�	 �'/�"�	$!' �"%	���"/ 	�"/	�$�	'5*!,�"%	�,5+�,�"����!"	!#	�$�	$�%$	*�5�*��4	9:2	 4 ��,)	�$�	;��4	 $!'+/	5��,��	 �'/�"�	$!' �"%	�"	�$�	;9<	=!"� )	!�	*!" �/��	�"*!'��%�"%	 �'/�"�	$!' �"%	�$�!'%$	�"	!(��+�4	=!"�1	<!�"%	 !	,�4	��>'���	�	��/'*��!"	!#	*'���"�	5��3�"%	,�"�,', 	? ��	��	.1-	 ��++ 	5��	��/�!!,@1		
��A��B�	��������	
�C�B���	��	DEFGHIJKL	MILJNLI	OLPQRLENQJS	TEUSS	���$!'�	 !,�	V�W���+��4)	 �(���+	�W� ��"%	5!+�*�� 	���	+�3�+4	�!	/����	5�! 5�*��(�	/�(�+!5�� )	� 5�*��++4	&$���	+�"/	 '55+4	� 	+�,���/	�"/	��/�(�+!5,�"�	!#	�W� ��"%	5�!5����� 	&!'+/	��	��>'���/1	2$���	���	�&!	5��,��4	�/X' �,�"� 	�!	�W� ��"%	=!"�"%	�$��	&!'+/	$�+5	 '55!��	���" ��7!���"��/	/�(�+!5,�"�)	� 5�*��++4	#!�	,'+��#�,�+4	$!' �"%1	YZ[\]Z	\̂	̂Z_̀ aZ	bc[cde	\f	b\d	a\]ẐghZi�W�,',	+!�	*!(���%�	��"%� 	#�!,	j.	�!	�.	5��*�"�	�"	�$�	,'+��5+�7#�,�+4	�� �/�"���+	=!"� )	&$�*$	5'� 	�	+�,��	!"	/�" ��4	�"/	+�"/	' �	�#k*��"*4	�"/	� 	+�3�+4	�!	��	�	 �%"�k*�"�	�������	#!�	2l<	5�!X�*� 	&��$	 ��'*�'��/	5��3�"%)	&$�*$	,�4	' �	'5	�!	0..	5��*�"�	!#	�$�	+!�1



��

��������	
��
���
��
�
����������
��
�
����

������	
���
�����
�
����
�	�
��
����������
������	�
�����
������
�����
����
���������
��
���
��
�����
�����
��������
����
������
��
���������
���

���
�����
���
������������

�����
���
����
���
	����
��
�����	
�����
���
�
����

������	
���

�
������
���
����������

��
�����������
��
����
����

��

����
������	
��

����	
������

�����

����
���
���������

���
�������
��
�����
����
��	
�
����

�����������

��
��
��������
���	����������
 !"#$%&
'()*+,
 -($%
.!#
 /"0%+/
1!"2*+,3
45 
6"*$)7!/%2
89

:;<=>?
@ABCD>A
EFB@=>?
GFH<
���
������

�
��������
��	��I���
���
���
��������
��
�����
������

�����

�

��
�����
����������

��
��
�������
�������
JKLM

�������	����
��
����
��
����N��������	

�����
�
��������
���
�����
����
������
���
���
���
����
����O
�����	
�
�������
��
����
������	
������
���
����������

��
�
�������
�������	�
��
���������	

��
������
��
��
�P��
Q�	�
N�����	
������	
���
�P�
�������
�
��
�
���
�N����	��
��������

�
������
�����	

��
����
��	
���
���R��
��
������	
�
�����
���
���
���������
������
��
���
������
�
�P�
���R��

�����
��
����
��

��
���R��
��
������
���
���
������	
����

��
���R��

��
������
���
S�����
��	
�
���	���
��
������	
�
���

��

��
�������������
���
���	���
��
�
������
�
�������
��
�����
���

�

���
�����
�

TUVWXYZX
[XW\]̂̂X_
_XUZ]̂]XZ
]U
\ à̂]bY\]ac
deUXZf����

��
������	
�����
���
��

��
S�
�g�
����
��	
���
����N������
�����
���
��	��I���
��
�����

���

������
�P�
�����
����
h�
��������	
�
��������
��
�������
���

�����
�
��
i���
����
��
��
JjKQM
���
�������
��	
�������
�����
���
������
����������

�
��
������

��
���������
�
�������	
�����
���

����
���
�
���
����	�
���
����

�
�����

��

��	�
�
klmnopqr
sqtmquqmvn
vl
wxryomz
{|}~�~��
����
�����~�f�����	
������
���
������	

��������
����
�
�����

�����

��

��
�����
�

�
����
�
������
�
����
��
�������
����
h�����
������
J����������	M
���
��

����
��
��
�����
��

�

��
�������
���
������
�����
�������
��
��
����
��

����
��
��
������
�
���R��

����������
���

�
��	�
���
��
��
�����������
���
��
��
����
����
������	
�������




��

������	
��
�
��������

���������
�������
�����

���
����
�������
������	
�����������
��
������
������	��
�������
������	
���

���
�����������
������	 
����
������
��
�!���������"
�"
������
��	
������
#�$	$
���%�	�
���

�����	 
����
��

��
����

���
����%!�����
 
����
�����
���
���"���
��������
 
���
!������
����
�������%�
��%	���
&$'())*+,-./0
10203(4)0+/
5(3,-,06
.+7
8+-0+/,2069������
�%��%����

%�
���
���":

����
�
�
�%��
���
��
�����
�%%�
���
��"
��
��������	
��;
��!��%�����
��
����
��!��%���
������
�$
<%�
������� 
�������
�%�
;����

���
�%�
������
�
�������
�%
��!��%����� 
��
����
���
9��"
���%;��	
��=��
��!��%�����
%�
���
���	
�%�

;���
;����

��




����
�>
����$
?�����	
�%
���
��!��%�����
�%������"
���
������"��	
���
�
��
�%������%�

�

��
���������
����%�
���
@����
;��
;����
�%���
����
�%
��;
��
��������
��!��%�����
��
���
���������$A60
B(*6,+C
D/*7,06
/(
8+E(F)
B(*6,+C
G��%��

�"
���
H	���
9�!��
I���%�
J��;%��
#9IJ&
���
H	���
9��"
���%�	�
���
�%�����
�
H	���
9%������"
����
������ 
���
%����
��������!�
 

�%���
�%��
���
��
�

%�
���%�����%�
�%�
������%���
��
��

�%�
��%��
������
�%�
��	
��%�	
���
�%����%�
���
���%�	�%��
H	���$
?��%�	�
���
�
��������!�
 
���
9��"

�%���
�%������
�%
;%��
;���
�������

�%
�%%�
��
���
����

����
	%!���
���
�"��

%�
�%�
��	
���%;��
��
��

���	��%��%%�

�%
�������"

����	��
 
;�����

�
 
%��%��������
 
���
��@�����
��!�
�%�

�%
���
�%��
�%
����
���
9��"
����
�@�������
�%�
��	
���
?HK
	%��
$


������%��������� 
%���
�����
������	
��	�����%�

���
�
�����
�
��
�����;���
���
��
�
��!��
�%;
��%�	�
�%
��������

�������
�%�	�
��%�$
H����
����
������	
���

���
������
 
���
�������
�
�%���"
�

�%
�����
������	
��
�%����%�


��!��
�"
LM?
%�
%����
��


����
��$
������%���������
�%���"
��
%
��@����

��"
	�%������%%�
������	
�%
��

���������
���
;������
;���
	�%������%%�
������
����!��"
NOPQRSTU
VPRT
WTXTYPZ[T\]
̂PR
_PQR
R̀a\bc]
WPYYaRU
d\
d\aYebcb
P̂
fg
hPR]i
d[TRcSa\
̀Ra\bc]
jPRRckPRbl
m̀Wno

pqrstuv
wxyz{txuw

u|qr
{rquwt{









��

������	
	��

���������������������������������������������������������� �������������������������!��������������!������"����������#��������������������$�%����������&�"����������#��!������"�����������������������������"������'�����������������"���������������� �������������� ����������"$�(�����������&�"����������#��"������'��������������������#���!����)��������������������������������$�*�����)�����������������+���������"���)�������"�����������������������������"�!������ �������,������-��"��,,����������������������������������,�������.���������) �������� �������#��������$�/�!����,��0��������,��#����,����������,��,������"����� �,��) ���������� ����,��"����!���"�����#��)�������������������������������������"�����$�12345�6789:;<3=>5?���?������@A��������B�#���,�����C���������������-�!����������������!������)�������?AB�

��#���,������������!��,�������0��$�?����!������)���,������������"��������������������������������#����)�0��������?AB�������!���,,���� �������������������%��,����D$�E������"����"������������������'��������������������������),���,��+�������%��,����F$�?������!������"�������!������������������������������������, �������������������"�������������"�������������"���������������������������������������������$�G7HH<I53J35K?�����������#�����������������"��������������,,������������#��)LM�NOPQRSOTUVQWX�YQZZ[W\]QẐ�/���������������������������"�����"��!���-�$M�_W\]̀[�NPaZbcQP\a\]QZ�dQR\[̂�&������"�����,��������������������������������������������)������ �,����������������������������$M�eZOaZW[f�YPQbb]ZŜ�%���������"������������������"� ��������!��!���� �,�����������������"���"���� �������,��#�����"����"$M�g\O[P�h[a\RP[b̂�?���������������,����������,�������������A"����i���������������j��,����kj��������i������ ����������,��#���������������������lD���i������#����������������A"����i������$mnn7852H35K�o35<pE����������������������������������������q��-���r���)��������+����"��"����������������-�������������#����������,�����������#���,�������������"��� ����)���+����� ���������������������,���������#�� �����,��s���������������+�����#������,,�������)�����������"�������������$�?���������+�����������,,�������)��������������#����������-������������.���-�)����������������������������������������)�������#��)����������������$�?�������������)�!�����������-�)����"��� ������������� ������������� �����#��)�������� ������������������,��)�,���������#���,������,,����������$





���������	�
���
�����	������
�����
����
�����
�������������
�����
�������
���

�
��
�
�������������
������

���� �!"#"$% �&''()"*#"$+�,�
��-�������������������.������/01�
��2345678�9:;�0��	������������<�����
��2���=�����<�������





��

�������	
��	��
��������	
�
����������
������� ������
�������������������
�	���
������������	�������������������� �����������������������������	���
��
�����
����
 ���
�����
�	
�
�����������
�����������
������ �!�"������#����$��
�����������
�����������������������
�����������
 %
��
����&�����"
!��������	����������������
"
��	�
��'()*+,�-./�01234�5676894�:;7<3�=
>?@�ABC@D�EFGFHID�GJ@G�@DKILMGNN@N�GOIPF�QR�GKJ@N�IS�TGKGDF�UGDCV�W@NF�IS�XGUU�YT@�GDC�NIPF?�IS���DC�EFJ@@FZGDIF?@J�MPOUHKU[\IWD@C�MJIM@JF[]�>?HN�NFGFHID�WHUU�N@JT@�GN�F?@�BGF@WG[�GDC�LPUFH\LICGU�?PO�SIJ�F?@�KHF[�WHF?�?IPNHDBV�@DF@JFGHDL@DFV�@LMUI[L@DF�GDC�N@JTHK@N�WHF?HD�KUIN@�MJÎHLHF[�FI�FJGDNHF]�_IJ�F?@�̀JNF�M?GN@�IS�LGaIJ�C@T@UIML@DF�b_HBPJ@�c]deV�DID\J@NHC@DFHGU�PN@NV�HDKUPCHDB�IS̀K@�GDC�KILL@JKHGU�WHUU�O@�C@NHBD@C�KUIN@NF�FI�F?@�_JIDFfPDD@J�NFGFHIDV�WHF?�UGDCNKGM@C�NPJSGK@�MGJgHDB�GDC�HDF@JKIDD@KF@C�M@C@NFJHGD�JIPF@N�FI�F?@�DIJF?�bNIPF?�IS��dJC�EFJ@@Fe]�hD�F?@�UIDB\F@JL�SPFPJ@�b_HBPJ@�c]ieV�LHC�FI�?HB?\JHN@�C@T@UIML@DF�WHUU�@̂F@DC�SIJ�LPUFHMU@�OUIKgN�NPJJIPDCHDB�F?@�NFGFHID]�ĵHNFHDB�NPJSGK@�MGJgHDB�GDC�TGKGDF�UGDC�D@GJ�F?@�_JIDFfPDD@J�EFGFHID�MJITHC@N�GD�HC@GU�UIKGFHID�

SIJ�G�LĤFPJ@�IS�PN@NV�WHF?�D@W�GDC�@D?GDK@C�GKFHT@�FJGDNMIJFGFHID�KIDD@KFHIDN�GDC�WG[̀DCHDB�F?GF�KIDD@KF�GKJINN�XGUU�YT@]�HDFI�kIWDFIWD]�AT@JFHL@V�PDC@JPFHUHl@C�UGDC�@GNF�IS�F?@�NFGFHID�WIPUC�MJITHC@�IMMIJFPDHFH@N�SIJ�?IPNHDB�HD̀UU�FI�@DKIPJGB@�GCCHFHIDGU�HDT@NFL@DF�GDC�FJGDNHF\IJH@DF@C�C@T@UIML@DF]mnonpqrsntu�vrrqwuxtyuynzhD�B@D@JGUV�kIWDFIWD�MJ@N@DFN�F?@�BJ@GF@NF�IMMIJFPDHF[�SIJ�?HB?\C@DNHF[V�LĤ@C\PN@�C@T@UIML@DF]�f@NHC@DFHGU�C@T@UIML@DF�N?IPUC�O@�LHC\JHN@�LPUFHSGLHU[ZGF�G�C@DNHF[�BJ@GF@J�F?GD�cR�CW@UUHDB�PDHFN�M@J�GKJ@ZGDC�HDKUPC@�NIL@�GKFHT@�BJIPDC�{IIJ�PN@bNe]�kIWDFIWD�?GN�N@@D�F?@�LINF�|}}~�����������}���������������













��������	
��	
	�
���������������������������	����
���
���
	
�����	����

����������
��
�	������
��

������������� !"��#$�$ "��%&&'!$��$ ()*����+����,	�
����-.�
/01234�567�8	����������
�	�9
�		
����	�:;��������<���	���
=













��

��������	
�
�������
���	�����
����	������������������	�������
�
��
����

���
�������������
����������	�	
���������������
����
��������	�
��
�
����
�������	
���
���	���������� �
���������	
�
������	
��������	�����������
���
	������������
����
��������������	��
�
���	�

���!���"����
��
	���
������#���	�
������	
���
	��
�
�������
�
	��	
�
�
�	��$
����� ���������
�����
��	���
��������
�������
��������
�������	
���
��� ��������������������	���������
������
������	����������
��#
�����
���
���
����
���
���	�
��������������
���	�
��
����
����	
�������������

�����#���	�
�������
����
 �	
�
����
�
������	�

��		����
��	�
��
�
���
���%
����
�	���������������	���
�
�
���&
������
����
�
���
�	������	
���
�
�	������

��������

��

���
������
����
 ���������		�
���
�����'�
����������������������
���	��
���()	��
�����	
�
�
�	��
�	��

��������

�����	����
�
��
��
���

���
���������
������
���	
��)����
���	�����������
�����
���	
����������!����
��������

����
����"
�������
��		 ��	�
�����	������
��������

�����������������
����
���
&��
	��������������������*+,-./0�1,2�34567�8-4926:�497�;.+9+<6.�=/>/?+5</9:0��@42/�*:,7A�+B�:C/�;,D/9/E*5-69DB6/?7�138�*A2:/<F�G-:C,-�@H�I/?2+9F�/:H�4?H

JKLMNOKM�PQ�MNRRKMMS��TUVV(WV�TU��WU)�XW�UYZUWU �(�UZ(W�

[\�]̂_̀a_bc�dêfghi�]̂jjb_akh̀â_�lm̂b̀�nod�	�������
�
��
�p�	
�	
�� �(�����%�
������Y���	�
�����
�
�����

������
�����	��		�
����
�
����������()�
������
��
����
�����
���Y	�����!�	
�����������	 �����������
�
	�����
�������
��(�����(��
��� �
�����	
�
��
�
���
��

�	���
�
�
�����	�
���	�

���	����
��
���	����
	 ��
����	 �	
����
	 �������	�

�	�����������
��
��
�
���
��	������

��
����������	���	�����!����� �(�����%�
��
����	������


�	�

�	���
�
���	����������
����
 �	�����	�	�
�
�
�����
����
�����
�������
���
��		�����q�����
��	����
����	�����������	
����	��� �	
��������

��������
���
��
������	���	�
����
�
��
��
��
������������������
����
����
�
	��
r\�ŝkbt�oct̂bukct�̀̂�vjwûxc�lkkctt�̀̂�yttc_̀ahz�{cuxakc�|chu�}uâuài�{̀h̀â_�~̂kh̀â_t����(���������	�
�
�
�
����	
���'��������
�p�������#���
��
���
��
�
�	��
����	
���������		����	�������	 ���	���
����
!���
��

�	��

�	 ���
!���
��

�������
��

�����
��	 ������
	
���	���������
	��V�����������#���
��
���
��
�
�	��
���������
����
�
	�������	
�
�
������	��(�����%�
������Y���	�
�����

�����
��
���
��

���	
��
���"��
�����������������	�

����
�	������
���	�
�
�
�
���
��	��X
�	�
��������

���
��
�Y�����	
��������	����
�
�
��
��
����
���#
�
�
��	���	�
�!�
��
��
�����������������
���
���(����������
����
��

�����
���
���	�
�����		 �����
��
�
��	������	��
��������

������
��
�������	�
��
�(�����%�
���������	�

����������
���

��
�����





��

������	
����	��
�����������
����
��	�����	�����
���������� !"��#��$����%&'�%()*�!'!"�%�+&,���)�������-�"�!,������'�&��-�,�%&"����������+�&$!�+�'&%%�#&���!,��.&�'��!���..&�-�#%�� &*�!�+�-�,�%&")���/�0.���1�� ����"������� !"��$!%%�!�'%*-��%&'�%�#*�!����������$�%%�����&��"�&2�� &*�!�+�"�&,!-������-��-,&'�'3�+�&*"�/��������� !"��'���!�'%*-��-!��'��2���'!�%�"���!'!"��!&��#3�"��������&��'����!)"%3�#����� ���-��+���)�����&�'&&�-!��������&*�'��1�!�.�����*'�*��1���-�"&%!'!��/�4�' &��!���!�*�!&���� �&*+ &*��� ��'&��!-&��'&*%-�#���!+�!2'����"����������-�.&�)�� ��#��!��&.�����$���+!&��%����$&�51�$ !' �)�3�!�'%*-��&� ����&�"�&2��&��"�!,�������!�!���� �������!��6��!'�#%3��!�-��&�� �!��%&'��!&���#�'�*���&.����%�������� &%-!�+�1�'�"!��%�!�,���)���1� !��&�31�&��)!��!&�/7����
��
	
8��9:
�	
�;�<��=
�;���=�>����	?��	�@
	�
��A����
	�B����C ��������,��!&*��$�3��D*�!�-!'�!&���'���!�'�������*#�!-3�.*�-!�+�.&���..&�-�#%�� &*�!�+�-�,�%&"����!�������!��E&���/�0����""�&�' �$&*%-�#���&����+����6!��!�+�%&'�%�.*�-!�+��&������!�/�F !%��+��������-��G*!�3������ ��)&��� �%".*%�.&�)��&.����!����'��.&���..&�-�#%�� &*�!�+�-�,�%&")����1�� ����.*�-!�+�

�&*�'��������%�&� !+ %3�'&)"��!�!,�1���-��*''����!���&��+*�������-/�C !��!���*����--���!+�!2'���%3��&�� ��&,���%%�-�,�%&")�����!)�%!��1���-�� ���.&���-�,�%&")����'&���1�)�5!�+�� ��"�&D�'��)&���' �%%��+!�+��&�'&)"%���/�C �&*+ ���'&&�-!����-�!�!�!��!,�1�0+-��1�F�#���H&*��31�� �!�����"�'�!,�� &*�!�+��*� &�!�!��1���-�&� ����+��'!���'&*%-�!�����-�-�,!�����"�&+��)��&�.&'*���6!��!�+�.*�-!�+�$!� !�������!��E&���1�$ ����%&$I!�'&)�����!-����� �,��� ��+���������''�����&�'�!�!'�%������"&����!&�����,!'�����-��)��!�!��/�J������
=��K�������L���MLL��=�����N���
�;�O�
	��
��P�Q������Q��	�C !��)&-�%�!�-*'���"�!,����-�,�%&"�����&�������!-��*�!���.&��%&$���!�'&)��&''*"�����#3��%%&$!�+�+�������-���!�31��!� ���!��� ��.&�)�&.����!�'������!���%%&$�-�-$�%%!�+�*�!���"����'��1�R&&����������!&�ST4UV�&��#*!%-!�+� �!+ �1�$ !' �+�����%%3�)������ ���)&��� &*�!�+�*�!���'���#��#*!%��&����3�+!,����!��/�C3"!'�%%31�"�&+��)���%%&$�!�'�������&.�#��$����WX���-�YX�"��'����&,���#���%!���"��)!���-�-���!�3�!���6' ��+��.&��� ��"�&,!�!&��&.��..&�-�#%�� &*�!�+/





��

�����������	
����

���������
���
������	���
���������������
���������
��
 ������
!
"�##
��$%���
�
���&�
�'
������#
���(����)
����
���
��#��*
����&��)
���
���������#
����%���
��
�%�����
���
��+�������
'%�%��
�'
���
,-�
��������.
���
/��#����������
0����1
#����
2�*
���������������
���
������3��
��������4�#�����
���
&�����#
������&
'��
���#����������.
���
�����1
��
���
��������
��
�������4�
�
31��
����#���
'��
���#����������
��
#����
�����
������%������
����
��&��
�����.
-�����)
���
������
��
��
���+���
�
&%���#���
'��
����������
�������
��
��+�
������&���
��
�����
��1�
�����.
567896:
;<7=>?@<@A9B �����#
�����+������
���#%��
�
���&�
�'
���(����
��#����
��
����+�
��������������)
����&�)
���
"�*3����&.
���
��(����*
�'
�����
���(����
���%#�
���%�
��
���
�����C����
��
��%�
���+���
��+�������
��
���
���%��
�������*
�������
�����)
���
�+���%�##*
����%&��%�
���
,-�
��������.
0��
D
���"�
���
#�������
�'
��������#
���+����
"�����
���
��%�*
����)
���
E��#
F
�������*
���(����
#�����
��
���
�����1.



5>G@
6AG
H>:8IJ
5K6AL@B ���
���
��#��*
����&��
����#*
��+�#+�
��+������&
���
��+����&)
��
�������&
��&%#������
��
��#�
�%�����
'%�%��
��+�#������.
0���
�'
�����
���������������
"�##
����
��
���%�
��
���
�����C����
��
���
���
��#��*
���
�#�����&
'�%�������
'��
����&�)
��+�#������)
���
��+�������.
M9K@=
N@I><<@AG698>AB�����
���
��+���#
���������#
���������������
����
"�##
������
��
�������
��+�#+�����
���
��������)
�����&)
���
�+��#�4#�
����%����.
0���
�'
�����
������&���
"�##
��$%���
��+���#
��&���O������
���
&��%��)
"���
��&���&
��
���������
��+�#+�����.



PQRSTU
VTTWXYZ
YRWT[
\]R̂ 
_
̀]RaTbW
bR̂ X̂WWTT
̂TTWXYZc





������������	�
������
������������� ������� 
�������������
�����������
����� �����! ����
"
������
�#��$�! %�#��

��&'��
����!�����
�(�)�#��($#!
���
��������
*��+*��!
��
����� �
����!!�,�����
��
!������!
����$
�#�
��������& -.
/01
234567.89:
;<=
>6.7
?@AA
0.<4B
938
>6.7
;966CD.3
E.<:5F968 G-.
HIJ9K
L55
;.DMC49:
>6.7
98N9I534
35COB=.6B..8D
938
D<66.<38C3O
D46554D G-.
PQ38
046554R;966CD.3
E.<:5F968
D494C.3
4B6.<OB
DB.MMC3O
I53456D
S5D4
.>
;966CD.3
E.<:5F968 G-B6.<OB
98N9I534
=:.ITD
3596
QU4B
046554RH.36.5
E.<:5F968
D494C.3 G-B6.<OB
=:.ITD
98N9I534
4.
;CD4.6CI
QU4B
046554
3596
4B5
V6.34W<3356
D494C.3 G����� �
!���*��+
�������� ���
���
���������!
���(��
��������
!������
����!& VC::
C3
7CDDC3O
DC85S9:T
.3
X.<346K
;C::D
L6CF5
59D4
.>
;966CD.3
E.<:5F968 GVC::
C3
7CDDC3O
DC85S9:T
.3
?@AA
0.<4B
=54S553
;966CD.3
E.<:5F968
938
-9K:.6
YF5Z GVC::
C3
7CDDC3O
DC85S9:T
.3
PQ38
046554[
P?4B
046554[
PU4B
046554[
938
\93
E<653
YF53<5
3596
PQ38
046554R;966CD.3
E.<:5F968
D494C.3 GVC::
C3
7CDDC3O
DC85S9:T
.3
=:.ITD
3.64B
.>
V6.34W<3356
D494C.3
938
1-Y].S358
M96I5:

S5D4
.>
/9::
YF53<5 G���!�������
��� �*��!
��
���(��
���̂���!
,��*���
����!�����!
���
 �#����!& 0B.MMC3O
I53456
.3
4B5
S5D4
DC85
.>
;966CD.3
E.<:5F968
=54S553
P_D4RPQ38
046554D G`>aI5
=<C:8C3O
.3
4B5
3.64B
DC85
.>
QU4B
046554
=54S553
b<C3IK
YF53<5Rc9ITD.3
YF53<5 G��� ���
��,�����
#(,!
d��
,�+�
!#���e
,�+�
���+��!e
�)!������
������e
�),�+�
������e
���
��#��
f�!�g��!�
����
����!���������
������!
��
+��
��������!
��
%$���& XC4K
SC::
3558
4.
I.3DC856
.M5694C3O
9O6557534D
SC4B
DB9658
7.=C:C4K
M6.FC856D
4.
98865DD
85DC658
M:9I57534
.>
65349:
TC.DTD
938
85FCI5DZ G����� �
�����!������
���������!
d��
���� �
����!���������
(!��!
��
+��
��������!
��
��������
!������
����! 
hY88
i585D46C93
;K=6C8
E59I.3
j9T9
;Y/J
=59I.3k
94
PP68
046554R;966CD.3
E.<:5F968
h/.6T
SC4B
1L̀ -
4.
D4<8K
SB54B56
9
M585D46C93
DCO39:
I.<:8
=5
S96693458
=9D58
.3
D9>54K
.6
<D9O5
>9I4.6D G GY88
=<:=.<4D[
BCOB]FCDC=C:C4K
I6.DDS9:T[
938
8C65I4C.39:
I<6=
697MD
SC4B
46<3I9458
8.75D
94
PQ38
046554R;966CD.3
E.<:5F968 G

l	��
mn
opqrsq
tuvwxy
zwxx{zu|wxt
}~s�
�qssqp
����q�s~�~s�
�qs}qq�
s�q
���
�r�����
s�q
����~sr��
r��
��}�s�}��
r��
�p��~�q
q���~q�s
r��
����~�sq�s
�qp�~�q
r����
s�q
}r�n






������������	�
������

�	��������������������� ������� ��������������
�� �!� ���"
#� ��$�����% !���
&
��"���
!'��(�% )�'��
���*
+!�����,��-
#� ��$�
�����%������
���������%
.��
����$�
����% ��������
,%��%
��
/��
"�������%
��
 �������
%������
����%

011
234253678
9:;9<=:7:2:4:6>
?@577AB4C8
BD1
1:@E?6:5DB4
?3@2
@BFG7
A:69
6@3D?B6E1
15FE7
B6
HI69
J6@EE6KLB1:75D
0=ED3E M011
234253678
9:;9<=:7:2:4:6>
?@577AB4C8
BD1
1:@E?6:5DB4
?3@2
@BFG7
A:69
6@3D?B6E1
15FE7
B6
HI69
J6@EE6KNEOOE@75D
0=ED3E M011
234253678
9:;9<=:7:2:4:6>
?@577AB4C8
BD1
1:@E?6:5DB4
?3@2
@BFG7
A:69
6@3D?B6E1
15FE7
B6
HI69
J6@EE6KNB?C75D
0=ED3E M011
234253678
9:;9<=:7:2:4:6>
?@577AB4C8
BD1
1:@E?6:5DB4
?3@2
@BFG7
A:69
6@3D?B6E1
15FE7
B6
HI69
J6@EE6KP3:D?>
0=ED3E M011
?ED6E@
:74BD1
6@BOQ?
?B4F:D;
B6
HI69
J6@EE6KR@?9B@1
0=ED3E M011
9:;9<=:7:2:4:6>
?@577AB4C
B6
HHD1
J6@EE6KSEE=E7
0=ED3E
B7
B@EB
@E1E=E45G7 M011
GE1E76@:BD
9>2@:1
2EB?5D
O5@
F:1<245?C
?@577:D;
B6
HT69
J6@EE6KUB44
0=ED3E8
:D
B??5@1BD?E
A:69
69E
R;1ED
V@BD7G5@6B6:5D
LB76E@
W4BD M M011
2342<5367
65
:FG@5=E
GE1E76@:BD
=:7:2:4:6>
B6
:D6E@7E?6:5D7
5O
HX@1
J6@EE6KUB44
0=ED3E
BD1
HI69
J6@EE6KUB44
0=ED3E M011
1:@E?6:5DB4
?3@2
@BFG7
BD1
6@3D?B6E1
15FE7
65
:FG@5=E
0Y0
B??E77:2:4:6>
B6
HX@1
J6@EE6KUB79:D;65D
Z534E=B@18
BD1
F51:O>
7:;DB4
6:F:D;
65
B445A
F5@E
6:FE
O5@
GE1E76@:BD7
65
?@577
UB79:D;65D
Z534E=B@1 M011
2:CE
1E6E?65@
455G7
GE@
69E
R;1ED
Z:?>?4E
LB76E@
W4BD
B6
HT69
J6@EE6KL5D@5E
Z534E=B@1
BD1
H[69
J6@EE6KL5D@5E
Z534E=B@1
:D6E@7E?6:5D7\ M#���(����
]�/�
.���"���
��%�(�
����
%������
��%�(�
��
������̂�
���_���%
]��̀���
,%��% YE7:;D
G@5G57E1
2:CE
79B@E
76B6:5D
B6
HI69
J6@EE6KNEOOE@75D
0=ED3E
65
B??E77
2:CE7
O@5F
76@EE68
D56
7:1EAB4C8
65
@E13?E
?5Da:?67
A:69
6@BD7:6
@:1E@7 MbD6E;@B6E
2:CE
4BDE
:D65
76B6:5D
1E7:;D
5D
UB79:D;65D
Z534E=B@1
:D
O@5D6
5O
c??4E7
V9EB6E@
65
@E13?E
237K2:CE
?5Da:?67 M M!���������
���
��d��
e��
��%�(� M

f	��
gh
�ijklj
mnopqr
spqqtsnupqm
vwlx
yjllji
z{||jzlw}wl~
yjlvjj|
lxj
���
zk����

lxj
x{��wlk�

k|�
�{v|l{v|

k|�
�i{}w�j
j��zwj|l
k|�
z{|�w�lj|l
�ji}wzj
k�{|�
lxj
vk~h






��

��������	
	�����
	
�������	������������������� ������� ��������������� !"�#�"���$�%�"��&�����' #����(���$��!�#)��*�' +�)������,%���*�����������������"-.$���'"���'�/��)�'�����������'�����"�������0��-'������1���2�����''�.�$��!2�����"$�����3��*, 456789:�;9�9:6789:�<:<85=>8;?�;@�AB=C=�DA=5:�E=D:<�;?�D>=>8;?�5;?5:A>D F F#��������'�����1������)����'��-$��G1-�������$�������'�*�������-�����"���'������'��$�H� F#�������$���$!���I����*���/�!'�������*).��)���'�����'�����������', FJ'��'-'�����.$����'�*���$�����'��������'���'������'�����'��������"��&������������&�$�"�����"������',� FK�"$��������L� �M�!I����*����*���, 4<<�N=OP?<8?Q�D8Q?=Q:�=9;7?<�D>=>8;?D�>;�R:O�<:D>8?=>8;?D�7D8?Q�SQ<:?TD�U=OP?<8?Q�V:D8Q?�W78<: F

X�
��YZ��[\]̂_̀ab�cdefghcij�kflejh�mn_]̂an�̀[�b[op_][qb[m�mǹm�pr�sbt\]qp[a�m]�bob_u][b�̀[v�_br̂tmr�p[�vpob_rb�_pvb_rnpw��p[\t̂vp[a�rm̂vb[mr��s]_xb_r��̀[v�oprpm]_r�̀[v�̀\\brrpyptpmu�z]_�̀tt�̀yptpmpbr�̀[v�q]yptpmu�q]vbrZ





��

��������	
	�����
	
�������	�������
���������������� ! �" #$%&�'%��()�*�+,�-../00�+1�2130��,1�0�45��-4��/00/4+�-��0/67�./0�89:;<<9=>?@A;= BC;D9:@ 89:;<<9=>?@A;=�EFG9H?GA@?I�J<GC;K9<9=@L H;>9�M�B;IA:F�HN?=O9L P@N9C�89:QR9K9I;G�?�EPR�PK9CI?F�S;=9�T;C�GCA;CA@F�L@?@A;=�?C9?LQ UVWXYW�XZ�[\WV]X̂�_[ZW�̀XaWb�[Z�YcW�aYXYd[Z�ŶeWa�XZb�eVd[VdŶ�aYXYd[Z�f[ZfWeYa ghiG?=>�B9C<A@@9>�jC9?L�T;C�k@l>9=@�m;lLA=OQ� nW\dWo�WpdaYdZq�_[ZdZq� gh=N?=:9�9iAL@A=O�G;IA:A9L�@;�9=:;lC?O9�OC9?@9C�C9LA>9=@A?I�A=rIIQ nW\dWo�WpdaYdZq�_[ZdZq� gH;=LA>9C�C9r=9<9=@L�@;�G?CsA=O�G;IA:A9L�=9?C�@C?=LA@Q nW\dadY�eXVtdZq�VWuvdVWwWZYa�f[ZfvVVWZY]̂�odYc�X�ZWo�[\WV]X̂�_[ZW gH;<<l=A:?@9�>9K9I;G<9=@�G;IA:A9L�?=>�A=:9=@AK9LQ x[Vt�odYc�eXVYZWVa�Y[�f[ZYdZvW�X�Yo[yoX̂�bdafvaad[Z�X̀[vY�YcW�\dad[Z gzL9�N;lLA=O�L@l>A9L�@;�A=T;C<�N;lLA=OQ U[ZbvfY�X�aYvb̂�dZ�f[[VbdZXYd[Z�odYc�VWf[wwWZbWb�c[vadZq�o[Vt�qV[ve g{9?>�@N9�>AL:lLLA;=�;T�N;lLA=O�=99>L�|F�};CsA=O�}A@N�9iAL@A=O�?>K;:?@9L�?=>�A=@9C9L@LQ U[[VbdZXYW�odYc�WpdaYdZq�qV[vea�XZb�VWqd[ZX]�c[vadZq�dZYWVWaYa� gH;=>l:@�?�>9K9I;G<9=@�;GG;C@l=A@F�L@l>FQ ~Z\[]\W�dZYWVWaYWb�eV[eWVŶ�[oZWVa�dZ�vZbWVaYXZbdZq�bW\W][ewWZY�e[YWZYdX] g





��

�������	
��
�
��������	���	�������	�������	���������	����	 ����	!��"#	$�%#	���	&������	������'������	������	��������	��	���&	�(&��(���	���	������	���	�������	����������	��������	��	���	)(&��(��������	*����+,-./0123.4/4530	6������	�������	�������	���	������7��	����	���	7�	�����'��	7"	�����	���	��������	������(����	��	7����	���	��&&������	��������������	������	 ����8�	9:�	����,;<=>	?@AB>C	B@	;DE@@F	G;?H;I	JK@LK<M	���	(���	����	��	���	6:�6	N�����(	��	��	������	���	���������	��������	������	O���	P,Q	��	R,S	(����	��	������	��	O��T	��	7�T�,	%�����7��	�������	���	7�	����	���	7���	���U��������������	���	��������������	V&�"�����	�(&����(����	W	&��(����"	��O	����O��T�#	7��	����	������	&���(���	(��T����#	�������#	7��"���	&��T���#	���,X	�"&�	&��Y����,	Z���	�������	�������	�������	O�����	���	����	���	��������#	���	6:�6	N�����(	�����	����	(��"	��	���	�(&����(����	������[��	�����	\���	P	��	���	N���,HE>	;AK=<D>	HK<]Ĉ@KB<B_@]	JK@LK<M	G;HJI6�N	��	��(���������	7"	Z������	̀����	:�������	!������	���	&�������	�������	�������	����	���	7�	����	��	�������U���	����O�"�	V����	��	a�������	9��������X	���	���	&��Y����	����	������	����[�	��(���	V����	��	�������	��&����	�(&����(����	��	������	�����&��������	&��Y����X,	̀������	��b����(����	���&�����	����	(�Y��	����O�"	��	�������	��&����"	�(&����(����	(���	7�	��������	��	���	[���	&����	��	���	��������"U���&���	:�������	�����&��������	N���	��	7�	�����7��,

HE>	c>d>K<F	e@]L>CB_@]	f_B_L<B_@]gh_K	iA<F_Bj	GefhiI	JK@LK<M����	&�����(	��	����	��(���������	7"	Z������	�̀���	:�������	!������#	&�������	�������	��	&��Y����	����	�(&����	���	b�����"#	O����	O����	�������	�������	���	������	�����&��������	����������,	 ����	!��"	��	�����7��	��	���	��	�	&��Y���	�&�����	���	�	�������	�&&��������	���	�����&��������	�(&����(����,	���	!*%k	&�����(	O����	���	���"	����	�����U���(	&��Y����	��T�	7��"���	���	&���������	����������#	7��	����	���	&��(�����	��	�����������	(����#	���������	�����������#	���	)����������	�����&��������	6"���(#	O����	���	��T��"	��	����	�	�����[����	�(&���	����	���	����U���(,HK<]Ĉ@KB<B_@]	hFB>K]<B_l>C	JK@LK<M	GHhJI�%N	��	�	�������	&�����(	��(���������	7"	Z������	�̀���	:�������	!������	���	���	 ����Um�"���	��7���'��	����,�%N	�����	���	����	��	7����	7��"���	���	&���������	����������,	n����7��	&��Y����	�������	������������#	&�������#	���o��	������	��	�����	����������#	���	���	7�	�+&�����	��	�������	����[�	���(���#	��������#	���	%p%	�������7����"	&��Y����,	*��"	��	���	�������	����	�(&����(����	��������	��	����	��&���	�����	7�	����������	���	�%N	�����,	HE>	HK<]Ĉ@KB<B_@]	<]d	q<]d	rC>	e@]]>DB_@]	GHqeI	JK@LK<M	���	�m!	&�����(	��	�	&���������&	7��O���	Z :̀!#	6���	m�T�	!����"#	$p �#	���	$�%,	̀����	(�"	7�	����	��	&������	���������	����������	��	��(&����	���������	�������#	&������	&����#	�������	�������#	�(���	&����"#	��	������	��	��"	&��U������&(���	����������	����	��&&���	���	&�����(	�����,	�����	�����	�������s	VPX	(�+�(�'���	���	�����	��	





���

������	
����
����	���������
������������������� !"�#��$���%�����&'!"�#��$����#��(�)�*��+)���,��*-.*�)/�����-$������*�����0�0�)�������1�,��)��*�����+,�+��(�2��)�(���#��+�3�&'!"*%���4�(��%�����-����2�)����*#-����(�����2����+��0���4��+,����,���-+����*�./��+(�*��+$��+�+�+5��-*�+$������+�*�*-,���*�*�����.-*�+�**�*%�,�������*,����*%�,���-+��/�,�+���*%���,3�!����+��+���*����,������6�.*��+)����������/���#��(��������(�*��0���*�)�+�*���(�+$��+���45�+,����,���-+����*37���8	�9�
����	�������7
��!���:��#��,�+�� !"��*���;+�+,�����+,�+��(�������*-##���*��+(�*���+���+���*����,�.-��)�+$*3����,�+�.���+��00�,��(����������,�������00��)�.�����-*�+$%��+,�-)�+$���1�)5-*��)�(���#��+�*��������(��,�����,����*#�,���+�����;�*��<�����+)���*�)�+,�*��+�����-##���<���*3� �4�(��%������������+�/���0�4�.-��)�+$*��+�����,����)���4��,����/�.�����$�.���0������*����1�,��)��*3=���	�>�?	�@��!�����������+/�0�)�����$��+��)�����*������,�+�.��-����2�)�����+��+,��)�(���#��+���0��00��)�.�����-*�+$��+)�,���-+��/��**��*3�"���-+����*�����-$��-������,�-+��/�����.�,���+$������,�����(���+�������-����2����+��0���+$5*��+)�+$�$��+��#��$���*�*-,���*� A'B%�"CDE%�BFG%��+)�CA!����#��+�0����+)���#����+��!AC�4���������+�*��0�*�,�����H-��/3�+�#����,-���%�-����2����+��0�0�)��������+*#�������+�)�����*�*-,���*��-�0�,��!��+*#�������+�F��$����I�!FJ��+)�"�+$�*���+�'���$����+��+)�G���K-����/�I"'GKJ�0����H-���.���!AC���*�.�,�����+,���*�+$�/�,����+3�G*�+���)��������%�LMN"�,-���+��/��)��+�*���*����*��0�)�����#��$���*3

"����*���/�+$�������+���+��00��)�.��%����+*#�������+�����+��)�-+��*��(��������,�+�.�$�+�./����+)�+$�0�)����� A'B�.��,O�$��+�*3�P+��*�.-����4���� A'B�$��+�*��-*�������+��00��)�.���0�����#����)���+$�+$�0����;(�����:��/���*�.-����/��+,���*���+�#��,���0�������*�#����)��1#���*3�B1��+)�+$����*��#����)*��*��+��4�/�������+���+���-*�+$��00��)�.����/�+�������+*#�������+���+�*3�C-���������,��+$�+$�+��-����+)��(����.����/��0����*��$��+�*��+)�#��$���*%�������*��-�)�.����)�)�,���)�*��00�#��*�+�0���$��+��,���)�+����+�4����+�A$)�+�"��/Q*�*��003R8@��'-+�,�#����+)�������$�(��+��+�*�,�+�-*��#��,��)*�0��������*�����0���1��1��#��.�+)*����*�,-���0-+)�+$�0����00��)�.�����-*�+$3�G�*��O+�4+��*�����$�$����(�+-��.�+)*��+)��-���0����/���-*�+$�.�+)*%����/����#�;+�+,������$�$�*�0�����4��+,����;�*������������.-/��*��+)S������#�0-+)�����#��)-,���+��0�+�4�-+��*������+�*�����������00��)�.��������4��+,����0������*3TUV>�9�T	�W����T�	�@�	�X�Y�A$)�+�"��/���*���#��(�+���,��)��+�#���+���+$�4����#��(����*�,����)�(���#��*3��-*���+�+$��1�*��+$��+)�,�����+$�+�4�#���+��*��#*�4����,�+��+-��������#�)�(�)�+)*��+)�.-��)����O�������+�-�3�F���+��*��#*�,�+��+,�-)��)���,��;+�+,����#����,�#����+�./�#���+��*����*��#�/�.����*����)��$�����+�����,���)�+������*�-�,�*%��+0��*��-,�-��%��+)�#���,��*3G+,�����+*���-���+*�����-$��-������,����)���,�-�)�.��*�$+�;,�+��#���+��*��+)�0��������.�*�*��0���+�4���$��+���+��4��O%�4��,����/��+,�-)��������+�+#��;�����#��(�����+�����*�����������+�1���,�.�/����)������������,����+*�.�,�-*���0�������*��������)�+$*%�,�#������+(�*���+�%���*���/%������**��+3





���

�����	
���	
�����
������	��������	
���	���	����
	�	���������������	���	
����

����
	��� ��!���
�"�#$�%��&�'�����	
��!����!

��	�
�&

��"�$�
	������()���
	�����
����	�*�$�
��*"�#)$)�������"����
+�
����,"�-�������..���)������)�
�.�

�
���/��
��*�.���.0�
����	�*������������!
����

1"�������������������
��"��������	�*��������
�����������*"�2�
������3)���
���
��	
��$	��������������"����������	��������
�"�$����4�1���
���*"�%�
�
���5
	��1�
�
��"�6��*����()'�
�
�	�����
���	
��&

��"����

���	�*�7
���"������+�
����,"�-������..�	�)

�.
��

���	�*8
���0'��	�	
��#���"����
+�
����,"�-2�������..���)���	�	
�����)

�.�������/��
	��/�

�+
9.�

�/	��������	��/�����
�0:

1"�;����
"�4
�����"�$������	�"�����;�	���
�1"����	�"�2

�������
�������

�<
�
�=
���	���
���
���������*�	��
������

������
	����=
���	���


	�

�"��=�%"�-�������..���)	���)

�.��/�
�����.���
���.���(.��.2

�/�����
�����/!

/<
�
/=
���	�/�
���
>�=�%)���0���
����������&���
���%���"��������	�*"�-�������..���)
�����	�*)�
�.�
�����������
.?	��.��(�.&���
��/%���/���3/������@+	���A02

��*"����	�"����%"�2�1	���$������

�$�������:
��	��"�%�$�B�	�1�
����3C"�-�������..���)�����	��)

�.��+�	���	
��.�
������.D�CCC(E.0����=��5����
�5�����%
���	�	
��
� �%���
�F�"����=�"�!�+
��
*����3"�-�������..����
)

�.��/�
�����.���
���.���3.��.���=�>5����
/5����>5
�
�	��)���0���=����
+�����������
+�	���2����������$�
����	����

����

�	���=
���	�����	�+	�	�*"����=�"��
���+�
����3"�-�������..����
)

�.����.��
+/������/��	������
.0���=��#
+���$�
�������	���&�	��"����=�"������+�
����,"�-�������..����
)

�.��+�	���	
�.�
+��/��
���/���	��/��	��.0





���

������	�
��
��������	����������������������������������� ����!���
�����"#
�$�����%��&�#����'�������(�)���%��#
�$�����%��&�#�����	�*�+)������,������������-�)�.������.�"#�/�
��
������������
�����*��.�����#�/�������������������.���*�+�	��
�!0.��
�������
���!����
���!	�$�-��+�
��
��
����!�������
�!���*��.���"#�/���	�(�$�
��1�

�*�����#�/���	�
�������*��-�
��#�/��������������������.���*�+�!�+�����2�-���0����!�&!��.������0����!/��
��!�	2�����,�'��*��3 4��	4
�������*4�-�
4 �,�,����5"#�/����
���!����
����	�$�-��+�
��6��	7�	����
�8.���-�
����#�/��	�*�+)���������������������������.���*�+�!�+�����2�-���	��
�!0.��
������	���		����
8.���-�
��2�
�-	��&�������9:�;<
����5"#����
%���+��&�:������<�.*����
���*��)������,��������������������.��������"=����*��2��
��;����
�-�1�.
*�-����9!�����;����
�-����
���������
��-�
��=2;1��	�*�+)������,������������&�*������.)-�*����
��;��!�.)-�*����
��;��4���942�>/(���&"=�)���1�.
�%��-�

�
��	�$����
���*��)������,�����������������)��*�.
�%.������$��-�

�
��"







 4 

Exhibit B 
  



DRAFT MARCH 7,  2019

MIDVALE STATION AREA MASTER PLANS

7200 SOUTH STATION
CENTER STREET STATION

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
TDRAFT MARCH 7,  2019

D
R
A
FTDRAFT MARCH 7,  2019

DR
AF
TCENTER STREET STATION

D
R
A
FT

CENTER STREET STATION

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T



1

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Transformation of the two station areas will occur through an intensi�cation of land 
uses to support the additional public and private investment envisioned in the area.  
�at investment will occur on a project-by-project basis. Each of these projects can, 
and should, catalyze signi�cant transformation in the area.  �e projects must meet 
minimum urban design standards and occur in conjunction with the transformation 
of the streets and public space network in each of the station areas. �is Plan identi�es 
the most likely timing of catalytic projects in each of the station areas as well as the 
neighborhoods’ preferences for urban design considerations.  �e recommended 
illustrative plan for each station area includes:

1. Areas most likely to redevelop in the:

a) Near term – in the next �ve years,

b) Mid-term – in 5-10 years,

c) Long-term – beyond 10 years,

2.  �e massing and height preferences of participants in neighborhood meetings 
for each of the catalytic areas.

3. �e street network and public space concepts

4. �e street and public space typology descriptions for the station areas, and

5. �e preferred mix of land uses in each of the station areas.

7200 SOUTH STATION AREA

�e 7200 South Station area presents an opportunity for redevelopment and 
transformation of a formerly high-producing retail area. To maximize the value 
of past infrastructure investments and address increasing tra�c pressure, the area 
should be redeveloped to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access in the area and 
increase opportunities for residents and visitors to park once and walk to multiple 
establishments.  

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan vision 
principles:

1. Transformative through urban design and land use.

2.  Increase human designed space (as opposed to automobile designed space) to 
25-30 percent.

3. Connect the area to the rest of the community.

4. Focus on hotels and hospitality.

5.  Create a cohesive brand for the area as a regional entry point to the community 
and a gateway to recreation.

Achievement of the 7200 South station area vision relies on catalytic projects. 
Opportunities for projects consistent with the vision lie primarily within the 
areas currently zoned TOD or TODO as identi�ed in Figure EX-1.  Some longer-
term opportunities were identi�ed on the north side of 7200 South. Catalytic 
opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 years are identi�ed as “near-term”. 
“Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in the next 5-10 years and “long-term” 
opportunities will take longer than 10 years to occur.  �e illustrative plans also 
identify the location of known current opportunities and areas where land use and 
density should be constrained to bu�er adjacent neighborhoods.

Executive Summary

D
R
A
FT

sing and height preferences of participants in neighborhood meetings 

D
R
A
FT

sing and height preferences of participants in neighborhood meetings 

eet and public space typology descriptions for the station areas, and

D
R
A
FT

eet and public space typology descriptions for the station areas, and

rred mix of land uses in each of the station areas.

D
R
A
FT

rred mix of land uses in each of the station areas.

�e 7200 South Station area presents an opportunity for redevelopment and 

D
R
A
FT

�e 7200 South Station area presents an opportunity for redevelopment and 
transformation of a formerly high-producing retail area. To maximize the value 

D
R
A
FT

transformation of a formerly high-producing retail area. To maximize the value 
of past infrastructure investments and address increasing tra�c pressure, the area 

D
R
A
FT

of past infrastructure investments and address increasing tra�c pressure, the area 
should be redeveloped to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access in the area and 

D
R
A
FT

should be redeveloped to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access in the area and 
increase opportunities for residents and visitors to park once and walk to multiple D

R
A
FT

increase opportunities for residents and visitors to park once and walk to multiple 

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan vision 

D
R
A
FT

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan vision 

ansformative through urban design and land use.

D
R
A
FTansformative through urban design and land use.

ease human designed space (as opposed to automobile designed space) to 

D
R
A
FTease human designed space (as opposed to automobile designed space) to 

25-30 percent.

D
R
A
FT25-30 percent.

3.

D
R
A
FT3. Conne

D
R
A
FTConnect the area to the rest of the community.

D
R
A
FTct the area to the rest of the community.

4.

D
R
A
FT4. Foc

D
R
A
FTFocus on hotels and hospitality.

D
R
A
FTus on hotels and hospitality.

5.

D
R
A
FT

5. Cr

D
R
A
FT

Create a cohesive brand for the area as a regional entry point to the community 

D
R
A
FT

eate a cohesive brand for the area as a regional entry point to the community 
and a gateway to recreation.

D
R
A
FT

and a gateway to recreation.

Achievement of the 7200 South station area vision relies on catalytic projects. 

D
R
A
FT

Achievement of the 7200 South station area vision relies on catalytic projects. 
Opportunities for projects consistent with the vision lie primarily within the 

D
R
A
FT

Opportunities for projects consistent with the vision lie primarily within the 
areas currently zoned TOD or TODO as identi�ed in Figure EX-1.  Some longer-

D
R
A
FT

areas currently zoned TOD or TODO as identi�ed in Figure EX-1.  Some longer-
term opportunities were identi�ed on the north side of 7200 South. Catalytic 

D
R
A
FT

term opportunities were identi�ed on the north side of 7200 South. Catalytic 
opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 years are identi�ed as “near-term”. 

D
R
A
FT

opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 years are identi�ed as “near-term”. 
“Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in the next 5-10 years and “long-term” 

D
R
A
FT

“Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in the next 5-10 years and “long-term” 
opportunities will take longer than 10 years to occur.  �e illustrative plans also 

D
R
A
FT

opportunities will take longer than 10 years to occur.  �e illustrative plans also 
identify the location of known current opportunities and areas where land use and 

D
R
A
FT

identify the location of known current opportunities and areas where land use and 
density should be constrained to bu�er adjacent neighborhoods.

D
R
A
FT

density should be constrained to bu�er adjacent neighborhoods.



2

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

Figure EX-1 – 7200 South Station Area Catalytic Opportunities Illustrative Plan

�e intensity of use within the areas of catalytic opportunity should be adequate to support additional investment in public space and create opportunities 
for new retail and restaurant uses in the area.  Figure EX-2 illustrates the intensity of use contemplated by the 7200 South Station Area plan.  D

R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Figure EX-1 – 7200 South Station Area Catalytic Opportunities Illustrative PlanD
R
A
FT

Figure EX-1 – 7200 South Station Area Catalytic Opportunities Illustrative PlanDR
AF
T

�e intensity of use within the areas of catalytic opportunity should be adequate to support additional investment in public space and create opportunities D
R
A
FT

�e intensity of use within the areas of catalytic opportunity should be adequate to support additional investment in public space and create opportunities 



3

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive SummaryExecutive Summary

Figure EX-2 – 7200 South 

Station Area Catalytic 

Opportunities Intensity 

Illustrations

1a Intent: Locate high intensity residential development with ground floor retail along 7200 South. 
Retail facing sidewalks creates a pedestrian friendly feel. Medium intensity residential buffers existing 
single family housing from this higher intensity use. This housing will  benefit from proximity and 
accessibility of the TRAX station, bordering a new shared street that connects the area east to the 
station and beyond. 

2a - b Intent: Create low density residential developments to buffer the existing neighborhoods from 
higher intensity development in the station area. Housing near the 7200 S. station would allow new 
residents to move freely in and out of Midvale without relying on a personal vehicle. This placement 
would also reduce the impact of new residents on local traffic.

3a Intent: Locate office development near TRAX station. This allows for workers to commute via transit 
in and out of Midvale and take advantage of the retail and services near the station during the workday.  
Personnel from office developments can take advantage of the human oriented spaces and streets, as 
well as the hospitality supportive uses and amenities throughout the area.

4a Intent: Place new complimentary commercial within the station area north of 7200 South to 
encourage activity along both sides of the street. New street crossings will allow for ease of movement 
for visitors and residents.

5a Intent: An upcoming medium density housing development located along new shared street 
concept. This development may also include ground floor retail located along the shared street.

6a - d Intent: Place hotels and similar developments throughout the station area to create a hospitality 
hub in the 7200 S station area for visitors utilizing recreation amenities and infrastructure. Visitors 
can use ski bus-lines and the station to move in and out of this area. With the addition of retail and 
commercial that compliment the vision of a hospitality and recreation hub on 7200 South, the need for 
visitors to have a  personal vehicle is greatly reduced.

7200 SOUTH STATION LAND USE AND INTENSITY CONCEPT

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

 Locate high intensity residential development with ground floor retail along 7200 South. 

D
R
A
FT

 Locate high intensity residential development with ground floor retail along 7200 South. 
Retail facing sidewalks creates a pedestrian friendly feel. Medium intensity residential buffers existing 

D
R
A
FT

Retail facing sidewalks creates a pedestrian friendly feel. Medium intensity residential buffers existing 
single family housing from this higher intensity use. This housing will  benefit from proximity and 

D
R
A
FT

single family housing from this higher intensity use. This housing will  benefit from proximity and 
accessibility of the TRAX station, bordering a new shared street that connects the area east to the D

R
A
FT

accessibility of the TRAX station, bordering a new shared street that connects the area east to the 

 Create low density residential developments to buffer the existing neighborhoods from D
R
A
FT

 Create low density residential developments to buffer the existing neighborhoods from 
higher intensity development in the station area. Housing near the 7200 S. station would allow new D

R
A
FT

higher intensity development in the station area. Housing near the 7200 S. station would allow new 
residents to move freely in and out of Midvale without relying on a personal vehicle. This placement D

R
A
FT

residents to move freely in and out of Midvale without relying on a personal vehicle. This placement DR
AF
T

would also reduce the impact of new residents on local traffic.D
R
A
FT

would also reduce the impact of new residents on local traffic.

 Locate office development near TRAX station. This allows for workers to commute via transit D
R
A
FT

 Locate office development near TRAX station. This allows for workers to commute via transit 
in and out of Midvale and take advantage of the retail and services near the station during the workday.  D

R
A
FT

in and out of Midvale and take advantage of the retail and services near the station during the workday.  

7200 SOUTH STATION LAND USE AND INTENSITY CONCEPT

D
R
A
FT

7200 SOUTH STATION LAND USE AND INTENSITY CONCEPT



4

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

�e intensities in the Illustrative Plan re�ect the preferred alternative land use intensity developed 
through the public meeting process.  Table EX-1 identi�es the preferred land uses and intensities 
generated in the public meeting process for the immediate station area.

TABLE EX-1: PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE LAND USE INTENSITY - 7200 SOUTH PLANNING AREA

LAND USE ACRES INTENSITY

Residential - Townhomes 2 50 DU/Acre

Residential - High Density 3 70 DU/Acre

Retail 3 41,500 SF/Acre

Office 1 216,000 SF/Acre

Industrial 0 0 SF/Acre

Hotel 2 189 Rooms/Acre

Human-focused spaces are the most important component of the 7200 South Station Area Plan. Input 
from area residents, property owners and transit riders reinforced the importance of including human 
scaled connections and amenities throughout the station area to support and bene�t current and new 
residents, employees and visitors to the area. �e illustrative plan in Figure EX-3 identi�es a possible 
network of connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides connectivity 
to and from the station to existing and future development.  

Executive Summary

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TTABLE EX-1: PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE LAND USE INTENSITY - 7200 SOUTH PLANNING AREA

D
R
A
FTTABLE EX-1: PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE LAND USE INTENSITY - 7200 SOUTH PLANNING AREA

DU/Acre

D
R
A
FTDU/Acre

3 41,500 SF/Acre

D
R
A
FT

3 41,500 SF/Acre

1 216,000 SF/Acre

D
R
A
FT

1 216,000 SF/Acre

0 SF/Acre

D
R
A
FT

0 SF/Acre

189

D
R
A
FT

189

DR
AF
T

Rooms/Acre

D
R
A
FT

Rooms/Acre

Human-focused spaces are the most important component of the 7200 South Station Area Plan. Input 

D
R
A
FT

Human-focused spaces are the most important component of the 7200 South Station Area Plan. Input 
from area residents, property owners and transit riders reinforced the importance of including human 

D
R
A
FT

from area residents, property owners and transit riders reinforced the importance of including human 
scaled connections and amenities throughout the station area to support and bene�t current and new 

D
R
A
FT

scaled connections and amenities throughout the station area to support and bene�t current and new 

DR
AF
T

residents, employees and visitors to the area. �e illustrative plan in Figure EX-3 identi�es a possible 

D
R
A
FT

residents, employees and visitors to the area. �e illustrative plan in Figure EX-3 identi�es a possible 
network of connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides connectivity 

D
R
A
FT

network of connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides connectivity 
to and from the station to existing and future development.  

D
R
A
FT

to and from the station to existing and future development.  



5

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

New pedestrian-oriented “shared” street.  Intent: Create a 
pedestrian-oriented street connection through the heart of the 
station area that parallels 7200 South. New development should 
orient to this street to the extent possible. Street should be 
designed for pedestrians, with autos as “guests” - see concept on 
page 12. Exact alignment to be determined but should seek near/
medium term implementation. 

New promenade street.  Intent: Create a pedestrian-oriented 
street connection through the heart of the station area that 
parallels 7200 South and links the areas east of the station to the 
platform. New development should orient to this street to the 
extent possible. The street should be designed as a boulevard with 
a wide median used as a plaza - see concept on page 11. Exact 
alignment to be determined but should seek medium/long term 
implementation and should optimally extend to State Street. This 
is a long-term implementation item. 

Central park and public space.  Intent: Create a central gathering 
space in the station area to which development is oriented. The 
space could be a park or a plaza or contain elements of both.

Relocated bus drop-off/turn-around with center plaza:  Intent: 
Bring the bus stops closer to the station platforms, create more 
activity in the bus area, and make the bus area more central, by 
integrating it with a plaza space and surrounding development 
- while opening up the existing bus turn-around area for new 
development.  

Improved TRAX crossing:  Intent: Create more connectivity 
across the TRAX line and a connected pedestrian spine for the 
station area. This should be a full street crossing if possible, or 
improved two-direction pedestrian crossing if not.

Streetscape/reconfiguration improvements on collector/local 
streets.  Intent:  Improve the pedestrian experience on existing 
streets such as Cottonwood, Millennium, and High Tech, with a 
generous pedestrian realm, street trees, and pedestrian amenities 
such as furniture and pedestrian-scale lighting. Could also include 
narrowing of lanes and extensions of curbs. See page 13 for more 
guidance.

Improved 7200 South pedestrian crossings.  Intent: Connect 
the station area over the barrier of 7200 South by making 
intersections safer, more comfortable, and more convenient for 
pedestrians. Include high-quality corner environment “landing 
plazas” to create compelling entries into the district. 

7200 South streetscape improvements.  Intent: Improve the 
pedestrian experience on 7200 South to the extent possible, 
within the context of 7200 South needing to move regional traffic.

New local street connecting Millennium with pedestrian street.  
Intent: Increase connectivity and street frontage of the area west 
of the TRAX line, while still maintaining large enough development 
sites.

Bike/pedestrian path along TRAX alignment. Intent: Implement 
regional bike/pedestrian connection, and connect the two station 
areas in Midvale as well as to the north and south. An appropriate 
alignment should be identified in the near term.

7200 SOUTH STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT

Figure EX-3 – 7200 South 

Station Area Illustrative Street 

Network Concept

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

New pedestrian-oriented “shared” street.  

D
R
A
FT

New pedestrian-oriented “shared” street.  Intent:

D
R
A
FT

Intent: Create a 

D
R
A
FT

 Create a 
pedestrian-oriented street connection through the heart of the 

D
R
A
FT

pedestrian-oriented street connection through the heart of the 
station area that parallels 7200 South. New development should 

D
R
A
FT

station area that parallels 7200 South. New development should 
orient to this street to the extent possible. Street should be 

D
R
A
FT

orient to this street to the extent possible. Street should be 
designed for pedestrians, with autos as “guests” - see concept on 

D
R
A
FT

designed for pedestrians, with autos as “guests” - see concept on 
page 12. Exact alignment to be determined but should seek near/

D
R
A
FT

page 12. Exact alignment to be determined but should seek near/
medium term implementation. 

D
R
A
FT

medium term implementation. 

Intent: D
R
A
FT

Intent: Create a pedestrian-oriented D
R
A
FT

Create a pedestrian-oriented 
street connection through the heart of the station area that D

R
A
FT

street connection through the heart of the station area that 
parallels 7200 South and links the areas east of the station to the D

R
A
FT

parallels 7200 South and links the areas east of the station to the 
platform. New development should orient to this street to the D

R
A
FT

platform. New development should orient to this street to the 
extent possible. The street should be designed as a boulevard with D

R
A
FT

extent possible. The street should be designed as a boulevard with 
a wide median used as a plaza - see concept on page 11. Exact D

R
A
FT

a wide median used as a plaza - see concept on page 11. Exact 
alignment to be determined but should seek medium/long term D

R
A
FT

alignment to be determined but should seek medium/long term 
implementation and should optimally extend to State Street. This D

R
A
FT

implementation and should optimally extend to State Street. This 

Relocated bus drop-off/turn-around with center plaza: 

D
R
A
FT

Relocated bus drop-off/turn-around with center plaza: 
Bring the bus stops closer to the station platforms, create more 

D
R
A
FT

Bring the bus stops closer to the station platforms, create more 
activity in the bus area, and make the bus area more central, by 

D
R
A
FT

activity in the bus area, and make the bus area more central, by 
integrating it with a plaza space and surrounding development 

D
R
A
FT

integrating it with a plaza space and surrounding development 
- while opening up the existing bus turn-around area for new 

D
R
A
FT

- while opening up the existing bus turn-around area for new 
development.  

D
R
A
FT

development.  

Improved TRAX crossing: D
R
A
FT

Improved TRAX crossing: 

7200 SOUTH STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT

D
R
A
FT

7200 SOUTH STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT7200 SOUTH STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT

D
R
A
FT

7200 SOUTH STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T



6

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

�e illustrative concept increases human scaled space, increases connectivity within 
the station area and increases opportunities for access into what can become a new 
transit served neighborhood.  Illustrative street cross sections for the street network are 
found in Figures Ex-7 through EX-12.  

CENTER STREET STATION AREA
�e Center Street Station area was once a thriving commercial center serving Midvale 
and the formerly unincorporated areas to the east. �e area can and should return to 
its role as a primary source of economic opportunity in the City.  New development 
in the station area should also maximize the value of past infrastructure investments 
and address increasing tra�c pressure. �e plan envisions redevelopment of the area 
to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access in the area and increase opportunities for 
residents and visitors to park once and walk to multiple establishments.  

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan based on 
the vision of a community village with opportunities for social interaction as well as 
places to shop, eat, work, play, and live. 

�e community developed the following Vision Principles for the Center Street Station 
Area:

 1. Awaken and activate the area.

 2. Design and improve for charm.

 3. Encourage transformative development.

 4. Concentrate the most intense uses near State Street and Center Street.

 5.  Create a cohesive brand for the area as a village center and activity hub in the 
community.

To achieve the vision for the Center Street station area, the Illustrative Plan in Figure 
EX-4 has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas 
currently zoned TOD.  Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the east 
side of State Street. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 years are 
identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in the next 5-10 
years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to occur.  

D
R
A
FTand address increasing tra�c pressure. �e plan envisions redevelopment of the area 

D
R
A
FTand address increasing tra�c pressure. �e plan envisions redevelopment of the area 

to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access in the area and increase opportunities for 

D
R
A
FT

to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access in the area and increase opportunities for 

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan based on 

D
R
A
FT

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan based on 
the vision of a community village with opportunities for social interaction as well as 

D
R
A
FT

the vision of a community village with opportunities for social interaction as well as 

�e community developed the following Vision Principles for the Center Street Station 

D
R
A
FT

�e community developed the following Vision Principles for the Center Street Station 

waken and activate the area.

D
R
A
FT

waken and activate the area.

esign and improve for charm.

D
R
A
FTesign and improve for charm.

ncourage transformative development.

D
R
A
FTncourage transformative development.

oncentrate the most intense uses near State Street and Center Street.

D
R
A
FToncentrate the most intense uses near State Street and Center Street.

5.

D
R
A
FT5. C

D
R
A
FTCreate a cohesive brand for the area as a village center and activity hub in the 

D
R
A
FTreate a cohesive brand for the area as a village center and activity hub in the 

community.

D
R
A
FTcommunity.

To achieve the vision for the Center Street station area, the Illustrative Plan in Figure 

D
R
A
FT

To achieve the vision for the Center Street station area, the Illustrative Plan in Figure 
EX-4 has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas 

D
R
A
FT

EX-4 has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas 
currently zoned TOD.  Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the east 

D
R
A
FT

currently zoned TOD.  Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the east 
side of State Street. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 years are 

D
R
A
FT

side of State Street. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 years are 
identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in the next 5-10 

D
R
A
FT

identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in the next 5-10 
years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to occur.  

D
R
A
FT

years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to occur.  



7

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

Figure EX-4 – Center Street Station Area Catalytic Opportunities Illustrative PlanD
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure EX-4 – Center Street Station Area Catalytic Opportunities Illustrative PlanD
R
A
FT

Figure EX-4 – Center Street Station Area Catalytic Opportunities Illustrative Plan



8

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

1a – b Intent: Locate highest intensity development along State Street. In these areas high density  
housing, such as apartment buildings with ground-floor retail, is recommended. Low intensity housing 
(townhomes) and public space buffer these areas from existing residential creating and protecting a 
village feel in the area. This housing will benefit from proximity and accessibility of the TRAX station, 
connected by a new shared street.

2a Intent: A planned townhome development with 33 units called Midvale Station Homes. This  
development will benefit from the proximity to the TRAX station. This low density residential 
development acts as a buffer to the existing neighborhood from non-local foot traffic.

2b - d Intent: Create low density residential developments to buffer the existing neighborhoods from 
higher intensity development along State and Center Street as well as non-local foot traffic. This 
housing should promote a village charm feeling for the area. Housing near the station would allow new 
residents to move freely in and out of Midvale without relying on a personal vehicle. This placement 
would also reduce the impact of new residents on local traffic.

3a Intent: Locate office development near TRAX station. This allows for workers to commute via transit 
in and out of Midvale and take advantage of the retail and services near the station during the workday.

4a Intent:  Create a location for residents and visitors to access commercial amenities such as 
restaurants, retail, and services. This—and other commercial locations throughout the station area—
allows the station to function as an activity hub in the community. This location is buffered from existing 
neighborhoods by townhomes and an existing apartment complex, allowing for a higher intensity of 
use.

4b - e Intent: Place high quality retail and commercial development along the State Street corridor as 
the area redevelops. In this plan high intensity development west of State Street steps down to lower 
intensity commercial and housing toward existing neighborhoods.

CENTER STREET STATION LAND USE AND INTENSITY CONCEPT

Figure EX-5 – Center Street Station 

Area Catalytic Opportunities 

Intensity Illustrations

�e illustrative plan in Figure EX-5 also 
identi�es the location of known current 
opportunities and areas where land use 
and density should be constrained to 
bu�er adjacent neighborhoods.

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

 Locate highest intensity development along State Street. In these areas high density  

D
R
A
FT

 Locate highest intensity development along State Street. In these areas high density  
housing, such as apartment buildings with ground-floor retail, is recommended. Low intensity housing D

R
A
FT

housing, such as apartment buildings with ground-floor retail, is recommended. Low intensity housing 
(townhomes) and public space buffer these areas from existing residential creating and protecting a D

R
A
FT

(townhomes) and public space buffer these areas from existing residential creating and protecting a 
village feel in the area. This housing will benefit from proximity and accessibility of the TRAX station, D

R
A
FT

village feel in the area. This housing will benefit from proximity and accessibility of the TRAX station, 

A planned townhome development with 33 units called Midvale Station Homes. This  D
R
A
FT

A planned townhome development with 33 units called Midvale Station Homes. This  
development will benefit from the proximity to the TRAX station. This low density residential D

R
A
FT

development will benefit from the proximity to the TRAX station. This low density residential 
development acts as a buffer to the existing neighborhood from non-local foot traffic.D

R
A
FT

development acts as a buffer to the existing neighborhood from non-local foot traffic.

Create low density residential developments to buffer the existing neighborhoods from D
R
A
FT

Create low density residential developments to buffer the existing neighborhoods from 

CENTER STREET STATION LAND USE AND INTENSITY CONCEPT

D
R
A
FT

CENTER STREET STATION LAND USE AND INTENSITY CONCEPT

Area Catalytic Opportunities 

D
R
A
FT

Area Catalytic Opportunities 

Intensity Illustrations

D
R
A
FT

Intensity Illustrations



9

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

�e intensities in the Illustrative Plan re�ect the preferred alternative land use intensity developed through the public meeting 
process.  Table EX-2 identi�es the preferred land uses and intensities generated in the public meeting process for the immediate 
station area.

TABLE EX-2: PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE LAND USE INTENSITY - CENTER STREET PLANNING AREA

LAND USE ACRES INTENSITY

Residential - Townhomes 4 17 DU/Acre

Residential - High Density 11 58 DU/Acre

Retail 2 43,560 SF/Acre

Office 6 43,560 SF/Acre

Industrial 0 0 SF/Acre

Executive Summary

DR
AF
T

�e intensities in the Illustrative Plan re�ect the preferred alternative land use intensity developed through the public meeting 

D
R
A
FT

�e intensities in the Illustrative Plan re�ect the preferred alternative land use intensity developed through the public meeting 
process.  Table EX-2 identi�es the preferred land uses and intensities generated in the public meeting process for the immediate 

D
R
A
FT

process.  Table EX-2 identi�es the preferred land uses and intensities generated in the public meeting process for the immediate 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TTABLE EX-2: PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE LAND USE INTENSITY - CENTER STREET PLANNING AREA

D
R
A
FTTABLE EX-2: PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE LAND USE INTENSITY - CENTER STREET PLANNING AREA

INTENSITY

D
R
A
FTINTENSITY

4 17 DU/Acre

D
R
A
FT4 17 DU/Acre

11 58 DU/Acre

D
R
A
FT11 58 DU/Acre

2 43,560 SF/Acre

D
R
A
FT2 43,560 SF/Acre

6 43,560 SF/Acre

D
R
A
FT

6 43,560 SF/Acre

0 SF/Acre

D
R
A
FT

0 SF/Acre



10

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

New shared street.  Intent: Create a new pedestrian-oriented street 
connection through the middle of the station area, connecting 
State Street, Center Street, and the station - a walkable frame for 
the district.

Station plaza.  Intent: Create a “front door” for the east side of 
the station, where the new shared street accesses the station, and 
a linear plaza along the east side of the tracks to Center Street. 
This east-side tracks crossing should be linked to the west-side 
crossing, creating a convenient and intuitive crossing of the TRAX 
line barrier.

Community pocket park.  Intent: As part of the recommended 
redevelopment of the underutilized UTA park-and-ride lot into 
townhomes, create a small community pocket park, which should 
be well-connected to the shared street and station plaza on the 
other side of the TRAX line.

New neighborhood street.  Intent: As part of the recommended 
redevelopment of the underutilized UTA park-and-ride lot into 
townhomes, reconfigure the current park-and-ride drive into a 

walkable neighborhood street providing access to the new homes, 
the park, and the TRAX parking.

Center Street streetscape and potential street reconfiguration.  
Intent: Center Street has the largest effect on the character of the 
station area and the most significant ability to achieve the vision 
of a neighborhood village - make Center Street as walkable as 
possible by implementing streetscape improvements such as a 
wider pedestrian realm, consistent street trees, street furniture, 
street lighting, and curb-extension “bulb-outs,” all in a consistent 
theme. Reconfigure the street to include bike lanes, on-street 
parking and wider sidewalks to the extent possible (see Figure EX-
10). Explore the possibility of reconfiguring the street to a three-
general-purpose-lane street (see Figure EX-10).

Streetscape improvements on neighborhood streets.  Intent: 
Build on the improvement of the pedestrian realm of Center 
Square by continuing to improve neighborhood streets like Maple 
Street with a wider pedestrian realm, street trees, street furniture, 
pedestrian-scale street lighting, and curb extension “bulb-outs” to 
complement ongoing or future redevelopment.  

Improved State Street pedestrian crossings with corner plazas.  
Intent: Improve the experience, convenience, and safety of the 
pedestrian crossings of State Street at 7800 South and Center 
Street, and create a new pedestrian-activated crossing at 7615 
South. Implement a series of small plazas creating high-quality 
corner environments on these State Street intersections.

Intersection of new shared street and Center Street.  Intent: The 
intersection of Center Street and the recommended new shared 
street is a major opportunity to establish a pedestrian-focused 
epicenter for the station area; it is also critical to create a safe 
and intuitive crossing of Center Street here for pedestrians. 
The intersection could be raised to slow vehicle traffic and 
communicate the pedestrian priority, and/or be given a special 
paving treatment such as pavers or decorative concrete or asphalt. 

Bike/pedestrian path along TRAX alignment.  Intent: Implement 
regional bike/pedestrian connection, and connect two station 
areas in Midvale as well as to the north and south.

CENTER STREET STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT

Figure EX-6 – Center Street Station 

Area Illustrative Street Network 

Concept

As with the 7200 South Station Area 
Plan, human-focused spaces are the 
most important component of the 
Center Street Station Area Plan. 
Input from area residents, property 
owners and transit riders reinforced 
the importance of including human 
scaled connections and amenities 
throughout the station area to 
support and bene�t current and new 
residents, employees and visitors 
to the area. �e illustrative plan 
in Figure EX-6 identi�es possible 
network connections and amenities 
focused on pedestrians and bicyclists 
that provides enhanced street 
connectivity to existing and future 
development.  

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

 Create a new pedestrian-oriented street 

D
R
A
FT

 Create a new pedestrian-oriented street 
connection through the middle of the station area, connecting 

D
R
A
FT

connection through the middle of the station area, connecting 
State Street, Center Street, and the station - a walkable frame for 

D
R
A
FT

State Street, Center Street, and the station - a walkable frame for 

Create a “front door” for the east side of 

D
R
A
FT

Create a “front door” for the east side of 
the station, where the new shared street accesses the station, and 

D
R
A
FT

the station, where the new shared street accesses the station, and 
a linear plaza along the east side of the tracks to Center Street. 

D
R
A
FT

a linear plaza along the east side of the tracks to Center Street. 
This east-side tracks crossing should be linked to the west-side D

R
A
FT

This east-side tracks crossing should be linked to the west-side 
crossing, creating a convenient and intuitive crossing of the TRAX D

R
A
FT

crossing, creating a convenient and intuitive crossing of the TRAX 

As part of the recommended D
R
A
FT

As part of the recommended 
redevelopment of the underutilized UTA park-and-ride lot into D

R
A
FT

redevelopment of the underutilized UTA park-and-ride lot into 
townhomes, create a small community pocket park, which should D

R
A
FT

townhomes, create a small community pocket park, which should 
be well-connected to the shared street and station plaza on the D

R
A
FT

be well-connected to the shared street and station plaza on the 

walkable neighborhood street providing access to the new homes, 

D
R
A
FT

walkable neighborhood street providing access to the new homes, 
the park, and the TRAX parking.

D
R
A
FT

the park, and the TRAX parking.

Center Street streetscape and potential street reconfiguration.

D
R
A
FT

Center Street streetscape and potential street reconfiguration.
Intent:

D
R
A
FT

Intent: Center Street has the largest effect on the character of the 

D
R
A
FT

 Center Street has the largest effect on the character of the 
station area and the most significant ability to achieve the vision 

D
R
A
FT

station area and the most significant ability to achieve the vision 
of a neighborhood village - make Center Street as walkable as 

D
R
A
FT

of a neighborhood village - make Center Street as walkable as 
possible by implementing streetscape improvements such as a 

D
R
A
FT

possible by implementing streetscape improvements such as a 
wider pedestrian realm, consistent street trees, street furniture, D
R
A
FT

wider pedestrian realm, consistent street trees, street furniture, 
street lighting, and curb-extension “bulb-outs,” all in a consistent D
R
A
FT

street lighting, and curb-extension “bulb-outs,” all in a consistent 
theme. Reconfigure the street to include bike lanes, on-street D
R
A
FT

theme. Reconfigure the street to include bike lanes, on-street DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

CENTER STREET STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT

D
R
A
FT

CENTER STREET STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPTCENTER STREET STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT

D
R
A
FT

CENTER STREET STATION AREA STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE CONCEPT



11

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

�e enhanced street networks recommended for each of the station areas assume new street cross sections in 
the area with enhanced human-focused amenities. �ese designs prioritize pedestrian and bicycle use and will 
encourage greater activity, safety, and livability.  �e illustrative typologies below can be adapted to the speci�c 
needs of each of the areas.

Executive Summary

STREET AND PUBLIC SPACE TYPOLOGIES
�e following section identi�es the characteristics of the di�erent elements of the streets and public space network 
in the station area. �ese typologies  propose concept cross sections, include key ingredients and design guidelines, 
and provide examples in other areas.

7 - 10’ 7 - 10’

Median plaza

40- 50’

On-street
parking

“Through”
zone/

Frontage
zone

Furnishing
zone

7 - 10’ 7 - 10’

“Through”
zone/

Frontage 
zone

Furnishing
zone

On-street
parking

General 
Purpose

General 
Purpose

110’ - 130’

Right-of-way

Curb-to-curb
20 - 26’ 20 - 26’15 - 20’

NEW  MIXED 
USE DEVELOPMENT

NEW MIXED 
USE DEVELOPMENT

Curb and gutter

2.5’

Curb and gutter

2.5’

Curb-to-curb

PROMENADE STREET
Potential cross section

Pedestrian 
realm

15 - 20’

Pedestrian 
realm

PROMENADE STREET

A wide, pedestrian-oriented street with a linear public space running down the middle.

Examples of streets with center promenade plazas: 
La Rambla, Barcelona, Spain (above) and Santana 
Row, San Jose , Calif. (below)

Figure EX-7 – Promenade Street Concept and Guidelines

Key characteristics:

•  A wide plaza in the street 
median with seating, shade, 
dining, and other active uses

 •  Wide pedestrian realm 
with regularly spaced street 
trees, pedestrian scale 
lighting (see streetscape 
improvements on page 14)

 

 •  Single vehicle lane on either 
side of median

 •  Slow vehicle speeds

 •  On-street parking

DR
AF
T�e following section identi�es the characteristics of the di�erent elements of the streets and public space network 

D
R
A
FT

�e following section identi�es the characteristics of the di�erent elements of the streets and public space network 
in the station area. �ese typologies  propose concept cross sections, include key ingredients and design guidelines, 

D
R
A
FTin the station area. �ese typologies  propose concept cross sections, include key ingredients and design guidelines, 

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

7 - 10’ 7 - 10’D
R
A
FT

7 - 10’ 7 - 10’DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

On-streetD
R
A
FT

On-street
parkingD
R
A
FT

parking
“Through”D

R
A
FT

“Through”
zone/ D

R
A
FT

zone/
FrontageD

R
A
FT

Frontage

FurnishingD
R
A
FT

Furnishing
zoneD
R
A
FT

zone

15 - 20’D
R
A
FT

15 - 20’DR
AF
T

Curb and gutterD
R
A
FT

Curb and gutter

2.5’D
R
A
FT

2.5’DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

Examples of streets with center promenade plazas: 

D
R
A
FT

Examples of streets with center promenade plazas: 
La Rambla, Barcelona, Spain (above) and Santana 

D
R
A
FT

La Rambla, Barcelona, Spain (above) and Santana 
Row, San Jose , Calif. (below)

D
R
A
FT

Row, San Jose , Calif. (below)

Figure EX-7 – Promenade Street Concept and Guidelines

D
R
A
FT

Figure EX-7 – Promenade Street Concept and Guidelines

improvements on page 14)

D
R
A
FT

improvements on page 14)

ingle vehicle lane on either 

D
R
A
FTingle vehicle lane on either 

side of median

D
R
A
FT

side of median

•

D
R
A
FT

•  

D
R
A
FT

  S

D
R
A
FT

Slow vehicle speeds

D
R
A
FT

low vehicle speeds

•

D
R
A
FT

•  

D
R
A
FT

  On-

D
R
A
FT

On-street parking

D
R
A
FT

street parking



12

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

SHARED STREET

A local-level, very slow-moving street oriented to 
pedestrians so that the entire right-of-way is open to 
pedestrian travel, with autos allowed but treated as “guests.” 

Key characteristics:

 •  Pedestrian-only area at sides with shared way in middle

 •  Curbless design - use bollards, landscape or other 
element to separate shared area and pedestrian-only 
area

 •  High level of pedestrian amenities

 •  Pedestrian-oriented paving (pavers, scored concrete)

 •  Ability to close to auto tra�c for festivals or other 
events

 •  Slow vehicle speed design and speed limit: narrow 
traveled way with “jogs” to create tra�c calming

Pedestrian 
space

Shared  travel 
way 

(10 mph speed 
limit)

20’10 - 20’

Pedestrian 
space

OPTIONAL:
Pedestrian/
vehicle �ex 

space
(Landscape, 
furnishings,

limited 
parking)

(alternates 
sides)

10 - 20’7 - 10’

50 - 66’

Right-of-way

NEW MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

NEW MIXED USE 
DEVELOPMENT

Tactile
strip and 
bollard

Tactile
strip and 
bollard

SHARED STREET
Potential cross section

Examples of shared 
streets:, clockwise from 
top left: Octavia Street, 
San Francisco; Bell Street, 
Seattle; Regent Street, 
Salt Lake City; Davis 
Street, Portland, Ore.

Executive Summary

Figure EX-8 – Shared Street concept and guidelines.

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure EX-8 – Shared Street concept and guidelines.

D
R
A
FT

Figure EX-8 – Shared Street concept and guidelines.



13

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

CENTER STREET STREETSCAPE AND RECONFIGURATION

Because of both its central place in the Center Street station area and the potential for it to change, this plan identi�es 
speci�c concepts for Center Street. �e following concepts intend to add a pedestrian character to Center Street, 
whether under the current �ve-general-purpose-lane design or under a three-general-purpose-lane recon�guration.

Key characteristics:

 •  A wider pedestrian realm with sidewalk and bu�er/furnishings area

 •  Consistent street trees, street furniture, street lighting

 •  Bike lanes

 •  On-street parking on one or both sides if possible

 •  Curb-extension “bulb-outs” into parking lane if present

 •  A consistent streetscape design theme 

 •  Use of parking lots and other space in front of existing buildings for active people spaces such as dining 
areas or plazas

 •  Orientation of new development to the pedestrian realm of Center Street, whether through direct entries 
onto the sidewalk, or via an occupiable, active yard 

9’

General 
Purpose

Continuous 
Center Left 
Turn Lane

11’10.5’ 10.5’

General 
Purpose

General 
Purpose

General 
Purpose

10.5’10.5’

85’ - 94’

Right-of-way

Curb-to-curb
67’9’

COMMERCIAL CENTER WITH PARKING LOT 
CONVERTED TO PLAZA SPACE 

NEW MIXED USE 
DEVELOPMENTCurb and gutter

1.5’ 9’

Curb and gutter

1.5’

Bike 
Lane

5.5’

Bike 
Lane

5.5

CENTER STREET
Potential cross section at TRAX station

LOOKING EAST

Pedestrian 
realm

9’

Pedestrian 
realm

Expansion of 
pedestrian realm 

with new 
development

Figure EX-9: Center Street 5-lane concept and guidelines.

Divisadero Street in San Francisco provides an 
example of a street with two general purpose lanes in 
each direction that streetscape improvements made 
more walkable.

DR
AF
Twhether under the current �ve-general-purpose-lane design or under a three-general-purpose-lane recon�guration.

D
R
A
FT

whether under the current �ve-general-purpose-lane design or under a three-general-purpose-lane recon�guration.

se of parking lots and other space in front of existing buildings for active people spaces such as dining 

D
R
A
FT

se of parking lots and other space in front of existing buildings for active people spaces such as dining 

ientation of new development to the pedestrian realm of Center Street, whether through direct entries 

D
R
A
FT

ientation of new development to the pedestrian realm of Center Street, whether through direct entries 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure EX-9: Center Street 5-lane concept and guidelines.

D
R
A
FT

Figure EX-9: Center Street 5-lane concept and guidelines.

Divisadero Street in San Francisco provides an 

D
R
A
FTDivisadero Street in San Francisco provides an 

example of a street with two general purpose lanes in 

D
R
A
FTexample of a street with two general purpose lanes in 

each direction that streetscape improvements made 

D
R
A
FTeach direction that streetscape improvements made 

more walkable.

D
R
A
FTmore walkable.



14

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

9’

Bu�ered 
Bike Lane

Planted 
Median/
Left turn 
pockets

12’7’

On-street
parking

7’

On-street
parking

7’12’

Bu�ered 
Bike Lane

General 
Purpose

General 
Purpose

12’ 7’

85’ - 94’

Right-of-way

Curb-to-curb
67’9’

REDEVELOPED MIXED USE BUILDING TRAX STATION 

Curb and gutter

1.5’ 9’
Curb and gutter

1.5’

CENTER STREET
Potential cross section at TRAX station

LOOKING EAST

Pedestrian 
realm

9’

Pedestrian 
realm

Explore the possibility of recon�guring the street with one general purpose lane in each direction, with center turn pockets. �is con�guration would allow for a generous 
bike lane, on-street parking, slower vehicle speeds and an overall pedestrian-oriented character.

Figure EX-10: Center Street 3-lane concept and guidelines.

Examples of walkable streets with one general 
purpose lane, a center median, on-street 
parking, bike accommodations, and streetscape 
improvements, from top: Valencia Street in San 
Francisco; Guardsman Way in Salt Lake City; and La 
Jolla Drive in San Diego.

Executive Summary

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

Planted 

D
R
A
FT

Planted 
Median/

D
R
A
FT

Median/
Left turn 

D
R
A
FT

Left turn 
pockets

D
R
A
FT

pockets

12’

D
R
A
FT

12’

On-street

D
R
A
FT

On-street

7’

D
R
A
FT

7’

Bu�ered 

D
R
A
FT

Bu�ered 
Bike Lane

D
R
A
FT

Bike Lane
General 

D
R
A
FT

General 
Purpose

D
R
A
FT

Purpose
General 

D
R
A
FT

General 
Purpose

D
R
A
FT

Purpose

12’ 7’

D
R
A
FT

12’ 7’12’ 7’

D
R
A
FT

12’ 7’12’ 7’

D
R
A
FT

12’ 7’

85’ - 94’

D
R
A
FT

85’ - 94’

Right-of-wayD
R
A
FT

Right-of-way

Curb-to-curb

D
R
A
FT

Curb-to-curb
67’

D
R
A
FT

67’DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Explore the possibility of recon�guring the street with one general purpose lane in each direction, with center turn pockets. �is con�guration would allow for a generous 

D
R
A
FT

Explore the possibility of recon�guring the street with one general purpose lane in each direction, with center turn pockets. �is con�guration would allow for a generous 



15

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

SHARED USE PATH

Shared use paths are paths separated from moving motor 
vehicle tra�c and that o�en run along their own alignment, 
separate from any street. In the Midvale station areas, the 
primary recommended application of shared use paths is the 
recommended pathway along the T�X line. 

PEDESTRIAN CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS AND 
CORNER PLAZAS

Pedestrian improvements of major intersections are a critical 
way to improve the Midvale station areas, since high-volume 
and o�en high-speed roadways pose barriers to pedestrians in 
each area - State Street and Center Street at the Center Street 
station, and 7200 South in the 7200 South station. Intersection 
improvements should focus on crossing visibility, shortening 
the length, and providing quality corner environments. For key 
intersections, these corner environments should include small 
“landing” plazas that can also serve as gateway elements to the 
station districts.

STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS  

�ere are currently few people-oriented streetscape amenities in either station area, exacerbating 
an o�en-hostile public realm. Amenities designed to make the environment more comfortable for 
people can be added to existing station area streets. �e qualities these streetscape improvements 
can provide include:

•  Scale - use objects to create spaces and outdoor rooms scaled for people
•  Texture - use surfaces like the ground and walls to create textures that appeal to people
•  Bu�er from moving tra�c
•  Greening - trees and landscape
•  Shade - from trees, awnings, and other
•  Seating - for eating, people-watching, and other
•  Lighting (pedestrian scale)
•  Transportation - bike parking, transit waiting, bike share, paid parking
•  Vending/dispensing - food, drink, news, and other
•  Signs and communication (pedestrian scale)

•  Art/entertainment

BUFFER 
FROM 
TRAFFIC

TRANSPORTATION/ 
BIKE PARKING

PEDESTRIAN-SCALE
LIGHTING GREENING

VENDING/
DISPENSING

PUBLIC 
ART

SHADE SIGNS/
COMMUNICATION

CREATION OF HUMAN-SCALE 
SPACE

TEXTURE

Figure EX-11: Streetscape improvement options.

DR
AF
T

SHARED USE PATH

D
R
A
FT

SHARED USE PATH

Shared use paths are paths separated from moving motor 

D
R
A
FT

Shared use paths are paths separated from moving motor 
vehicle tra�c and that o�en run along their own alignment, 

D
R
A
FT

vehicle tra�c and that o�en run along their own alignment, 
separate from any street. In the Midvale station areas, the 

D
R
A
FT

separate from any street. In the Midvale station areas, the 
primary recommended application of shared use paths is the 

D
R
A
FT

primary recommended application of shared use paths is the 
recommended pathway along the T�X line. 

D
R
A
FT

recommended pathway along the T�X line. 

D
R
A
FT

PEDESTRIAN CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS AND 

D
R
A
FT

PEDESTRIAN CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS AND 
CORNER PLAZAS

D
R
A
FT

CORNER PLAZAS

Pedestrian improvements of major intersections are a critical 

D
R
A
FT

Pedestrian improvements of major intersections are a critical 

ransportation - bike parking, transit waiting, bike share, paid parking

D
R
A
FT

ransportation - bike parking, transit waiting, bike share, paid parking

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

GREENING

D
R
A
FT

GREENING

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T



16

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

MIXED USE LOCAL STREET

A general-purpose street intended for connecting the station area for local users and providing and linking 
public space.

Key characteristics:
•  Wide pedestrian realm with landscaped or hardscaped bu�er/furnishings area depending on use 

(more intensive use gets more hardscape)
•  Street trees
•  Street furniture and pedestrian-scale lighting
•  Frequent pedestrian crossings, at each block and in some cases mid-block
•  On-street parking
•  Curb extension bulb-outs into parking lane at pedestrian crossings
•  Minimal roadway width 
•  Slow speed limit - 25 m.p.h. or lower
•  Range of frontage types allowed, depending on use: 
  -  Retail requires more transparency and frequent/direct entries, with occupiable and active yards.

 -  Residential uses and o�ce uses require fewer entries and less transparency

8’ 24’7 - 8’

On-street
parking

7’

On-street
parking

General 
Purpose

7 - 8’

56’ - 58’

Right-of-way

Curb-to-curb
41 - 43’15’

VARIOUS LAND USES INCLUDING COMMERCIAL, OFFICE, 
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 
ATTACHED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 
AND PARKS/OPEN SPACE 

VARIOUS LAND USES INCLUDING COMMERCIAL, OFFICE, 
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 
ATTACHED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 
AND PARKS/OPEN SPACE 

7’ 8’

Curb and gutter

1.5’

Curb and gutter

1.5’

MIXED USE LOCAL STREET

Pedestrian 
realm

15’

Pedestrian 
realm

Figure EX-12: Mixed use local street concept and guidelines.

Examples of walkable mixed-use local streets, clockwise from 
top left: Salt Lake City, Utah; Emeryville, Calif.;Albuquerque, 
N.M.; Hillsboro, Ore.

Executive Summary

DR
AF
Tide pedestrian realm with landscaped or hardscaped bu�er/furnishings area depending on use 

D
R
A
FTide pedestrian realm with landscaped or hardscaped bu�er/furnishings area depending on use 

etail requires more transparency and frequent/direct entries, with occupiable and active yards.

D
R
A
FT

etail requires more transparency and frequent/direct entries, with occupiable and active yards.

esidential uses and o�ce uses require fewer entries and less transparency

D
R
A
FT

esidential uses and o�ce uses require fewer entries and less transparency

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

VARIOUS LAND USES INCLUDING COMMERCIAL, OFFICE, D
R
A
FT

VARIOUS LAND USES INCLUDING COMMERCIAL, OFFICE, 
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL, D
R
A
FT

MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 
ATTACHED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, D
R
A
FT

ATTACHED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 
AND PARKS/OPEN SPACE D
R
A
FT

AND PARKS/OPEN SPACE DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Examples of walkable mixed-use local streets, clockwise from 

D
R
A
FT

Examples of walkable mixed-use local streets, clockwise from 
top left: Salt Lake City, Utah; Emeryville, Calif.;Albuquerque, 

D
R
A
FT

top left: Salt Lake City, Utah; Emeryville, Calif.;Albuquerque, 



17

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

TRANSIT-ONLY WAY

A transit only way is a drive or street exclusively for the use of transit vehicles. 
In the Midvale station areas, transit-only drives are relevant to the bus pick-up 
at both stations. Transit-only drives tend to need a lot of width, especially if 
buses are turning around. �ey should be designed to accommodate the bus 
vehicles but also to support the pedestrian experience around the station.  

PUBLIC PARKS, PLAZAS AND OTHER SPACES

�e heart of each station area should be a connected system of public spaces 
that include small parks, large and small plazas, and pedestrian-oriented 
streets. Each of these public spaces should be closely linked to the buildings 
around it - the larger the space, the more intensive the land uses that should 
surround it, with building entries facing the public space directly.  

Examples of the variety of activated parks, plazas, and other public spaces that should 
be part of the connected public space network in the Midvale station areas.

Example of a transit-only way in Midvale’s Bingham Junction station.

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTExample of a transit-only way in Midvale’s Bingham Junction station.

D
R
A
FTExample of a transit-only way in Midvale’s Bingham Junction station.



18

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

PARKING ANALYSIS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

Township + Range completed an analysis of TOD parking strategies in comparable 
communities. �e analysis identi�ed four key considerations to a successful 
TOD parking policy: amount of parking; collectivization of parking; economics 
of parking; and design of parking. �e recommendations consider Midvale’s 
existing standards, best practices for station area parking policy, and the station 
areas’ context in a suburban location. Based on this analysis Township + Range 
recommended several strategies to address parking in the two study areas. �e full 
parking analysis can be found in Appendix C.

AMOUNT OF PARKING 

�e strategy to address this issue is to slightly modify the existing minimums; o�er 
more opportunities for parking minimum reductions; and add parking maximums.

PA R KING M INI MU M S A ND M A X I MU M S

Residential 

 

 

 • Senior unit - .25 spaces 

 • 1 guest space/4 units - but on-street is acceptable

 •  Project quali�es for within .25 mile standard if any part of the project  
is within .25 mile.

Non-residential 

 

* For all other uses, maximum is 1.5 times minimum.
* Consider exemption �om maximum if parking is provided in a structure.

A DDITION A L R ED UCTIONS 

Transportation demand management strategy

 • See Economics of Parking below.

A�ordable housing 

 • 50 percent reduction .

Alternative compliance/parking management plan 

 • Based on parking impact study undertaken by developer.

 •  Must accomplish purpose of parking standards or TOD zone be�er than 
standards themselves. 

Total reduction

 •  Total reduction of parking minimums is limited to 50 percent of the minimums.

Executive Summary

 
 

W/IN .25 MI OUTSIDE .25 MI

Min Max Min Max

1 BR 0.75 1 1 1.25

2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

4+ BR 1.5 2 1.75 2

MIN MAX

Commercial 2.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf 4 spaces/1000 leasable sf

Office 2 spaces/1000 leasable sf 3.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf

Hotel .75 space/room + 2 
spaces/1000 separate net 
leasable building area

1 space/room + 3.5 
spaces/1000 separate net 
leasable building area

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

�e strategy to address this issue is to slightly modify the existing minimums; o�er

D
R
A
FT

�e strategy to address this issue is to slightly modify the existing minimums; o�er
more opportunities for parking minimum reductions; and add parking maximums.

D
R
A
FT

more opportunities for parking minimum reductions; and add parking maximums.

1 guest space/4 units - but on-street is acceptable

D
R
A
FT

1 guest space/4 units - but on-street is acceptable

Project quali�es for within .25 mile standard if any part of the project D
R
A
FT

Project quali�es for within .25 mile standard if any part of the project 

* For all other uses, maximum is 1.5 times minimum.

D
R
A
FT

* For all other uses, maximum is 1.5 times minimum.
* Consider exemption �om maximum if parking is provided in a structure.

D
R
A
FT

* Consider exemption �om maximum if parking is provided in a structure.

A DDITION A L R ED UCTIONS

D
R
A
FT

A DDITION A L R ED UCTIONS

Transportation demand management strategy

D
R
A
FT

Transportation demand management strategy

• 

D
R
A
FT

• See Economics of Parking below.

D
R
A
FT

See Economics of Parking below.

A�ordable housing 

D
R
A
FT

A�ordable housing 

• 

D
R
A
FT

• 50 percent reduction .

D
R
A
FT

50 percent reduction .

Alternative compliance/parking management plan 

D
R
A
FT

Alternative compliance/parking management plan 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

W/IN .25 MI OUTSIDE .25 MI

D
R
A
FT

W/IN .25 MI OUTSIDE .25 MI

Min Max Min Max

D
R
A
FT

Min Max Min Max

1 1 1.25

D
R
A
FT

1 1 1.25

2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

D
R
A
FT

2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT

3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 23 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT

3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

1.75

D
R
A
FT

1.75 2

D
R
A
FT

2

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TMIN

D
R
A
FTMIN

Commercial 2.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf 4 spaces/1000 leasable sf

D
R
A
FTCommercial 2.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf 4 spaces/1000 leasable sfCommercial 2.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf 4 spaces/1000 leasable sf

D
R
A
FTCommercial 2.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf 4 spaces/1000 leasable sfCommercial 2.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf 4 spaces/1000 leasable sf

D
R
A
FTCommercial 2.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf 4 spaces/1000 leasable sf

Office 2 spaces/1000 leasable sf

D
R
A
FTOffice 2 spaces/1000 leasable sfOffice 2 spaces/1000 leasable sf

D
R
A
FTOffice 2 spaces/1000 leasable sf 3.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf

D
R
A
FT3.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf

Hotel .75 space/room + 2 

D
R
A
FTHotel .75 space/room + 2 Hotel .75 space/room + 2 

D
R
A
FTHotel .75 space/room + 2 

spaces/1000 separate net 

D
R
A
FTspaces/1000 separate net 

leasable building area

D
R
A
FTleasable building area



19

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Executive Summary

COLLECTIVIZATION OF PARKING

�e strategy to address this issue is to expand and formalize the existing shared and 
on-street policies and to add a provision for o�-site parking.

SH A R ED PA R KING 

• Keep shared parking provision. 

• Allow sta� to approve.

• Must be within 800 feet.

• Parking study to show complementary peak demand.

OFF - SITE PA R KING A LLOWA NCE 

• Can accommodate 100 percent of parking o�-site.

• Must be within 800 feet of the use.

•  �e location and terms of the o�-site parking shall be speci�ed in a wri�en 
deed, lease or contract, signed and notarized by all a�ected property owners.

ON- STR EET PA R KING A LLOWA NCE 

• Below unit limit (10,000 sf), can accommodate all parking on-street, where available.

•  Above the limit, can accommodate 25 percent of parking on-street for additional 
square feet on-street, where available. For example, for a 15,000 building, the 
parking required for the �rst 10,000 square feet can be accommodated on-
street, while up to 25 percent of the parking required for the additional 5,000 
square feet can be accommodated on-street.

• Residential guest spaces can be accommodated on-street.

•  On-street spaces must be within, directly adjacent to, or as close as possible to 
the development.

•  On-street spaces must be on new streets or streets fronted by non-single 
family residential uses.

PA R KING BENEFIT DISTR ICTS 

•  Long-term potential to develop a parking bene�t district in one or both 
station areas. Members of the district (likely property owners) would pay into 
the district as an alternative to supplying parking on their own. �is would 

potentially be focused more on o�ce/commercial/hotel; could be a be�er 
strategy in the 7200 South station area. Consider coupling this concept with 
the parking changes desired in the Main Street Small Area Plan to create a 
citywide district.

ECONOMICS OF PARKING 

�e strategy to address this issue is to add incentives to unbundle parking and 
create transportation demand management programs.  

UNBUNDLING 

 •  25 percent reduction for unbundling parking from residential or commercial/
o�ce units. 

 •  In the long term, consider requiring the unbundling of parking, as some cities 
are now requiring.

 •  Seek pilot project with which to test this approach and develop implementation 
measures.

TR A NSPORTATION DE M A ND M A N AGE M EN T PRO GR A M 

Reductions for TDM programs 

 •  Paid parking for o�ce uses – 25 percent reduction 

 •  O�ce car share – 20 percent reduction 

 •  Transit pass subsidy – 25 percent reduction

 •  Hotel transit program – 25 percent reduction 

 •  Hotel car share – 25 percent reduction 

 •  Hotel bike share – 10 percent reduction 

 •  Up to total 50 percent reduction

City can take a leading role in TDM 

 •  Example programs

 •  Administer programs in some cases

 •  Broker with UTA and others DR
AF
T

�e location and terms of the o�-site parking shall be speci�ed in a wri�en 

D
R
A
FT

�e location and terms of the o�-site parking shall be speci�ed in a wri�en 
deed, lease or contract, signed and notarized by all a�ected property owners.

D
R
A
FT

deed, lease or contract, signed and notarized by all a�ected property owners.

Below unit limit (10,000 sf), can accommodate all parking on-street, where available.

D
R
A
FT

Below unit limit (10,000 sf), can accommodate all parking on-street, where available.

Above the limit, can accommodate 25 percent of parking on-street for additional 

D
R
A
FT

Above the limit, can accommodate 25 percent of parking on-street for additional 
square feet on-street, where available. For example, for a 15,000 building, the 

D
R
A
FT

square feet on-street, where available. For example, for a 15,000 building, the 
parking required for the �rst 10,000 square feet can be accommodated on-

D
R
A
FT

parking required for the �rst 10,000 square feet can be accommodated on-
street, while up to 25 percent of the parking required for the additional 5,000 

D
R
A
FT

street, while up to 25 percent of the parking required for the additional 5,000 
square feet can be accommodated on-street.

D
R
A
FT

square feet can be accommodated on-street.

Residential guest spaces can be accommodated on-street.

D
R
A
FT

Residential guest spaces can be accommodated on-street.

On-street spaces must be within, directly adjacent to, or as close as possible to 

D
R
A
FT

On-street spaces must be within, directly adjacent to, or as close as possible to 

On-street spaces must be on new streets or streets fronted by non-single D
R
A
FT

On-street spaces must be on new streets or streets fronted by non-single 

Long-term potential to develop a parking bene�t district in one or bothD
R
A
FT

Long-term potential to develop a parking bene�t district in one or both
station areas. Members of the district (likely property owners) would pay intoD

R
A
FT

station areas. Members of the district (likely property owners) would pay into

potentially be focused more on o�ce/commercial/hotel; could be a be�er

D
R
A
FT

potentially be focused more on o�ce/commercial/hotel; could be a be�er
strategy in the 7200 South station area. Consider coupling this concept with 

D
R
A
FT

strategy in the 7200 South station area. Consider coupling this concept with 
the parking changes desired in the Main Street Small Area Plan to create a 

D
R
A
FT

the parking changes desired in the Main Street Small Area Plan to create a 

ECONOMICS OF PARKING 

D
R
A
FTECONOMICS OF PARKING 

�e strategy to address this issue is to add incentives to unbundle parking and 

D
R
A
FT�e strategy to address this issue is to add incentives to unbundle parking and 

create transportation demand management programs.  

D
R
A
FTcreate transportation demand management programs.  

UNBUNDLING

D
R
A
FTUNBUNDLING

• 

D
R
A
FT• 25 percent reduction for unbundling parking from residential or commercial/

D
R
A
FT25 percent reduction for unbundling parking from residential or commercial/

o�ce units. 

D
R
A
FT

o�ce units. 

• 

D
R
A
FT

• In the long term, consider requiring the unbundling of parking, as some cities 

D
R
A
FT

In the long term, consider requiring the unbundling of parking, as some cities 
are now requiring.

D
R
A
FT

are now requiring.

• 

D
R
A
FT

• Seek pilot project with which to test this approach and develop implementation 

D
R
A
FT

Seek pilot project with which to test this approach and develop implementation 
measures.

D
R
A
FT

measures.

TR A NSPORTATION DE M A ND M A N AGE M EN T PRO GR A M

D
R
A
FT

TR A NSPORTATION DE M A ND M A N AGE M EN T PRO GR A M

Reductions for TDM programs 

D
R
A
FT

Reductions for TDM programs 

• 

D
R
A
FT

• Paid parking for o�ce uses – 25 percent reduction 

D
R
A
FT

Paid parking for o�ce uses – 25 percent reduction 



20

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

DESIGN OF PARKING 

�e strategy to address this issue is to maintain the existing standards and expand them. 

E X ISTING DE SIGN STA NDA R DS

 •  No parking in front setback of any building. 

 •  Parking structures shall contain ground-level retail, o�ce or display windows along all street-fronting facades  
of the parking structure.

A DDITION A L PROVISIONS

 •  Bu�er surface lots. 

 •  Landscaping and trees in surface lots. 

 •  Integrate low-impact development/green infrastructure into parking areas.

SUPPORTIVE POLICY

A key part of the station area parking strategy is to overcome the barriers to implementing the above policies and mitigate 
the side e�ects that may come from them.  

Residential area parking mitigation 

 •  Consider residential parking permit system in residential neighborhoods surrounding the station areas

 •  In some cases, consider delaying connections between some neighborhoods and station area

Executive Summary

DR
AF
TParking structures shall contain ground-level retail, o�ce or display windows along all street-fronting facades 

D
R
A
FTParking structures shall contain ground-level retail, o�ce or display windows along all street-fronting facades 

Integrate low-impact development/green infrastructure into parking areas.

D
R
A
FT

Integrate low-impact development/green infrastructure into parking areas.

A key part of the station area parking strategy is to overcome the barriers to implementing the above policies and mitigate 

D
R
A
FT

A key part of the station area parking strategy is to overcome the barriers to implementing the above policies and mitigate 

Consider residential parking permit system in residential neighborhoods surrounding the station areas

D
R
A
FT

Consider residential parking permit system in residential neighborhoods surrounding the station areas

DR
AF
T

In some cases, consider delaying connections between some neighborhoods and station area

D
R
A
FT

In some cases, consider delaying connections between some neighborhoods and station area



21

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Midvale City is the nucleus of the transportation system for Salt Lake County. �is is true 
for roads, trail and transit. Midvale’s location within the regional transportation system 
has shaped land use and development for all of Midvale’s history. 

By the 1890’s, prior to incorporation the growing community was centered around 
the crossroads of the main D&RG rail line and the copper line coming out of Bingham 
Canyon – Bingham Junction. �e transportation investment in rail contributed to 
signi�cant population growth and commercial success in the community. Midvale’s 
historic Main Street was the area’s commercial center during this period.

In the 1910’s the precursor to US 89/State Street, the Arrowhead Trail, was created to 
connect Los Angeles, Las Vegas and Salt Lake City. �is auto trail was a precursor to 
the national highway system with the Utah portions of the trail becoming US Highways 
89 and 91 and other sections incorporated into I-15. With established auto routes and 
the growing popularity of the car the commercial center of many communities shi�ed 
towards the new highways. �is happened in Midvale with a�ention shi�ing from 
historic Main Street near the smelter, mill and railroad junction east to the intersection of 
Center Street and State Street. �is area was home to many of the shops and services local 
residents used on a daily basis.

A similar shi� occurred with the advent of the Interstate system and the construction 
of an interchange at 7200 South. �e commercial focus of the area shi�ed once again to 
7200 South between I-15 and State Street.  

Commercial and development pa�erns are shi�ing again in the valley. Part of the shi� 
is due to the community’s investment in transit service but, as with the automobile and 
highway driven shi�s towards suburbia there are demographic factors at play as well. New 
households are seeking a more urban experience including in suburban areas. �ey are 
seeking an intensity of activity that allows them to have one car or visit areas where they 
only have to park once to complete their errands or participate in social events. 

Midvale along with the rest of the State is feeling pressure from current and future projected 
growth in population, households, employment and transportation demand. Figure 1 from 
the University of Utah Kem C. Gardner Policy Institute illustrates recent and projected 
future annual population change.  In this graph you can see that in 2015 population growth 
was estimated to be just under 60,000 people statewide. �e majority of the growth, about 
37,000 people, is a result of “natural increase” or the net of statewide births less statewide 
deaths. �e remaining approximately 21,000 new people in the state moved here from other 
areas of the country and world.  �e state is projected to continue experience total annual 
population growth of between 55,000 and 65,000 people annually.

I. Introduction and Overview

I. INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW

Figure 1 – Components of Population Change, 

Reprinted from Kem C. Gardner InstituteDR
AF
T

connect Los Angeles, Las Vegas and Salt Lake City. �is auto trail was a precursor to 

D
R
A
FT

connect Los Angeles, Las Vegas and Salt Lake City. �is auto trail was a precursor to 
the national highway system with the Utah portions of the trail becoming US Highways 

D
R
A
FT

the national highway system with the Utah portions of the trail becoming US Highways 
89 and 91 and other sections incorporated into I-15. With established auto routes and 

D
R
A
FT

89 and 91 and other sections incorporated into I-15. With established auto routes and 
the growing popularity of the car the commercial center of many communities shi�ed 

D
R
A
FT

the growing popularity of the car the commercial center of many communities shi�ed 
towards the new highways. �is happened in Midvale with a�ention shi�ing from 

D
R
A
FT

towards the new highways. �is happened in Midvale with a�ention shi�ing from 
historic Main Street near the smelter, mill and railroad junction east to the intersection of 

D
R
A
FT

historic Main Street near the smelter, mill and railroad junction east to the intersection of 
Center Street and State Street. �is area was home to many of the shops and services local 

D
R
A
FT

Center Street and State Street. �is area was home to many of the shops and services local 

A similar shi� occurred with the advent of the Interstate system and the construction 

D
R
A
FT

A similar shi� occurred with the advent of the Interstate system and the construction 
of an interchange at 7200 South. �e commercial focus of the area shi�ed once again to 

D
R
A
FT

of an interchange at 7200 South. �e commercial focus of the area shi�ed once again to 
7200 South between I-15 and State Street.  

D
R
A
FT

7200 South between I-15 and State Street.  

Commercial and development pa�erns are shi�ing again in the valley. Part of the shi� 

D
R
A
FT

Commercial and development pa�erns are shi�ing again in the valley. Part of the shi� 
is due to the community’s investment in transit service but, as with the automobile and 

D
R
A
FTis due to the community’s investment in transit service but, as with the automobile and 

highway driven shi�s towards suburbia there are demographic factors at play as well. New 

D
R
A
FThighway driven shi�s towards suburbia there are demographic factors at play as well. New 

households are seeking a more urban experience including in suburban areas. �ey are 

D
R
A
FThouseholds are seeking a more urban experience including in suburban areas. �ey are 

seeking an intensity of activity that allows them to have one car or visit areas where they 

D
R
A
FTseeking an intensity of activity that allows them to have one car or visit areas where they 

only have to park once to complete their errands or participate in social events. 

D
R
A
FTonly have to park once to complete their errands or participate in social events. 

Midvale along with the rest of the State is feeling pressure from current and future projected 

D
R
A
FT

Midvale along with the rest of the State is feeling pressure from current and future projected 
growth in population, households, employment and transportation demand. Figure 1 from 

D
R
A
FT

growth in population, households, employment and transportation demand. Figure 1 from 
the University of Utah Kem C. Gardner Policy Institute illustrates recent and projected 

D
R
A
FT

the University of Utah Kem C. Gardner Policy Institute illustrates recent and projected 
future annual population change.  In this graph you can see that in 2015 population growth 

D
R
A
FT

future annual population change.  In this graph you can see that in 2015 population growth 
was estimated to be just under 60,000 people statewide. �e majority of the growth, about 

D
R
A
FT

was estimated to be just under 60,000 people statewide. �e majority of the growth, about 
37,000 people, is a result of “natural increase” or the net of statewide births less statewide 

D
R
A
FT

37,000 people, is a result of “natural increase” or the net of statewide births less statewide 
deaths. �e remaining approximately 21,000 new people in the state moved here from other 

D
R
A
FT

deaths. �e remaining approximately 21,000 new people in the state moved here from other 
areas of the country and world.  �e state is projected to continue experience total annual 

D
R
A
FT

areas of the country and world.  �e state is projected to continue experience total annual 
population growth of between 55,000 and 65,000 people annually.

D
R
A
FT

population growth of between 55,000 and 65,000 people annually.

D
R
A
FT



22

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Growth in population is spread throughout the State. Figure 2 illustrates each of the State’s 27 counties’ projected share of statewide population 
between 2015 and 2065. Although Salt Lake County’s population is projected to continue to grow other areas of the state are projected to grow 
at a greater rate. �e result is that Salt Lake County, which in 2015 was estimated to house 36.5 percent of the State’s population is projected 
to house 29.1 percent in 2065. Utah County, which is 2015 was estimated to house 19.5 percent of the statewide population is projected to 
almost equal Salt Lake County’s share in 2065 at 27.8 percent.

Figure 2 – County Share of State Total Population, Reprinted from Kem C. Gardner Institute

I. Introduction and Overview

DR
AF
T

Growth in population is spread throughout the State. Figure 2 illustrates each of the State’s 27 counties’ projected share of statewide population 

D
R
A
FT

Growth in population is spread throughout the State. Figure 2 illustrates each of the State’s 27 counties’ projected share of statewide population 
between 2015 and 2065. Although Salt Lake County’s population is projected to continue to grow other areas of the state are projected to grow 

D
R
A
FT

between 2015 and 2065. Although Salt Lake County’s population is projected to continue to grow other areas of the state are projected to grow 
at a greater rate. �e result is that Salt Lake County, which in 2015 was estimated to house 36.5 percent of the State’s population is projected 

D
R
A
FT

at a greater rate. �e result is that Salt Lake County, which in 2015 was estimated to house 36.5 percent of the State’s population is projected 
to house 29.1 percent in 2065. Utah County, which is 2015 was estimated to house 19.5 percent of the statewide population is projected to 

D
R
A
FT

to house 29.1 percent in 2065. Utah County, which is 2015 was estimated to house 19.5 percent of the statewide population is projected to 

D
R
A
FT



23

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Within each county future population growth by city and town are estimated by the local planning council.  In the case of Salt 
Lake County this is Wasatch Front Regional Council.  In Table 1 you can see that an estimated 3 percent of Salt Lake County’s 
total population resided in Midvale in 2016. Wasatch Front Regional Council projects that Midvale will continue to be home to 
approximately 3 percent of Salt Lake County’s total population in 2040. �is means an additional 16,119 people in an estimated 
8,471 households will live in Midvale.

TABLE 1: POPULATION GROWTH BY AREA

2016 2040
NEW 

PEOPLE

Salt Lake County 1,179,759 1,639,706 459,947

Midvale 36,635 52,753 16,119

Jordan Bluffs 0 2,500 2,500

7200 South Station Area 1,071 1,408 337

Center Street Station Area 1,098 1,565 467

Remainder of Midvale 34,466 46,880 12,427

Source: Wasatch Front Regional Council

�e Wasatch Front Regional Council provides current and projected population for areas within Midvale as well. Table 1 also 
identi�es current estimated and 2040 projected population for the two station study areas.  �e table includes future projected 
population on Midvale’s remaining large development opportunity at Jordan Blu�s to provide insight into where the more than 
16,000 future residents of Midvale might live.

Currently there are no households on the Jordan Blu�s site. Current plans indicate a projected 2,700 people could live there 
by 2040.  �e 7200 South and Center Street station areas are projected to continue to house about 3 percent of Midvale’s 
population each.  Midvale’s remaining neighborhoods currently house 94 percent of the population. �e development of the 
Jordan Blu� ’s area will take some growth pressure o� Midvale’s remaining neighborhoods. In 2040 the remainder of Midvale is 
projected to house approximately 89 percent of the total population.

Changing development forms, facilitated by the investment in transit, have le� obsolete buildings and areas sca�ered around 
the valley, including Center Street and State Street and the 7200 South corridor from I-15 to State Street. �ese currently 
underutilized areas present an opportunity to accommodate anticipated growth in Midvale’s population as well as provide 
employment, shopping and community resources to Midvale’s current residents.  �e small area master plans resulting from this 
study will guide the transition of these two areas to return them to the vibrant community centers they once were.

I. Introduction and Overview

DR
AF
T

Within each county future population growth by city and town are estimated by the local planning council.  In the case of Salt 

D
R
A
FT

Within each county future population growth by city and town are estimated by the local planning council.  In the case of Salt 
Lake County this is Wasatch Front Regional Council.  In Table 1 you can see that an estimated 3 percent of Salt Lake County’s 

D
R
A
FT

Lake County this is Wasatch Front Regional Council.  In Table 1 you can see that an estimated 3 percent of Salt Lake County’s 
total population resided in Midvale in 2016. Wasatch Front Regional Council projects that Midvale will continue to be home to 

D
R
A
FT

total population resided in Midvale in 2016. Wasatch Front Regional Council projects that Midvale will continue to be home to 
approximately 3 percent of Salt Lake County’s total population in 2040. �is means an additional 16,119 people in an estimated 

D
R
A
FT

approximately 3 percent of Salt Lake County’s total population in 2040. �is means an additional 16,119 people in an estimated 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T2040

D
R
A
FT2040
NEW 

D
R
A
FTNEW 

PEOPLE

D
R
A
FTPEOPLE

1,179,759 1,639,706

D
R
A
FT1,179,759 1,639,706 459,947

D
R
A
FT459,947

DR
AF
T52,753

D
R
A
FT52,753 16,119

D
R
A
FT16,119

2,500

D
R
A
FT

2,500 2,500

D
R
A
FT

2,500

1,408

D
R
A
FT

1,408 337

D
R
A
FT
337

1,565

D
R
A
FT

1,565 467

D
R
A
FT
467

34,466

D
R
A
FT

34,466 46,880

D
R
A
FT

46,880 12,427

D
R
A
FT

12,427

�e Wasatch Front Regional Council provides current and projected population for areas within Midvale as well. Table 1 also 

D
R
A
FT

�e Wasatch Front Regional Council provides current and projected population for areas within Midvale as well. Table 1 also 
identi�es current estimated and 2040 projected population for the two station study areas.  �e table includes future projected 

D
R
A
FT

identi�es current estimated and 2040 projected population for the two station study areas.  �e table includes future projected 
population on Midvale’s remaining large development opportunity at Jordan Blu�s to provide insight into where the more than 

D
R
A
FT

population on Midvale’s remaining large development opportunity at Jordan Blu�s to provide insight into where the more than 

Currently there are no households on the Jordan Blu�s site. Current plans indicate a projected 2,700 people could live there 

D
R
A
FT

Currently there are no households on the Jordan Blu�s site. Current plans indicate a projected 2,700 people could live there 

DR
AF
T

by 2040.  �e 7200 South and Center Street station areas are projected to continue to house about 3 percent of Midvale’s 

D
R
A
FT

by 2040.  �e 7200 South and Center Street station areas are projected to continue to house about 3 percent of Midvale’s 
population each.  Midvale’s remaining neighborhoods currently house 94 percent of the population. �e development of the 

D
R
A
FT

population each.  Midvale’s remaining neighborhoods currently house 94 percent of the population. �e development of the 
Jordan Blu� ’s area will take some growth pressure o� Midvale’s remaining neighborhoods. In 2040 the remainder of Midvale is 

D
R
A
FT

Jordan Blu� ’s area will take some growth pressure o� Midvale’s remaining neighborhoods. In 2040 the remainder of Midvale is 
projected to house approximately 89 percent of the total population.

D
R
A
FT

projected to house approximately 89 percent of the total population.

Changing development forms, facilitated by the investment in transit, have le� obsolete buildings and areas sca�ered around D
R
A
FT

Changing development forms, facilitated by the investment in transit, have le� obsolete buildings and areas sca�ered around 
the valley, including Center Street and State Street and the 7200 South corridor from I-15 to State Street. �ese currently D

R
A
FT

the valley, including Center Street and State Street and the 7200 South corridor from I-15 to State Street. �ese currently 
underutilized areas present an opportunity to accommodate anticipated growth in Midvale’s population as well as provide D

R
A
FT

underutilized areas present an opportunity to accommodate anticipated growth in Midvale’s population as well as provide 
employment, shopping and community resources to Midvale’s current residents.  �e small area master plans resulting from this D

R
A
FT

employment, shopping and community resources to Midvale’s current residents.  �e small area master plans resulting from this DR
AF
T

study will guide the transition of these two areas to return them to the vibrant community centers they once were.D
R
A
FT

study will guide the transition of these two areas to return them to the vibrant community centers they once were.



DR
AF
T



25

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

II. PLANNING PROCESS
A public input intensive process was used to develop the recommendations for each of the study areas in this plan.  Figure 3 is an organizational �ow chart identifying the 
stakeholder group and public workshop structure of the planning process.

Figure 3 - Planning Organizational Chart

II. Planning Process

DR
AF
T

A public input intensive process was used to develop the recommendations for each of the study areas in this plan.  Figure 3 is an organizational �ow chart identifying the 

D
R
A
FT

A public input intensive process was used to develop the recommendations for each of the study areas in this plan.  Figure 3 is an organizational �ow chart identifying the 

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure 3 - Planning Organizational ChartD
R
A
FT

Figure 3 - Planning Organizational Chart



26

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Each of the groups in Figure 3 reviewed and provided input at each step in the planning process.  Figure 4 identi�es the �ve basic steps in the process.

Figure 4 - Planning Process Chart

Step 1– Existing Conditions & Market Opportunities focused on the current state of development in each of the 
station areas and current and projected real estate market conditions.  �e information generated in this step was 
provided to each of the planning groups to inform their discussions and recommendations. �e Existing Conditions 
report is included as Appendix B to this Plan.

Step 2 – Visioning & Guiding Principles were initially developed by the Internal Stakeholder Commi�ee and 
further re�ned by the Midvale & Transit Riding Community. �e �ve principles developed for each of the station 
areas were used in the planning process to evaluate options and to inform recommendations.

Step 3 – Review & Feedback on Options occurred at all levels of the planning process organization chart. �ree 
options for each station were developed that clearly di�erentiated between minimal new developed to complete 
transformation. 

Step 4 – Identify Preferences & Recommendation was an interactive process at the Internal Stakeholder Commi�ee 
and the Midvale & Transit Riding Community levels. �e recommended plans for each of the station areas represent 
a consensus approach for the planning areas.

Step 5 – Submit Dra� Plan for Review. �is dra� plan was presented and discussed the City Council on September 
11, 2018. 

A project website with the URL www.MidvaleStationPlans.org was created to provide updated information about 
the planning process and to generate feedback from interested parties.  Over the course of the planning period 795 
individuals visited the website.  A summary of the comments and survey results are included as Appendix A to this 
document. A complete report including speci�c input can be found in Exhibit A of this Plan.

As part of the planning process the consulting team completed an analysis of parking needs in station areas. 
�is analysis guides the estimated parking needs for future development in the planning areas and also informs 
recommended changes to Midvale station area zoning provisions.  �e complete Parking Analysis can be found as 
Appendix C to this Plan.

II. Planning Process

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Each of the groups in Figure 3 reviewed and provided input at each step in the planning process.  Figure 4 identi�es the �ve basic steps in the process.

D
R
A
FT

Each of the groups in Figure 3 reviewed and provided input at each step in the planning process.  Figure 4 identi�es the �ve basic steps in the process.

– Existing Conditions & Market Opportunities focused on the current state of development in each of the 

D
R
A
FT

– Existing Conditions & Market Opportunities focused on the current state of development in each of the 
station areas and current and projected real estate market conditions.  �e information generated in this step was 

D
R
A
FT

station areas and current and projected real estate market conditions.  �e information generated in this step was 
provided to each of the planning groups to inform their discussions and recommendations. �e Existing Conditions 

D
R
A
FT

provided to each of the planning groups to inform their discussions and recommendations. �e Existing Conditions 
report is included as Appendix B to this Plan.

D
R
A
FTreport is included as Appendix B to this Plan.

 – Visioning & Guiding Principles were initially developed by the Internal Stakeholder Commi�ee and 

D
R
A
FT – Visioning & Guiding Principles were initially developed by the Internal Stakeholder Commi�ee and 

further re�ned by the Midvale & Transit Riding Community. �e �ve principles developed for each of the station 

D
R
A
FTfurther re�ned by the Midvale & Transit Riding Community. �e �ve principles developed for each of the station 

areas were used in the planning process to evaluate options and to inform recommendations.

D
R
A
FTareas were used in the planning process to evaluate options and to inform recommendations.

 – Review & Feedback on Options occurred at all levels of the planning process organization chart. �ree 

D
R
A
FT – Review & Feedback on Options occurred at all levels of the planning process organization chart. �ree 

options for each station were developed that clearly di�erentiated between minimal new developed to complete 

D
R
A
FT

options for each station were developed that clearly di�erentiated between minimal new developed to complete 

– Identify Preferences & Recommendation was an interactive process at the Internal Stakeholder Commi�ee 

D
R
A
FT

– Identify Preferences & Recommendation was an interactive process at the Internal Stakeholder Commi�ee 
and the Midvale & Transit Riding Community levels. �e recommended plans for each of the station areas represent 

D
R
A
FT

and the Midvale & Transit Riding Community levels. �e recommended plans for each of the station areas represent 
a consensus approach for the planning areas.

D
R
A
FT

a consensus approach for the planning areas.

Step 5

D
R
A
FT

Step 5 – Submit Dra� Plan for Review. �is dra� plan was presented and discussed the City Council on September 

D
R
A
FT

 – Submit Dra� Plan for Review. �is dra� plan was presented and discussed the City Council on September 
11, 2018. 

D
R
A
FT

11, 2018. 

A project website with the URL www.MidvaleStationPlans.org was created to provide updated information about 

D
R
A
FT

A project website with the URL www.MidvaleStationPlans.org was created to provide updated information about 
the planning process and to generate feedback from interested parties.  Over the course of the planning period 795 

D
R
A
FT

the planning process and to generate feedback from interested parties.  Over the course of the planning period 795 
individuals visited the website.  A summary of the comments and survey results are included as Appendix A to this 

D
R
A
FT

individuals visited the website.  A summary of the comments and survey results are included as Appendix A to this 
document. A complete report including speci�c input can be found in Exhibit A of this Plan.

D
R
A
FT

document. A complete report including speci�c input can be found in Exhibit A of this Plan.

As part of the planning process the consulting team completed an analysis of parking needs in station areas. 

D
R
A
FT

As part of the planning process the consulting team completed an analysis of parking needs in station areas. 
�is analysis guides the estimated parking needs for future development in the planning areas and also informs 

D
R
A
FT

�is analysis guides the estimated parking needs for future development in the planning areas and also informs 
recommended changes to Midvale station area zoning provisions.  �e complete Parking Analysis can be found as 

D
R
A
FT

recommended changes to Midvale station area zoning provisions.  �e complete Parking Analysis can be found as 
Appendix C to this Plan.D
R
A
FT

Appendix C to this Plan.



27

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Phase 1 of the planning process identi�ed a working vision for each station area as well as priority targeted land uses. During phase 1 the consulting team also completed an 
analysis of existing economic, real estate, and physical conditions of each of the planning areas.  Existing conditions were used to inform discussions with the Internal and 
External Stakeholders as well as to inform the evaluation of the three planning options developed for each area.

�e options di�er based on intensity of future use as illustrated in height and density of development and the amount of human focused, public space included in the area.

7200 SOUTH STATION AREA

OPTION 1

Each alternative is meant to build on the impact of the one previous to provide a range of development options for the community. Figures 5 and 6 illustrate the lowest level 
of intensity of use and public infrastructure. As 7200 South Option 1, this alternative provides the least development impact of the three with a moderate scale of change.

III. FUTURE STATION AREA OPTIONS

III. Future Station Area Options

Figure 5 – 7200 South Station Area Option 1 – Perspective

DR
AF
T

Phase 1 of the planning process identi�ed a working vision for each station area as well as priority targeted land uses. During phase 1 the consulting team also completed an 

D
R
A
FT

Phase 1 of the planning process identi�ed a working vision for each station area as well as priority targeted land uses. During phase 1 the consulting team also completed an 
analysis of existing economic, real estate, and physical conditions of each of the planning areas.  Existing conditions were used to inform discussions with the Internal and 

D
R
A
FT

analysis of existing economic, real estate, and physical conditions of each of the planning areas.  Existing conditions were used to inform discussions with the Internal and 
External Stakeholders as well as to inform the evaluation of the three planning options developed for each area.

D
R
A
FT

External Stakeholders as well as to inform the evaluation of the three planning options developed for each area.

�e options di�er based on intensity of future use as illustrated in height and density of development and the amount of human focused, public space included in the area.

D
R
A
FT�e options di�er based on intensity of future use as illustrated in height and density of development and the amount of human focused, public space included in the area.

DR
AF
TEach alternative is meant to build on the impact of the one previous to provide a range of development options for the community. Figures 5 and 6 illustrate the lowest level 

D
R
A
FTEach alternative is meant to build on the impact of the one previous to provide a range of development options for the community. Figures 5 and 6 illustrate the lowest level 

of intensity of use and public infrastructure. As 7200 South Option 1, this alternative provides the least development impact of the three with a moderate scale of change.

D
R
A
FT

of intensity of use and public infrastructure. As 7200 South Option 1, this alternative provides the least development impact of the three with a moderate scale of change.

D
R
A
FT



28

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Figure 6 – 7200 South Station Area Option 1 – Plan View

III. Future Station Area Options

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure 6 – 7200 South Station Area Option 1 – Plan ViewD
R
A
FT

Figure 6 – 7200 South Station Area Option 1 – Plan View



29

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

�e main focus of this option is the redevelopment of the UTA property to the east of the station and other key properties along 
7200 South. One major element of this option is the shared road from Catalpa Road through the station area.  �is multi-use 
road can be extended east to State Street as redevelopment occurs in the 7200 South area.

Table 2 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 1. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by 
land use type in Midvale and how much of future need is met by the option.

TABLE 2: 7200 SOUTH OPTION 1 DEVELOPMENT TYPES AND INTENSITY

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES
2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

% OF 2040 
GROWTH  

PROJECTION

Residential 124 118,800 3 8,471 1%

Office 324,000 2 483,000 67%

Hotel 507 312,000 2 998 51%

Retail 117,000 3 1,000,000 12%

Parking 4

Public Space  192,500 4   

�is new right of way exists in one form or another in each 7200 South Development Option and provides activation for the 
large blocks in the focus area. �is new development corridor is the organizing feature for redevelopment of the station area and 
represents a signi�cant investment in new public space. 

III. Future Station Area Options

DR
AF
T�e main focus of this option is the redevelopment of the UTA property to the east of the station and other key properties along 

D
R
A
FT�e main focus of this option is the redevelopment of the UTA property to the east of the station and other key properties along 

7200 South. One major element of this option is the shared road from Catalpa Road through the station area.  �is multi-use 

D
R
A
FT7200 South. One major element of this option is the shared road from Catalpa Road through the station area.  �is multi-use 

Table 2 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 1. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by 

D
R
A
FTTable 2 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 1. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

2040 GROWTH 

D
R
A
FT

2040 GROWTH 
PROJECTION

D
R
A
FT

PROJECTION

% OF 2040 

D
R
A
FT

% OF 2040 
GROWTH  

D
R
A
FT

GROWTH  
PROJECTION

D
R
A
FT

PROJECTION

3

D
R
A
FT

3 8,471 1%

D
R
A
FT

8,471 1%8,471 1%

D
R
A
FT

8,471 1%

2

D
R
A
FT

2 483,000

D
R
A
FT

483,000 67%

D
R
A
FT

67%

2

D
R
A
FT

2 998 51%

D
R
A
FT

998 51%998 51%

D
R
A
FT

998 51%

3 1,000,000 12%

D
R
A
FT

3 1,000,000 12%3 1,000,000 12%

D
R
A
FT

3 1,000,000 12%3 1,000,000 12%

D
R
A
FT

3 1,000,000 12%

4

D
R
A
FT

4

DR
AF
T

 192,500

D
R
A
FT

 192,500 4

D
R
A
FT

4

�is new right of way exists in one form or another in each 7200 South Development Option and provides activation for the 

D
R
A
FT

�is new right of way exists in one form or another in each 7200 South Development Option and provides activation for the 
large blocks in the focus area. �is new development corridor is the organizing feature for redevelopment of the station area and 

D
R
A
FT

large blocks in the focus area. �is new development corridor is the organizing feature for redevelopment of the station area and 
represents a signi�cant investment in new public space. 

D
R
A
FT

represents a signi�cant investment in new public space. 



30

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

OPTION 2

Figures 7 and 8 illustrate option 2 for the 7200 South Station area builds on the multi-use roadway extending from Catalpa through the station area.  �e option includes 
additional intensity of use throughout the station area.  

Figure 7 – 7200 South Station Area Option 2 – Perspective

III. Future Station Area Options

D
R
A
FT

Figures 7 and 8 illustrate option 2 for the 7200 South Station area builds on the multi-use roadway extending from Catalpa through the station area.  �e option includes 

D
R
A
FT

Figures 7 and 8 illustrate option 2 for the 7200 South Station area builds on the multi-use roadway extending from Catalpa through the station area.  �e option includes 

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

Figure 7 – 7200 South Station Area Option 2 – PerspectiveD
R
A
FT

Figure 7 – 7200 South Station Area Option 2 – Perspective



31

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

Figure 8 – 7200 South Station Area Option 2 – Plan ViewDR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure 8 – 7200 South Station Area Option 2 – Plan ViewD
R
A
FT

Figure 8 – 7200 South Station Area Option 2 – Plan View



32

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

�e multi-use roadway concept introduced in Option 1 is expanded in Option 2 to allow for more intensive uses. �e focus of the public space 
should be on outdoor recreation and as a “basecamp” for visitors to the hotels restaurants and shops in the area. 

Table 3 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 2. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in 
Midvale and how much of future need is met by the option.

TABLE 3: 7200 SOUTH OPTION 2 DEVELOPMENT TYPES AND INTENSITY

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES
2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

% OF 2040 
GROWTH  

PROJECTION

Residential 224 212,400 5 8,471 3%

Office 432,000 3 483,000 89%

Hotel 338 208,000 2 998 34%

Retail 107,900 2 1,000,000 11%

Parking 4

Public Space  360,000 8   

Option 2 includes 8 acres of plaza space as an amenity for all Midvale City residents, hotel guests and area employees. Amenities in the public 
space should re�ect the station area brand – outdoor recreation. Amenities could include ice skating, a rock wall, or even a kayaking river.

�e addition of the new right of way and substantial plaza space improves connectivity throughout the area. A new road connects the corridor 
to Millennium Way and provides easy access from the new o�ce spaces. �e bus circle originally located just south of the station is moved 
north to allow passengers to disembark directly adjacent the station.

III. Future Station Area Options

DR
AF
T

�e multi-use roadway concept introduced in Option 1 is expanded in Option 2 to allow for more intensive uses. �e focus of the public space 

D
R
A
FT

�e multi-use roadway concept introduced in Option 1 is expanded in Option 2 to allow for more intensive uses. �e focus of the public space 
should be on outdoor recreation and as a “basecamp” for visitors to the hotels restaurants and shops in the area. 

D
R
A
FT

should be on outdoor recreation and as a “basecamp” for visitors to the hotels restaurants and shops in the area. 

Table 3 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 2. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in 

D
R
A
FT

Table 3 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 2. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T2040 GROWTH 

D
R
A
FT2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

D
R
A
FTPROJECTION

% OF 2040 

D
R
A
FT% OF 2040 

GROWTH  

D
R
A
FTGROWTH  

PROJECTION

D
R
A
FTPROJECTION

8,471 3%

D
R
A
FT

8,471 3%8,471 3%

D
R
A
FT

8,471 3%

483,000

D
R
A
FT

483,000 89%

D
R
A
FT

89%

DR
AF
T

998 34%

D
R
A
FT

998 34%998 34%

D
R
A
FT

998 34%

2 1,000,000 11%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 11%2 1,000,000 11%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 11%2 1,000,000 11%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 11%

4

D
R
A
FT

4

8

D
R
A
FT

8

Option 2 includes 8 acres of plaza space as an amenity for all Midvale City residents, hotel guests and area employees. Amenities in the public 

D
R
A
FT

Option 2 includes 8 acres of plaza space as an amenity for all Midvale City residents, hotel guests and area employees. Amenities in the public 
space should re�ect the station area brand – outdoor recreation. Amenities could include ice skating, a rock wall, or even a kayaking river.

D
R
A
FT

space should re�ect the station area brand – outdoor recreation. Amenities could include ice skating, a rock wall, or even a kayaking river.

�e addition of the new right of way and substantial plaza space improves connectivity throughout the area. A new road connects the corridor 

D
R
A
FT

�e addition of the new right of way and substantial plaza space improves connectivity throughout the area. A new road connects the corridor 
to Millennium Way and provides easy access from the new o�ce spaces. �e bus circle originally located just south of the station is moved 

D
R
A
FT

to Millennium Way and provides easy access from the new o�ce spaces. �e bus circle originally located just south of the station is moved 
north to allow passengers to disembark directly adjacent the station.

D
R
A
FT

north to allow passengers to disembark directly adjacent the station.



33

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

OPTION 3

Figures 9 and 10 represent Option 3 for the 7200 South Station area, which further expands on the multi-use roadway extending from Catalpa through the station area.  �e 
option includes signi�cant intensity of use along the 7200 South frontage and an expanded multi-use roadway concept.

III. Future Station Area Options

Figure 9 – 7200 South Station Area Option 3 – PerspectiveDR
AF
TFigures 9 and 10 represent Option 3 for the 7200 South Station area, which further expands on the multi-use roadway extending from Catalpa through the station area.  �e 

D
R
A
FT

Figures 9 and 10 represent Option 3 for the 7200 South Station area, which further expands on the multi-use roadway extending from Catalpa through the station area.  �e 
option includes signi�cant intensity of use along the 7200 South frontage and an expanded multi-use roadway concept.

D
R
A
FT

option includes signi�cant intensity of use along the 7200 South frontage and an expanded multi-use roadway concept.

D
R
A
FT

Figure 9 – 7200 South Station Area Option 3 – PerspectiveD
R
A
FT

Figure 9 – 7200 South Station Area Option 3 – Perspective



34

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

Figure 10 – 7200 South Station Area Option 3 – Plan ViewDR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure 10 – 7200 South Station Area Option 3 – Plan ViewD
R
A
FT

Figure 10 – 7200 South Station Area Option 3 – Plan View



35

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

Option 3 for the 7200 South station area is a full district redevelopment on both sides of 7200 South and the rail line. �e 
scenario includes a new pedestrian-oriented road similar to Option 2; however, this option includes more intense massing along 
the corridor.

�e entire area, including old pedestrian infrastructure, bene�ts from network improvements and additions, new pedestrian-
oriented streets and numerous plaza spaces. Many new 7200 South crossings are implemented.

Table 4 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 3. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by 
land use type in Midvale and how much of future need is met by the option.

TABLE 4: 7200 SOUTH OPTION 3 DEVELOPMENT TYPES AND INTENSITY

LAND USE UNITS SF OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

Residential 876 799,200 18 8,471 10%

Office 216,000 1 483,000 45%

Hotel 748 460,000 3 998 75%

Retail 132,000 3 1,000,000 13%

Parking 5

Public Space  385,000 9   

More intensive use of property in the station area results in additional public and private investment. Accordingly, Option 3 
includes a public plaza not seen in Options 1 and 2, located directly west of the transit station.

DR
AF
TOption 3 for the 7200 South station area is a full district redevelopment on both sides of 7200 South and the rail line. �e 

D
R
A
FTOption 3 for the 7200 South station area is a full district redevelopment on both sides of 7200 South and the rail line. �e 

scenario includes a new pedestrian-oriented road similar to Option 2; however, this option includes more intense massing along 

D
R
A
FTscenario includes a new pedestrian-oriented road similar to Option 2; however, this option includes more intense massing along 

�e entire area, including old pedestrian infrastructure, bene�ts from network improvements and additions, new pedestrian-

D
R
A
FT�e entire area, including old pedestrian infrastructure, bene�ts from network improvements and additions, new pedestrian-

oriented streets and numerous plaza spaces. Many new 7200 South crossings are implemented.

D
R
A
FToriented streets and numerous plaza spaces. Many new 7200 South crossings are implemented.

Table 4 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 3. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by 

D
R
A
FT

Table 4 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 3. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

TABLE 4: 7200 SOUTH OPTION 3 DEVELOPMENT TYPES AND INTENSITY

D
R
A
FT

TABLE 4: 7200 SOUTH OPTION 3 DEVELOPMENT TYPES AND INTENSITY

SF OPTION 1

D
R
A
FT

SF OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

D
R
A
FT

OPTION 2 OPTION 3

18

D
R
A
FT

18 8,471 10%

D
R
A
FT

8,471 10%8,471 10%

D
R
A
FT

8,471 10%

1

D
R
A
FT

1 483,000 45%

D
R
A
FT

483,000 45%483,000 45%

D
R
A
FT

483,000 45%

3

D
R
A
FT

3 998

D
R
A
FT

998

3 1,000,000 13%

D
R
A
FT

3 1,000,000 13%3 1,000,000 13%

D
R
A
FT

3 1,000,000 13%3 1,000,000 13%

D
R
A
FT

3 1,000,000 13%

5

D
R
A
FT

5

 385,000

D
R
A
FT

 385,000

DR
AF
T

9

D
R
A
FT

9

More intensive use of property in the station area results in additional public and private investment. Accordingly, Option 3 

D
R
A
FT

More intensive use of property in the station area results in additional public and private investment. Accordingly, Option 3 

DR
AF
T

includes a public plaza not seen in Options 1 and 2, located directly west of the transit station.

D
R
A
FT

includes a public plaza not seen in Options 1 and 2, located directly west of the transit station.



36

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

PUBLIC RESPONSE

As seen in Table 5 input from a�endees of the external stakeholders meeting and online demonstrated a preference for Option 2 in most categories. �e preferred solution 
is a combination of Options 2 and 3 using the public space network of 3 and the intensity of future use of 2.

TABLE 5: SUMMARY OF 7200 SOUTH AREA SURVEY RESULTS - COMPARATIVE QUESTIONS

OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

Which option would best achieve a positive major transformation of the area? 8% 67% 25%

Which option would strike the best balance between cars and human spaces? 11% 62% 27%

Which option is best internally connected? 0% 47% 53%

Which option makes the future development a neighborhood asset? 8% 61% 32%

Which option would engage redevelopment of the area? 11% 37% 53%

Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46% 38%

KEY TAKEAWAYS

�e public input process also measured opinions on speci�c land uses summarized in Table 6. Redevelopment of the station area with the following uses enjoys signi�cant 
public support:

•  O�ce

•  Hotel/Hospitality

•  Recreation

•  Market-rate housing

•  Public space

TABLE 6: COMPARISON OPTIONS LAND USES

NOT 
ENOUGH

JUST RIGHT TOO MUCH

Option 1 Housing is: 59% 38% 3%

Option 2 Housing is: 26% 71% 3%

Option 3 Housing is: 5% 20% 75%

Option 1 Office is: 27% 51% 22%

Option 2 Office is: 20% 45% 35%

Option 3 Office is: 29% 71% 0%

Option 1 Retail is: 21% 61% 18%

Option 2 Retail is: 50% 42% 8%

Option 3 Retail is: 35% 62% 3%

Option 1 Public Space is: 76% 24% 0%

Option 2 Public Space is: 21% 79% 0%

Option 3 Public Space is: 13% 63% 24%

III. Future Station Area Options

DR
AF
T

As seen in Table 5 input from a�endees of the external stakeholders meeting and online demonstrated a preference for Option 2 in most categories. �e preferred solution 

D
R
A
FT

As seen in Table 5 input from a�endees of the external stakeholders meeting and online demonstrated a preference for Option 2 in most categories. �e preferred solution 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TOPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

D
R
A
FTOPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

8%

D
R
A
FT8% 67%

D
R
A
FT67% 25%

D
R
A
FT25%

11%

D
R
A
FT11% 62%

D
R
A
FT62% 27%

D
R
A
FT27%

0%

D
R
A
FT0% 47%

D
R
A
FT47%

8%

D
R
A
FT8% 61%

D
R
A
FT61%

11%

D
R
A
FT

11%

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

37%

D
R
A
FT

37%

Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%

D
R
A
FT

Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%

D
R
A
FT

Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%

D
R
A
FT

Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%

D
R
A
FT

Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%

D
R
A
FT

Which option best supports potential for a “Recreation and Hospitality Hub” brand? 15% 46%

�e public input process also measured opinions on speci�c land uses summarized in Table 6. Redevelopment of the station area with the following uses enjoys signi�cant 

D
R
A
FT

�e public input process also measured opinions on speci�c land uses summarized in Table 6. Redevelopment of the station area with the following uses enjoys signi�cant 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

TABLE 6: COMPARISON OPTIONS LAND USES

D
R
A
FT

TABLE 6: COMPARISON OPTIONS LAND USES

Option 1 Housing is:

D
R
A
FT

Option 1 Housing is:

Option 2 Housing is:

D
R
A
FT

Option 2 Housing is:

Option 3 Housing is:

D
R
A
FT

Option 3 Housing is:

Option 1 Office is:

D
R
A
FT

Option 1 Office is:

Option 2 Office is:

D
R
A
FT

Option 2 Office is:

Option 3 Office is:

D
R
A
FT

Option 3 Office is:

Option 1 Retail is:D
R
A
FT

Option 1 Retail is:

Option 2 Retail is:D
R
A
FT

Option 2 Retail is:

Option 3 Retail is:D
R
A
FT

Option 3 Retail is:

Option 1 Public Space is:D
R
A
FT

Option 1 Public Space is:

Option 2 Public Space is:D
R
A
FT

Option 2 Public Space is:

Option 3 Public Space is:D
R
A
FT

Option 3 Public Space is:



37

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

�e location and intensity of each of the uses must be carefully considered.  Public input has indicated that the intensities summarized in Table 7 are preferred.

TABLE 7:  PREFERRED INTENSITY BY LAND USE - 7200 SOUTH

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES

Residential 224 212,400 5

Office 216,000 1

Retail 124,500 3

Human Designed Public Space 360,000 8

Total Developed   17

GSBS completed preliminary planning level pro forma analysis of the viability of each of the options in the private development market.  �e analysis used the rental rates 
and market opportunity identi�ed in the existing conditions analysis as inputs to the pro-forma. �e inputs and full description of the pro forma analysis can be found in 
Appendix B.  Table 8 summarizes the results for each of the 7200 South Station Area options.

TABLE 8: 7200 SOUTH OPTIONS FUTURE VALUE

LAND USE OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

Residential $25,327,660 $45,753,191 $138,076,596

Office $92,821,119 $123,761,492 $61,880,746

Hotel $221,304,177 $147,536,118 $510,701,947

Retail/Restaurant $247,806,354 $228,532,526 $279,576,399

Total Private Value $587,259,310 $545,583,328 $990,235,688

Total Future Assessed Value $575,861,863 $524,994,392 $928,101,220

Midvale 2017 Ad Valorem Tax Rate 0.001309 0.001309 0.001309

Estimated Annual Midvale City Property Tax $753,803 $687,218 $1,214,884

Years to Pay for Public Space 12 25 15

As can be seen in the comparison table, Option 3 would generate the highest new taxable value for the City and pay back the investment in new public space in 15 years 
(assuming Midvale City participation only.)

III. Future Station Area Options

DR
AF
T

�e location and intensity of each of the uses must be carefully considered.  Public input has indicated that the intensities summarized in Table 7 are preferred.

D
R
A
FT

�e location and intensity of each of the uses must be carefully considered.  Public input has indicated that the intensities summarized in Table 7 are preferred.

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TSF ACRES

D
R
A
FTSF ACRES

212,400

D
R
A
FT212,400 5

D
R
A
FT5

216,000

D
R
A
FT216,000 1

D
R
A
FT1124,500

D
R
A
FT124,500 3

D
R
A
FT3

360,000

D
R
A
FT360,000 8

D
R
A
FT8

17

D
R
A
FT17

GSBS completed preliminary planning level pro forma analysis of the viability of each of the options in the private development market.  �e analysis used the rental rates 

D
R
A
FT

GSBS completed preliminary planning level pro forma analysis of the viability of each of the options in the private development market.  �e analysis used the rental rates 
and market opportunity identi�ed in the existing conditions analysis as inputs to the pro-forma. �e inputs and full description of the pro forma analysis can be found in 

D
R
A
FT

and market opportunity identi�ed in the existing conditions analysis as inputs to the pro-forma. �e inputs and full description of the pro forma analysis can be found in 
Appendix B.  Table 8 summarizes the results for each of the 7200 South Station Area options.

D
R
A
FT

Appendix B.  Table 8 summarizes the results for each of the 7200 South Station Area options.

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

OPTION 1

D
R
A
FT

OPTION 1 OPTION 2

D
R
A
FT

OPTION 2

$25,327,660

D
R
A
FT

$25,327,660 $45,753,191 $138,076,596

D
R
A
FT

$45,753,191 $138,076,596

$92,821,119 $123,761,492 $61,880,746

D
R
A
FT

$92,821,119 $123,761,492 $61,880,746$92,821,119 $123,761,492 $61,880,746

D
R
A
FT

$92,821,119 $123,761,492 $61,880,746

$221,304,177 $147,536,118 $510,701,947

D
R
A
FT

$221,304,177 $147,536,118 $510,701,947$221,304,177 $147,536,118 $510,701,947

D
R
A
FT

$221,304,177 $147,536,118 $510,701,947

$247,806,354 $228,532,526 $279,576,399

D
R
A
FT

$247,806,354 $228,532,526 $279,576,399$247,806,354 $228,532,526 $279,576,399

D
R
A
FT

$247,806,354 $228,532,526 $279,576,399

$587,259,310 $545,583,328 $990,235,688

D
R
A
FT

$587,259,310 $545,583,328 $990,235,688$587,259,310 $545,583,328 $990,235,688

D
R
A
FT

$587,259,310 $545,583,328 $990,235,688

$575,861,863 $524,994,392 $928,101,220

D
R
A
FT

$575,861,863 $524,994,392 $928,101,220

Midvale 2017 Ad Valorem Tax Rate

D
R
A
FT

Midvale 2017 Ad Valorem Tax Rate 0.001309

D
R
A
FT

0.001309DR
AF
T

Estimated Annual Midvale City Property Tax

D
R
A
FT

Estimated Annual Midvale City Property Tax $753,803

D
R
A
FT

$753,803

Years to Pay for Public Space D
R
A
FT

Years to Pay for Public Space

As can be seen in the comparison table, Option 3 would generate the highest new taxable value for the City and pay back the investment in new public space in 15 years D
R
A
FT

As can be seen in the comparison table, Option 3 would generate the highest new taxable value for the City and pay back the investment in new public space in 15 years 
(assuming Midvale City participation only.)D

R
A
FT

(assuming Midvale City participation only.)



38

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

TABLE 9: MARKET SHARE OF PREFERRED DEVELOPMENT - 7200 SOUTH

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES
2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

% OF 2040 
GROWTH 

PROJECTION

Residential 224 212,400 5 8,471 3%

Office 216,000 1 483,000 45%

Retail 124,500 3 1,000,000 12%

Hotel 338 208,000 2 998 34%

Total Private Development  760,900 11   
Public Space  385,000 9   

Table 10 provides the planning level preliminary pro forma for the preferred development at 7200 South. �e public space investment is comparable to the investment 
assumed in 7200 South Development Option 3 but the intensities of future use are closer to the values of 7200 South Development Option 2.

TABLE 10: 7200 SOUTH STATION AREA PREFERRED OPTION PRO FORMA SUMMARY

LAND USE INVESTMENT COST
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

VALUE

Residential $37,170,000 $42,893,617

Office $37,800,000 $58,013,199

Hotel $36,400,000 $127,864,636

Retail/Restaurant $21,787,500 $24,014,750

Development Parking $74,415,000 $0

Total Private Cost/Value $207,572,500 $252,786,203

Public Space $18,000,000 $0

Total Future Assessed Value $233,484,075

Midvale 2017 Ad Valorem Tax Rate 0.001309

Estimated Annual Midvale City Property Tax $305,631

Public:Private Leverage $12

Years to Pay Back Public Investment 59

SUMMARY OF OPPORTUNITY

Implementation of the preferred level of future development in the 7200 South Station Area will depend on real estate market forces and the ability of developers to gain 
ownership of area properties.  Demand for the homes, o�ce space and shops in the planning area is expected to remain high.  Table 9 identi�es the anticipated market share 
for the preferred intensity of future development.

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TPROJECTION

D
R
A
FTPROJECTION

% OF 2040 

D
R
A
FT% OF 2040 

GROWTH 

D
R
A
FTGROWTH 

PROJECTION

D
R
A
FTPROJECTION

8,471 3%

D
R
A
FT8,471 3%8,471 3%

D
R
A
FT8,471 3%

483,000 45%

D
R
A
FT483,000 45%483,000 45%

D
R
A
FT483,000 45%

3 1,000,000 12%

D
R
A
FT3 1,000,000 12%3 1,000,000 12%

D
R
A
FT3 1,000,000 12%

998 34%

D
R
A
FT

998 34%998 34%

D
R
A
FT

998 34%

DR
AF
T

  

D
R
A
FT

    

D
R
A
FT

  
9

D
R
A
FT

9

Table 10 provides the planning level preliminary pro forma for the preferred development at 7200 South. �e public space investment is comparable to the investment 

D
R
A
FT

Table 10 provides the planning level preliminary pro forma for the preferred development at 7200 South. �e public space investment is comparable to the investment 
assumed in 7200 South Development Option 3 but the intensities of future use are closer to the values of 7200 South Development Option 2.

D
R
A
FT

assumed in 7200 South Development Option 3 but the intensities of future use are closer to the values of 7200 South Development Option 2.

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

TABLE 10: 7200 SOUTH STATION AREA PREFERRED OPTION PRO FORMA SUMMARY

D
R
A
FT

TABLE 10: 7200 SOUTH STATION AREA PREFERRED OPTION PRO FORMA SUMMARY

INVESTMENT COST

D
R
A
FT

INVESTMENT COST
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

D
R
A
FT

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

$37,170,000

D
R
A
FT

$37,170,000

$37,800,000

D
R
A
FT

$37,800,000

$36,400,000

D
R
A
FT

$36,400,000

$21,787,500

D
R
A
FT

$21,787,500

$74,415,000

D
R
A
FT

$74,415,000

Total Private Cost/Value

D
R
A
FT

Total Private Cost/Value $207,572,500

D
R
A
FT

$207,572,500

Midvale 2017 Ad Valorem Tax Rate D
R
A
FT

Midvale 2017 Ad Valorem Tax Rate

Estimated Annual Midvale City Property TaxD
R
A
FT

Estimated Annual Midvale City Property Tax

Implementation of the preferred level of future development in the 7200 South Station Area will depend on real estate market forces and the ability of developers to gain 

D
R
A
FT

Implementation of the preferred level of future development in the 7200 South Station Area will depend on real estate market forces and the ability of developers to gain 
ownership of area properties.  Demand for the homes, o�ce space and shops in the planning area is expected to remain high.  Table 9 identi�es the anticipated market share 

D
R
A
FT

ownership of area properties.  Demand for the homes, o�ce space and shops in the planning area is expected to remain high.  Table 9 identi�es the anticipated market share 



39

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

�e years to pay back public investment is longer than any of the three options presented during the planning process. Increased intensity of activity close to the 7200 South 
frontage and at the station will increase the future development value, increase public/private leverage and decrease the years to pay back the public investment. Other 
strategies to decrease the years to pay back public investment include creating a partnership with other taxing entities including UTA and Salt Lake County to participate in 
the project.

Figure 11 – Center Street Station Area Option 1 – PerspectiveDR
AF
T

�e years to pay back public investment is longer than any of the three options presented during the planning process. Increased intensity of activity close to the 7200 South 

D
R
A
FT

�e years to pay back public investment is longer than any of the three options presented during the planning process. Increased intensity of activity close to the 7200 South 
frontage and at the station will increase the future development value, increase public/private leverage and decrease the years to pay back the public investment. Other 

D
R
A
FT

frontage and at the station will increase the future development value, increase public/private leverage and decrease the years to pay back the public investment. Other 
strategies to decrease the years to pay back public investment include creating a partnership with other taxing entities including UTA and Salt Lake County to participate in 

D
R
A
FT

strategies to decrease the years to pay back public investment include creating a partnership with other taxing entities including UTA and Salt Lake County to participate in 

D
R
A
FT



40

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

Figure 12 – Center Street Station Area Option 1 – Plan View

CENTER STREET STATION AREA

OPTION 1

Each alternative is meant to build on the impact of the one previous to provide a range of development options for the community. Figures 11 and 12 represent Center Street Option 1, 
this alternative provides the least development impact of the three with a moderate scale of change. �is option is closest to recent development pa�erns in the area.

DR
AF
TEach alternative is meant to build on the impact of the one previous to provide a range of development options for the community. Figures 11 and 12 represent Center Street Option 1, 

D
R
A
FT

Each alternative is meant to build on the impact of the one previous to provide a range of development options for the community. Figures 11 and 12 represent Center Street Option 1, 

D
R
A
FTthis alternative provides the least development impact of the three with a moderate scale of change. �is option is closest to recent development pa�erns in the area.

D
R
A
FTthis alternative provides the least development impact of the three with a moderate scale of change. �is option is closest to recent development pa�erns in the area.this alternative provides the least development impact of the three with a moderate scale of change. �is option is closest to recent development pa�erns in the area.

D
R
A
FTthis alternative provides the least development impact of the three with a moderate scale of change. �is option is closest to recent development pa�erns in the area.



41

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

Option 1 does not represent a signi�cant increase in intensity of use. Because the option represents minimal new private investment in 
the area, it also includes minimal new public infrastructure and amenities. 

Table 11 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 1. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use 
type in Midvale and how much of future need is met by the option.

TABLE 11: CENTER STREET OPTION 1 DEVELOPMENT TYPES AND INTENSITY

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES
2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

% OF 2040 
GROWTH 

PROJECTION

Residential 79 82,800 2 8,471 1%

Office 54,000 1 483,000 11%

Hotel 0 0 0 998 0%

Retail 70,000 2 1,000,000 7%

Parking 2

Public Space  145,000 3   

Development is evenly distributed on both sides of Center Street and is comprised of four new multifamily housing buildings, a mid-
sized commercial building, and an o�ce building. �e Post O�ce remains untouched amidst the new developments. New townhomes 
are placed along Maple Street east of Center.

Connectivity considerations for this option include improvements at existing intersections, with a focus on enhancing the Center 
Street pedestrian crossing experience. �is option includes the new Center Street crossing directly west of the rail line. Plaza space is 
positioned at all corners of the Center Street State Street intersection and continues west down Center Street. Another new Center 
Street crossing is added to connect the new residential developments on either side and a pedestrian corridor continues between this 
new housing on either side of Center St.

�e station property is not recon�gured in this option, although the western parking lot may be utilized for temporary public space. 
Pedestrian access to the station is enhanced with new open space placed between State Street and the station area.DR

AF
T

Option 1 does not represent a signi�cant increase in intensity of use. Because the option represents minimal new private investment in 

D
R
A
FT

Option 1 does not represent a signi�cant increase in intensity of use. Because the option represents minimal new private investment in 

Table 11 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 1. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use 

D
R
A
FTTable 11 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 1. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T2040 GROWTH 

D
R
A
FT2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

D
R
A
FT

PROJECTION

% OF 2040 

D
R
A
FT% OF 2040 

GROWTH 

D
R
A
FTGROWTH 

PROJECTION

D
R
A
FT

PROJECTION

8,471 1%

D
R
A
FT

8,471 1%8,471 1%

D
R
A
FT

8,471 1%

1

D
R
A
FT

1 483,000 11%

D
R
A
FT

483,000 11%483,000 11%

D
R
A
FT

483,000 11%

0

D
R
A
FT

0 998 0%

D
R
A
FT

998 0%998 0%

D
R
A
FT

998 0%

2 1,000,000 7%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 7%2 1,000,000 7%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 7%2 1,000,000 7%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 7%

2

D
R
A
FT

2

 145,000

D
R
A
FT

 145,000 3

D
R
A
FT

3

Development is evenly distributed on both sides of Center Street and is comprised of four new multifamily housing buildings, a mid-

D
R
A
FT

Development is evenly distributed on both sides of Center Street and is comprised of four new multifamily housing buildings, a mid-
sized commercial building, and an o�ce building. �e Post O�ce remains untouched amidst the new developments. New townhomes 

D
R
A
FT

sized commercial building, and an o�ce building. �e Post O�ce remains untouched amidst the new developments. New townhomes 
are placed along Maple Street east of Center.

D
R
A
FT

are placed along Maple Street east of Center.

Connectivity considerations for this option include improvements at existing intersections, with a focus on enhancing the Center 

D
R
A
FT

Connectivity considerations for this option include improvements at existing intersections, with a focus on enhancing the Center 
Street pedestrian crossing experience. �is option includes the new Center Street crossing directly west of the rail line. Plaza space is 

D
R
A
FT

Street pedestrian crossing experience. �is option includes the new Center Street crossing directly west of the rail line. Plaza space is 
positioned at all corners of the Center Street State Street intersection and continues west down Center Street. Another new Center 

D
R
A
FT

positioned at all corners of the Center Street State Street intersection and continues west down Center Street. Another new Center 
Street crossing is added to connect the new residential developments on either side and a pedestrian corridor continues between this 

D
R
A
FT

Street crossing is added to connect the new residential developments on either side and a pedestrian corridor continues between this 
new housing on either side of Center St.

D
R
A
FT

new housing on either side of Center St.

�e station property is not recon�gured in this option, although the western parking lot may be utilized for temporary public space. D
R
A
FT

�e station property is not recon�gured in this option, although the western parking lot may be utilized for temporary public space. 
Pedestrian access to the station is enhanced with new open space placed between State Street and the station area.D

R
A
FT

Pedestrian access to the station is enhanced with new open space placed between State Street and the station area.



42

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

OPTION 2

Option 2 provides a moderate scale of change with new development focused along State Street north of Center Street and in the triangle of parcels directly adjacent to the 
Center Street Station to the east. While Option 1 provides limited change, as seen in Figures 13 and 14, Option 2 provides moderate levels of change focused mainly on the 
eastern side of the rail line.

Figure 13 – Center Street Station Area Option 2 – Perspective

III. Future Station Area Options

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Option 2 provides a moderate scale of change with new development focused along State Street north of Center Street and in the triangle of parcels directly adjacent to the 

D
R
A
FT

Option 2 provides a moderate scale of change with new development focused along State Street north of Center Street and in the triangle of parcels directly adjacent to the 
Center Street Station to the east. While Option 1 provides limited change, as seen in Figures 13 and 14, Option 2 provides moderate levels of change focused mainly on the 

D
R
A
FT

Center Street Station to the east. While Option 1 provides limited change, as seen in Figures 13 and 14, Option 2 provides moderate levels of change focused mainly on the 

Figure 13 – Center Street Station Area Option 2 – PerspectiveD
R
A
FT

Figure 13 – Center Street Station Area Option 2 – PerspectiveD
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT



43

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

Figure 14 – Center Street Station Area Option 2 – Plan ViewDR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure 14 – Center Street Station Area Option 2 – Plan ViewD
R
A
FT

Figure 14 – Center Street Station Area Option 2 – Plan View



44

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Table 12 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 2. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in 
Midvale and how much of future need is met by the option.

TABLE 12: CENTER STREET OPTION 2 DEVELOPMENT TYPES AND INTENSITY

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES
2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

% OF 2040 
GROWTH  

PROJECTION

Residential 428 399,600 9 8,471 5%

Office 216,000 5 483,000 45%

Hotel 0 0 0 998 0%

Retail 70,150 2 1,000,000 7%

Parking 3

Public Space  340,000 8   

In this option the station platform is reoriented to the east. A plaza is integrated into the area with surrounding new development. �e bene�t 
of this layout is a new view corridor from the corner of State and Center Street through to the station platform plaza area, drawing activity 
through from State Street. 

�is option maintains human space strategies from Option 1, i.e. existing intersections are improved, and human designed space is incorporated 
in front of Joe Morley’s. �e new Center Street pedestrian crossing directly west of the rail line is also maintained to boost connectivity in the 
area and allows easy access from new townhome developments to transit. 

�is option, as with Option 1, creates additional connectivity across Center Street north of the rail line. �is new pedestrian friendly road 
creates the opportunity for living and shopping away from the high tra�c volumes on State Street. 

III. Future Station Area Options

D
R
A
FT

Table 12 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 2. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in 

D
R
A
FT

Table 12 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 2. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TPROJECTION

D
R
A
FTPROJECTION

% OF 2040 

D
R
A
FT% OF 2040 

GROWTH  

D
R
A
FTGROWTH  

PROJECTION

D
R
A
FTPROJECTION

8,471 5%

D
R
A
FT8,471 5%8,471 5%

D
R
A
FT8,471 5%

483,000 45%

D
R
A
FT483,000 45%483,000 45%

D
R
A
FT483,000 45%

998 0%

D
R
A
FT998 0%998 0%

D
R
A
FT998 0%

2 1,000,000 7%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 7%2 1,000,000 7%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 7%2 1,000,000 7%

D
R
A
FT

2 1,000,000 7%

DR
AF
T

8

D
R
A
FT

8

In this option the station platform is reoriented to the east. A plaza is integrated into the area with surrounding new development. �e bene�t 

D
R
A
FT

In this option the station platform is reoriented to the east. A plaza is integrated into the area with surrounding new development. �e bene�t 
of this layout is a new view corridor from the corner of State and Center Street through to the station platform plaza area, drawing activity 

D
R
A
FT

of this layout is a new view corridor from the corner of State and Center Street through to the station platform plaza area, drawing activity 

�is option maintains human space strategies from Option 1, i.e. existing intersections are improved, and human designed space is incorporated 

D
R
A
FT

�is option maintains human space strategies from Option 1, i.e. existing intersections are improved, and human designed space is incorporated 
in front of Joe Morley’s. �e new Center Street pedestrian crossing directly west of the rail line is also maintained to boost connectivity in the 

D
R
A
FT

in front of Joe Morley’s. �e new Center Street pedestrian crossing directly west of the rail line is also maintained to boost connectivity in the 
area and allows easy access from new townhome developments to transit. 

D
R
A
FT

area and allows easy access from new townhome developments to transit. 

�is option, as with Option 1, creates additional connectivity across Center Street north of the rail line. �is new pedestrian friendly road 

D
R
A
FT

�is option, as with Option 1, creates additional connectivity across Center Street north of the rail line. �is new pedestrian friendly road 
creates the opportunity for living and shopping away from the high tra�c volumes on State Street. 

D
R
A
FT

creates the opportunity for living and shopping away from the high tra�c volumes on State Street. 



45

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

OPTION 3

Option three is a complete transformation of the Center Street Station area. As seen in Figures 15 and 16 the option includes lower density bu�ers adjacent to existing single-
family neighborhoods. �e most intense portion of this development scenario is located along State Street. At the tallest, these buildings are 10 stories above a retail level. 
As they move closer to existing residential areas the buildings step down to 6 and then 4 stories and eventually to townhomes.

Figure 15 – Center Street Station Area Option 3 – Perspective

III. Future Station Area Options

DR
AF
TOption three is a complete transformation of the Center Street Station area. As seen in Figures 15 and 16 the option includes lower density bu�ers adjacent to existing single-

D
R
A
FT

Option three is a complete transformation of the Center Street Station area. As seen in Figures 15 and 16 the option includes lower density bu�ers adjacent to existing single-
family neighborhoods. �e most intense portion of this development scenario is located along State Street. At the tallest, these buildings are 10 stories above a retail level. 

D
R
A
FT

family neighborhoods. �e most intense portion of this development scenario is located along State Street. At the tallest, these buildings are 10 stories above a retail level. 
As they move closer to existing residential areas the buildings step down to 6 and then 4 stories and eventually to townhomes.

D
R
A
FT

As they move closer to existing residential areas the buildings step down to 6 and then 4 stories and eventually to townhomes.

D
R
A
FT

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure 15 – Center Street Station Area Option 3 – PerspectiveD
R
A
FT

Figure 15 – Center Street Station Area Option 3 – Perspective



46

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

Figure 16 – Center Street Station Area Option 3 – Plan ViewDR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure 16 – Center Street Station Area Option 3 – Plan ViewD
R
A
FT

Figure 16 – Center Street Station Area Option 3 – Plan View



47

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

�is option transforms part of the current Center Street station area parking lot into a new townhome neighborhood. �e need for a grocery store in one of the two station 
areas was identi�ed in the public input process.  With the increased density of this option, a new grocery store was included in this option.

Table 13 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 3. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in Midvale and how much of 
future need is met by the option.

TABLE 13: CENTER STREET OPTION 3 DEVELOPMENT TYPES AND INTENSITY

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES
2040 GROWTH 
PROJECTION

% OF 2040 
GROWTH 

PROJECTION

Residential 961 885,600 20 8,471 11%

Office 270,000 6 483,000 56%

Hotel 0 0 0 998 0%

Retail 96,300 2 1,000,000 10%

Parking 2

Public Space  177,500 4   

Once again, the station platform is reoriented to the east with signi�cant public space adjacent to the new, more intense development along the State Street frontage.  Because 
of the signi�cant new investment represented in this option, additional public space is viable.  �e focus of this new public space should reinforce the preferred brand for this 
area as a new village within Midvale.

PUBLIC RESPONSE

As seen in Table 14, input from a�endees of the external stakeholders meeting and online demonstrated a preference for Option 3. Option 3 is the most intensive future use 
including a new street grid that connects the east side of State Street to the station area and the north side of Center Street to new development on the current Post O�ce location.

TABLE 14: SUMMARY OF CENTER STREET AREA SURVEY RESULTS - COMPARATIVE QUESTIONS

COMPARATIVE QUESTION OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

Which option would be most awake and vibrant? 0% 8% 92%

Which option would be the most charming and good for pedestrians? 4% 24% 72%

Which option would best represent positive transformation over time? 4% 35% 61%

To which option would you most want your neighborhood connected? 17% 26% 57%

Which option would engage redevelopment of the area? 0% 22% 78%

Which option best supports potential for a “Neighborhood Village” brand? 9% 22% 70%DR
AF
T

�is option transforms part of the current Center Street station area parking lot into a new townhome neighborhood. �e need for a grocery store in one of the two station 

D
R
A
FT

�is option transforms part of the current Center Street station area parking lot into a new townhome neighborhood. �e need for a grocery store in one of the two station 
areas was identi�ed in the public input process.  With the increased density of this option, a new grocery store was included in this option.

D
R
A
FT

areas was identi�ed in the public input process.  With the increased density of this option, a new grocery store was included in this option.

Table 13 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 3. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in Midvale and how much of 

D
R
A
FT

Table 13 estimates residential units and square feet by land use in Option 3. �e table also includes projected 2040 growth by land use type in Midvale and how much of 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T2040 GROWTH 

D
R
A
FT2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

D
R
A
FTPROJECTION

% OF 2040 

D
R
A
FT% OF 2040 
GROWTH 

D
R
A
FTGROWTH 

PROJECTION

D
R
A
FTPROJECTION

8,471

D
R
A
FT8,471 11%

D
R
A
FT11%

483,000

D
R
A
FT483,000

DR
AF
T56%

D
R
A
FT56%

998

D
R
A
FT

998 0%

D
R
A
FT

0%

1,000,000

D
R
A
FT

1,000,000 10%

D
R
A
FT

10%

 177,500 4

D
R
A
FT

 177,500 4

Once again, the station platform is reoriented to the east with signi�cant public space adjacent to the new, more intense development along the State Street frontage.  Because 

D
R
A
FT

Once again, the station platform is reoriented to the east with signi�cant public space adjacent to the new, more intense development along the State Street frontage.  Because 
of the signi�cant new investment represented in this option, additional public space is viable.  �e focus of this new public space should reinforce the preferred brand for this 

D
R
A
FT

of the signi�cant new investment represented in this option, additional public space is viable.  �e focus of this new public space should reinforce the preferred brand for this 

As seen in Table 14, input from a�endees of the external stakeholders meeting and online demonstrated a preference for Option 3. Option 3 is the most intensive future use 

D
R
A
FT

As seen in Table 14, input from a�endees of the external stakeholders meeting and online demonstrated a preference for Option 3. Option 3 is the most intensive future use 
including a new street grid that connects the east side of State Street to the station area and the north side of Center Street to new development on the current Post O�ce location.

D
R
A
FT

including a new street grid that connects the east side of State Street to the station area and the north side of Center Street to new development on the current Post O�ce location.

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

TABLE 14: SUMMARY OF CENTER STREET AREA SURVEY RESULTS - COMPARATIVE QUESTIONS

D
R
A
FT

TABLE 14: SUMMARY OF CENTER STREET AREA SURVEY RESULTS - COMPARATIVE QUESTIONS

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

COMPARATIVE QUESTION

D
R
A
FT

COMPARATIVE QUESTION

Which option would be most awake and vibrant?

D
R
A
FT

Which option would be most awake and vibrant?

Which option would be the most charming and good for pedestrians?D
R
A
FT

Which option would be the most charming and good for pedestrians?

Which option would best represent positive transformation over time?D
R
A
FT

Which option would best represent positive transformation over time?DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

To which option would you most want your neighborhood connected?D
R
A
FT

To which option would you most want your neighborhood connected?

Which option would engage redevelopment of the area?D
R
A
FT

Which option would engage redevelopment of the area?

Which option best supports potential for a “Neighborhood Village” brand? 9% 22%D
R
A
FT

Which option best supports potential for a “Neighborhood Village” brand? 9% 22%



48

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

KEY TAKEAWAYS

�e public input process also measured opinions on speci�c land uses summarized in Table 15. Redevelopment of the station area with the following uses enjoys signi�cant 
public support:

• O�ce
 • Retail  
 • Market-rate housing   
 • Public space

TABLE 15: COMPARISON OPTIONS LAND USES

NOT ENOUGH JUST RIGHT TOO MUCH

Option 1 Housing is: 66% 17% 17%

Option 2 Housing is: 37% 52% 11%

Option 3 Housing is: 4% 52% 44%

Option 1 Office is: 75% 21% 4%

Option 2 Office is: 16% 40% 44%

Option 3 Office is: 17% 83% 0%

Option 1 Retail is: 57% 43% 0%

Option 2 Retail is: 48% 48% 4%

Option 3 Retail is: 26% 74% 0%

Option 1 Public Space is: 64% 29% 7%

Option 2 Public Space is: 15% 35% 50%

Option 3 Public Space is: 13% 83% 4%

TABLE 16:  PREFERRED INTENSITY BY LAND USE - CENTER STREET

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES

Residential 695 642,600 15

Office 270,000 6

Retail 96,300 2

Human Designed Public Space 177,500 4

Total Developed   27

�e only land use type for which there was a di�erence of opinion is housing. An equal number of people felt the Option 2 level of intensity for housing (428 units) was 
just right as felt the Option 3 level (961 units) was just right. �is di�erence was resolved in the discussion surrounding housing. Most participants preferred the lay-out 
and location of housing in Option 3 with a combination of the building heights in Options 2 and 3 (a li�le taller than 2 and a li�le lower than 3.) �e location and intensity 
of each of the uses must be carefully considered.  Public input has indicated that the intensities summarized in Table 16 are preferred.

III. Future Station Area Options

DR
AF
T�e public input process also measured opinions on speci�c land uses summarized in Table 15. Redevelopment of the station area with the following uses enjoys signi�cant 

D
R
A
FT

�e public input process also measured opinions on speci�c land uses summarized in Table 15. Redevelopment of the station area with the following uses enjoys signi�cant 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TNOT ENOUGH JUST RIGHT TOO MUCH

D
R
A
FTNOT ENOUGH JUST RIGHT TOO MUCH

66%

D
R
A
FT

66% 17%

D
R
A
FT

17% 17%

D
R
A
FT

17%

37%

D
R
A
FT

37% 52%

D
R
A
FT

52% 11%

D
R
A
FT

11%

4%

D
R
A
FT

4% 52%

D
R
A
FT

52%

75%

D
R
A
FT

75% 21%

D
R
A
FT

21%

16%

D
R
A
FT

16% 40%

D
R
A
FT

40%

17%

D
R
A
FT

17% 83%

D
R
A
FT

83%

57%

D
R
A
FT

57% 43%

D
R
A
FT

43%

48%

D
R
A
FT

48%

26%

D
R
A
FT

26%

64%

D
R
A
FT

64%

15%

D
R
A
FT

15%

�e only land use type for which there was a di�erence of opinion is housing. An equal number of people felt the Option 2 level of intensity for housing (428 units) was 

D
R
A
FT

�e only land use type for which there was a di�erence of opinion is housing. An equal number of people felt the Option 2 level of intensity for housing (428 units) was 
just right as felt the Option 3 level (961 units) was just right. �is di�erence was resolved in the discussion surrounding housing. Most participants preferred the lay-out 

D
R
A
FT

just right as felt the Option 3 level (961 units) was just right. �is di�erence was resolved in the discussion surrounding housing. Most participants preferred the lay-out 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

TABLE 16:  PREFERRED INTENSITY BY LAND USE - CENTER STREETD
R
A
FT

TABLE 16:  PREFERRED INTENSITY BY LAND USE - CENTER STREET

and location of housing in Option 3 with a combination of the building heights in Options 2 and 3 (a li�le taller than 2 and a li�le lower than 3.) �e location and intensity 

D
R
A
FT

and location of housing in Option 3 with a combination of the building heights in Options 2 and 3 (a li�le taller than 2 and a li�le lower than 3.) �e location and intensity 
of each of the uses must be carefully considered.  Public input has indicated that the intensities summarized in Table 16 are preferred.

D
R
A
FT

of each of the uses must be carefully considered.  Public input has indicated that the intensities summarized in Table 16 are preferred.



49

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

III. Future Station Area Options

GSBS completed preliminary planning level pro forma analysis of the viability of each of the options in the private development market.  �e analysis used the rental rates 
and market opportunity identi�ed in the existing conditions analysis as inputs to the pro-forma. �e inputs and full description of the pro forma analysis can be found in 
Appendix B.  Table 17 summarizes the results for each of the Center Street Station Area options.

TABLE 17: CENTER STREET OPTIONS FUTURE VALUE

LAND USE OPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

Residential $19,812,766 $87,421,277 $196,289,362

Office $144,388,407 $61,880,746 $77,350,933

Retail/Restaurant $211,800,303 $148,577,912 $203,963,691

Total Private Value $376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986

Total Future Assessed Value $367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773

Midvale 2017 Ad Valorem Tax Rate 0.001309 0.001309 0.001309

Estimated Annual Midvale City Property Tax $480,515 $338,429 $509,559

Years to Pay for Public Space 14 49 17

As can be seen in the comparison table, Option 3 would generate the highest new taxable value for the City and pay back the investment in new public space in 17 years 
(assuming Midvale City participation only.)

SUMMARY OF OPPORTUNITY

Implementation of the preferred level of future development in the Center Street Station Area will depend on real estate market forces and the ability of developers to gain 
ownership of area properties.  Demand for the homes, o�ce space and shops in the planning area is expected to remain high.  Table 18 identi�es the anticipated market 
share for the preferred intensity of future development.

TABLE 18: MARKET SHARE OF PREFERRED DEVELOPMENT - CENTER STREET

LAND USE UNITS SF ACRES
2040 GROWTH 

PROJECTION

% OF 2040 
GROWTH 

PROJECTION

Residential 695 642,600 15 8,471 8%

Office 270,000 6 483,000 56%

Retail 96,300 2 1,000,000 10%

Total Private Development  1,008,900 23   DR
AF
T

GSBS completed preliminary planning level pro forma analysis of the viability of each of the options in the private development market.  �e analysis used the rental rates 

D
R
A
FT

GSBS completed preliminary planning level pro forma analysis of the viability of each of the options in the private development market.  �e analysis used the rental rates 
and market opportunity identi�ed in the existing conditions analysis as inputs to the pro-forma. �e inputs and full description of the pro forma analysis can be found in 

D
R
A
FT

and market opportunity identi�ed in the existing conditions analysis as inputs to the pro-forma. �e inputs and full description of the pro forma analysis can be found in 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TOPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

D
R
A
FTOPTION 1 OPTION 2 OPTION 3

$19,812,766 $87,421,277 $196,289,362

D
R
A
FT$19,812,766 $87,421,277 $196,289,362$19,812,766 $87,421,277 $196,289,362

D
R
A
FT$19,812,766 $87,421,277 $196,289,362

$144,388,407 $61,880,746 $77,350,933

D
R
A
FT$144,388,407 $61,880,746 $77,350,933$144,388,407 $61,880,746 $77,350,933

D
R
A
FT$144,388,407 $61,880,746 $77,350,933

$211,800,303 $148,577,912 $203,963,691

D
R
A
FT$211,800,303 $148,577,912 $203,963,691$211,800,303 $148,577,912 $203,963,691

D
R
A
FT$211,800,303 $148,577,912 $203,963,691$211,800,303 $148,577,912 $203,963,691

D
R
A
FT$211,800,303 $148,577,912 $203,963,691

$376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986

D
R
A
FT$376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986$376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986

D
R
A
FT$376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986$376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986

D
R
A
FT$376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986$376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986

D
R
A
FT$376,001,476 $297,879,935 $477,603,986

$367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773

D
R
A
FT$367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773$367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773

D
R
A
FT$367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773$367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773

D
R
A
FT$367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773$367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773

D
R
A
FT$367,085,731 $258,540,360 $389,273,773

0.001309 0.001309 0.001309

D
R
A
FT

0.001309 0.001309 0.0013090.001309 0.001309 0.001309

D
R
A
FT

0.001309 0.001309 0.0013090.001309 0.001309 0.001309

D
R
A
FT

0.001309 0.001309 0.0013090.001309 0.001309 0.001309

D
R
A
FT

0.001309 0.001309 0.001309

DR
AF
T

$480,515 $338,429 $509,559

D
R
A
FT

$480,515 $338,429 $509,559$480,515 $338,429 $509,559

D
R
A
FT

$480,515 $338,429 $509,559$480,515 $338,429 $509,559

D
R
A
FT

$480,515 $338,429 $509,559

14

D
R
A
FT

14 49

D
R
A
FT

49

As can be seen in the comparison table, Option 3 would generate the highest new taxable value for the City and pay back the investment in new public space in 17 years 

D
R
A
FT

As can be seen in the comparison table, Option 3 would generate the highest new taxable value for the City and pay back the investment in new public space in 17 years 

Implementation of the preferred level of future development in the Center Street Station Area will depend on real estate market forces and the ability of developers to gain 

D
R
A
FT

Implementation of the preferred level of future development in the Center Street Station Area will depend on real estate market forces and the ability of developers to gain 
ownership of area properties.  Demand for the homes, o�ce space and shops in the planning area is expected to remain high.  Table 18 identi�es the anticipated market 

D
R
A
FT

ownership of area properties.  Demand for the homes, o�ce space and shops in the planning area is expected to remain high.  Table 18 identi�es the anticipated market 
share for the preferred intensity of future development.

D
R
A
FT

share for the preferred intensity of future development.

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

TABLE 18: MARKET SHARE OF PREFERRED DEVELOPMENT - CENTER STREET

D
R
A
FT

TABLE 18: MARKET SHARE OF PREFERRED DEVELOPMENT - CENTER STREET

UNITS

D
R
A
FT

UNITS SF ACRES

D
R
A
FT

SF ACRES

695D
R
A
FT

695 642,600D
R
A
FT

642,600

270,000D
R
A
FT

270,000

96,300D
R
A
FT

96,300

 1,008,900D
R
A
FT

 1,008,900 1,008,900D
R
A
FT

 1,008,900



50

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Table 19 provides the planning level preliminary pro forma for the preferred development at Center Street. �e public space investment is comparable to 
the investment assumed in Center Street Development Option 3 but the intensities of future use are lower than Option 3 and higher than Option 2.

TABLE 19: CENTER STREET STATION AREA PREFERRED OPTION PRO FORMA SUMMARY

LAND USE
INVESTMENT 

COST
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

VALUE

Residential $112,455,000 $132,989,362

Office $47,250,000 $72,516,499

Hotel $0

Retail/Restaurant $16,852,500 $18,575,265

Development Parking $74,415,000 $0

Total Private Cost/Value $250,972,500 $224,081,126

Public Space $8,875,000 $0

Total Future Assessed Value $164,235,913

Midvale 2017 Ad Valorem Tax Rate 0.001309

Estimated Annual Midvale City Property Tax $214,985

Public:Private Leverage $28

Years to Pay Back Public Investment 41

�e years to pay back public investment is longer than Options 1 and 3 presented during the planning process. Increased intensity of activity close to the 
State Street and Center Street frontage and at the station will increase the future development value, increase public/private leverage and decrease the years 
to pay back the public investment. Other strategies to decrease the years to pay back public investment include creating a partnership with other taxing 
entities including UTA and Salt Lake County to participate in the project.

III. Future Station Area Options

D
R
A
FT

Table 19 provides the planning level preliminary pro forma for the preferred development at Center Street. �e public space investment is comparable to 

D
R
A
FT

Table 19 provides the planning level preliminary pro forma for the preferred development at Center Street. �e public space investment is comparable to 
the investment assumed in Center Street Development Option 3 but the intensities of future use are lower than Option 3 and higher than Option 2.

D
R
A
FT

the investment assumed in Center Street Development Option 3 but the intensities of future use are lower than Option 3 and higher than Option 2.

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TFUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

D
R
A
FTFUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

VALUE

D
R
A
FTVALUE

$132,989,362

D
R
A
FT$132,989,362

$72,516,499

D
R
A
FT$72,516,499

$0

D
R
A
FT$0

$16,852,500

D
R
A
FT

$16,852,500 $18,575,265

D
R
A
FT

$18,575,265

$74,415,000

D
R
A
FT

$74,415,000 $0

D
R
A
FT

$0

$250,972,500

D
R
A
FT

$250,972,500 $224,081,126

D
R
A
FT

$224,081,126

$8,875,000

D
R
A
FT

$8,875,000 $0

D
R
A
FT

$0

$164,235,913

D
R
A
FT

$164,235,913

0.001309

D
R
A
FT

0.001309

$28

D
R
A
FT

$28

DR
AF
T

�e years to pay back public investment is longer than Options 1 and 3 presented during the planning process. Increased intensity of activity close to the 

D
R
A
FT

�e years to pay back public investment is longer than Options 1 and 3 presented during the planning process. Increased intensity of activity close to the 
State Street and Center Street frontage and at the station will increase the future development value, increase public/private leverage and decrease the years 

D
R
A
FT

State Street and Center Street frontage and at the station will increase the future development value, increase public/private leverage and decrease the years 
to pay back the public investment. Other strategies to decrease the years to pay back public investment include creating a partnership with other taxing 

D
R
A
FT

to pay back the public investment. Other strategies to decrease the years to pay back public investment include creating a partnership with other taxing 
entities including UTA and Salt Lake County to participate in the project.

D
R
A
FT

entities including UTA and Salt Lake County to participate in the project.



51

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

IV. RECOMMENDED STATION AREA PLANS
�e Midvale Station Area Planning process generated several key �ndings relating 
to the vision and brand, preferred future land uses and intensities and public 
infrastructure for each of the station areas. �e plans will guide future development 
in each of the areas as new development and investment occurs. �e plans will also 
guide public investment in each of the areas.  

�e City has several tools to use in implementing the plans. �ese include directly 
funding some of the public infrastructure projects, participating in public-private 
partnerships to fund other elements of the public infrastructure in the plan, 
imposing zoning requirements on private developers to achieve the design and 
development types desired and partnering with other public agencies to fund and 
implement other elements such as improvements to the UTA-owned station areas 
and new recreation opportunities.

7200 SOUTH STATION AREA PLAN

�e 7200 South Station area presents a redevelopment opportunity. To maximize 
the value of past infrastructure investments and address increasing tra�c pressure, 
the area should be redeveloped to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access.

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan based on 
the vision and goals of the community living, working and using the station area.

VISION, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Goals and objectives were identi�ed for each of the �nal vision statements.

1. Transformative through urban design and land use.

a) Intensify land uses

b) Diversify land uses

c) Refocus land uses to human scale

d) Improve pedestrian and bicycle access

 

 e)  Update parking standards to re�ect improved access to station platform 
including:

   1. Parking Minimums and Maximums:

   Residential

    

    • Senior unit - .25 spaces 

    • 1 guest space/4 units - but on-street is acceptable. 

    •  Project quali�es for w/in .25 mile standard if any part of project  
is within .25 mile.

    Non-residential

 

   2.  Additional reductions:

    1. 50 percent a�ordable housing allowable reduction.

    2. Alternative compliance management plan:

     a. Based on parking impact study undertaken by developer.

     b.  Must accomplish purpose of parking standards or TOD 
zone be�er than standards.

    3.   Total reduction of parking minimums is limited to 50 percent of 
the minimums.

 
 

W/IN .25 MI OUTSIDE .25 MI

Min Max Min Max

1 BR 0.75 1 1 1.25

2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

4+ BR 1.5 2 1.75 2

MIN MAX

Commercial 2.5 spaces/1000 
leasable sf

4 spaces/1000 leasable sf

Office 2 spaces/1000 
leasable sf

3.5 spaces/1000 leasable sf

Hotel .75 space/room + 2 
spaces/1000 separate 
net leasable building 
area

1 space/room + 3.5 
spaces/1000 separate net 
leasable building area

DR
AF
Timposing zoning requirements on private developers to achieve the design and 

D
R
A
FTimposing zoning requirements on private developers to achieve the design and 

development types desired and partnering with other public agencies to fund and 

D
R
A
FT

development types desired and partnering with other public agencies to fund and 
implement other elements such as improvements to the UTA-owned station areas 

D
R
A
FT

implement other elements such as improvements to the UTA-owned station areas 

�e 7200 South Station area presents a redevelopment opportunity. To maximize 

D
R
A
FT

�e 7200 South Station area presents a redevelopment opportunity. To maximize 
the value of past infrastructure investments and address increasing tra�c pressure, 

D
R
A
FT

the value of past infrastructure investments and address increasing tra�c pressure, 
the area should be redeveloped to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access.

D
R
A
FT

the area should be redeveloped to enhance pedestrian and bicycle access.

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan based on 

D
R
A
FT

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan based on 
the vision and goals of the community living, working and using the station area.

D
R
A
FT

the vision and goals of the community living, working and using the station area.

VISION, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

D
R
A
FT

VISION, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Goals and objectives were identi�ed for each of the �nal vision statements.

D
R
A
FT

Goals and objectives were identi�ed for each of the �nal vision statements.

ransformative through urban design and land use.

D
R
A
FT

ransformative through urban design and land use.

efocus land uses to human scale D
R
A
FT

efocus land uses to human scale

mprove pedestrian and bicycle accessD
R
A
FT

mprove pedestrian and bicycle access

pdate parking standards to re�ect improved access to station platform 

D
R
A
FT

pdate parking standards to re�ect improved access to station platform 

arking Minimums and Maximums:

D
R
A
FT

arking Minimums and Maximums:

esidential

D
R
A
FT

esidential

    

D
R
A
FT

    • 

D
R
A
FT

• Senior unit - .25 spaces 

D
R
A
FT

Senior unit - .25 spaces 

    

D
R
A
FT

    • 

D
R
A
FT

• 1 guest space/4 units - but on-street is acceptable. 

D
R
A
FT

1 guest space/4 units - but on-street is acceptable. 

    

D
R
A
FT

    • 

D
R
A
FT

• Project quali�es for w/in .25 mile standard if any part of project 

D
R
A
FT

Project quali�es for w/in .25 mile standard if any part of project 
is within .25 mile.

D
R
A
FT

is within .25 mile.

   

D
R
A
FT

   N

D
R
A
FT

Non-residential

D
R
A
FT

on-residential

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TW/IN .25 MI OUTSIDE .25 MI

D
R
A
FTW/IN .25 MI OUTSIDE .25 MIW/IN .25 MI OUTSIDE .25 MI

D
R
A
FTW/IN .25 MI OUTSIDE .25 MI

Min Max Min Max

D
R
A
FTMin Max Min MaxMin Max Min Max

D
R
A
FTMin Max Min MaxMin Max Min Max

D
R
A
FTMin Max Min MaxMin Max Min Max

D
R
A
FTMin Max Min Max

1 BR

D
R
A
FT1 BR 0.75

D
R
A
FT0.75 1 1 1.25

D
R
A
FT1 1 1.251 1 1.25

D
R
A
FT1 1 1.25

2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

D
R
A
FT2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 22 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

D
R
A
FT2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 22 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

D
R
A
FT2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 22 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

D
R
A
FT2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 22 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

D
R
A
FT2 BR 1 1.5 1.25 2

3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 23 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 23 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 23 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT3 BR 1.25 2 1.5 2

4+ BR 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT4+ BR 1.5 24+ BR 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT4+ BR 1.5 24+ BR 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT4+ BR 1.5 24+ BR 1.5 2

D
R
A
FT4+ BR 1.5 2

DR
AF
T



52

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

  3. Shared parking:

    1. Keep shared parking provision.

    2. Allow sta� to approve.

    3. Must be within 800 feet.

    4. Parking study to show complementary peak demand.

  4. O�-site parking allowance:

    1. Can accommodate up to 100 percent of parking o�-site.

    2. Must be within 800 feet of the use.

    3.  �e location and terms of the o�-site parking shall be speci�ed in a 
wri�en deed, lease or contract, signed and notarized by all a�ected 
property owners.

  5. On-street parking allowance:

    1.  Below unit limit (10,000 sf ) can accommodate all parking on-street, 
where available.

    2.  Above the limit, can accommodate 25 percent of parking for 
additional square feet on-street, where available. For example, for 
a 15,000 building, the parking required for the �rst 10,000 square 
feet can be accommodated on-street, while up to 25 percent of 
the parking required for the additional 5,000 square feet can be 
accommodated on-street.

    3. Residential guest spaces can be accommodated on-street.

    4.  On-street spaces must be within, directly adjacent to, or as close as 
possible to the development.

    5.  On-street spaces must be on new streets or streets fronted by non-
single-family residential uses.

  6.  Parking bene�t district.

     Long-term potential to develop a parking bene�t district in one or 
both station areas. Members of the district (likely property owners) 
would pay into the district as an alternative to supplying parking 
on their own. �is would potentially be focused more on o�ce/
commercial/hotel; could be a be�er strategy in the 7200 South station 
area. Consider coupling this concept with the parking changes desired 
in the Main Street Small Area Plan to create a citywide district.

 7.  Parking design standards:

    1. No parking in front setback of any building.

    2.  Parking structures shall contain ground-level retail, o�ce or display 
windows along all street-fronting facades of the parking structure.

  8. Additional parking policies:

    1.  Bu�er surface lots.

    2.  Landscaping and trees in surface lots.

    3.  Integrate low-impact development/green infrastructure into parking areas.

2.  Increase human designed space (as opposed to automobile designed space) to 
25-30 percent. 

 a) Improve pedestrian pathways within the ¼ mile radius of the station 

 b)  Provide cross platform access to allow uses on the westside of station area to 
access platform

 c)  Create plaza/park amenity with focused on outdoor recreation in close 
proximity to the station platform for amenities for visitors and residents

 d) Program the plaza/park with activities for visitors and residents

 e)   Provide spaces adjacent to the human space for restaurants/retail consistent 
with the station area “brand”

3. Connect the area to the rest of the community.

 a) Create a combination of physical and use connections

 b)  Create internal circulation network that can be extended to the east as area 
nearer State Street redevelops

 

 c) Work with UDOT to improve pedestrian connections across 7200 South

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

DR
AF
T

wri�en deed, lease or contract, signed and notarized by all a�ected 

D
R
A
FT

wri�en deed, lease or contract, signed and notarized by all a�ected 

low unit limit (10,000 sf ) can accommodate all parking on-street, 

D
R
A
FT

low unit limit (10,000 sf ) can accommodate all parking on-street, 

bove the limit, can accommodate 25 percent of parking for 

D
R
A
FT

bove the limit, can accommodate 25 percent of parking for 
additional square feet on-street, where available. For example, for 

D
R
A
FT

additional square feet on-street, where available. For example, for 
a 15,000 building, the parking required for the �rst 10,000 square 

D
R
A
FT

a 15,000 building, the parking required for the �rst 10,000 square 
feet can be accommodated on-street, while up to 25 percent of 

D
R
A
FT

feet can be accommodated on-street, while up to 25 percent of 
the parking required for the additional 5,000 square feet can be 

D
R
A
FT

the parking required for the additional 5,000 square feet can be 

esidential guest spaces can be accommodated on-street.

D
R
A
FT

esidential guest spaces can be accommodated on-street.

street spaces must be within, directly adjacent to, or as close as 

D
R
A
FT

street spaces must be within, directly adjacent to, or as close as 
possible to the development.

D
R
A
FT

possible to the development.

street spaces must be on new streets or streets fronted by non-

D
R
A
FT

street spaces must be on new streets or streets fronted by non-
single-family residential uses.

D
R
A
FT

single-family residential uses.

arking bene�t district. D
R
A
FT

arking bene�t district.

ong-term potential to develop a parking bene�t district in one or D
R
A
FT

ong-term potential to develop a parking bene�t district in one or 
both station areas. Members of the district (likely property owners) D

R
A
FT

both station areas. Members of the district (likely property owners) 
would pay into the district as an alternative to supplying parking D

R
A
FT

would pay into the district as an alternative to supplying parking 
on their own. �is would potentially be focused more on o�ce/D

R
A
FT

on their own. �is would potentially be focused more on o�ce/
commercial/hotel; could be a be�er strategy in the 7200 South station D

R
A
FT

commercial/hotel; could be a be�er strategy in the 7200 South station 

o parking in front setback of any building.

D
R
A
FT

o parking in front setback of any building.

arking structures shall contain ground-level retail, o�ce or display 

D
R
A
FT

arking structures shall contain ground-level retail, o�ce or display 
windows along all street-fronting facades of the parking structure.

D
R
A
FT

windows along all street-fronting facades of the parking structure.

dditional parking policies:

D
R
A
FTdditional parking policies:

1. 

D
R
A
FT1. B

D
R
A
FTBu�er surface lots.

D
R
A
FTu�er surface lots.

   

D
R
A
FT   2. 

D
R
A
FT2. L

D
R
A
FTLandscaping and trees in surface lots.

D
R
A
FTandscaping and trees in surface lots.

   

D
R
A
FT   3

D
R
A
FT3. 

D
R
A
FT. I

D
R
A
FTIntegrate low-impact development/green infrastructure into parking areas.

D
R
A
FTntegrate low-impact development/green infrastructure into parking areas.Integrate low-impact development/green infrastructure into parking areas.I

D
R
A
FTIntegrate low-impact development/green infrastructure into parking areas.I

2.

D
R
A
FT2. I

D
R
A
FTIncrease human designed space (as opposed to automobile designed space) to 

D
R
A
FTncrease human designed space (as opposed to automobile designed space) to 

25-30 percent. 

D
R
A
FT25-30 percent. 

a

D
R
A
FT

a)

D
R
A
FT

) I

D
R
A
FT

Improve pedestrian pathways within the ¼ mile radius of the station 

D
R
A
FT

mprove pedestrian pathways within the ¼ mile radius of the station 

D
R
A
FT



53

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

d) Develop a strategy to improve 7200 South street scape

4. Focus on hotels and hospitality.

a)  Work with current hotel/motel owners to upgrade quality of accommodations 
consistent with the station area brand

b) Identify target hotel brands for new room development in station area

5.  Create a cohesive brand for the area as a regional entry point to the community and 
a gateway to recreation.

a)  Work with a branding agency to identify a brand consistent with the community 
vision and this station area plan

 b) Create a comprehensive way�nding and branding package for the station area

To achieve the vision goals and objectives for the 7200 South station area, this plan 
has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas currently 
zoned TOD or TODO.  Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the 
north side of 7200 South. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 
years are identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in 
the next 5-10 years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to 
occur.  �e illustrative plan in Figure 17 also identi�es the location of known current 
opportunities and areas where land use and density should be constrained to bu�er 
adjacent stable neighborhoods.

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

Figure 17 – 7200 South Station Area Catalytic Opportunity Plan

D
R
A
FT

reate a comprehensive way�nding and branding package for the station area

D
R
A
FT

reate a comprehensive way�nding and branding package for the station area

To achieve the vision goals and objectives for the 7200 South station area, this plan 

D
R
A
FT

To achieve the vision goals and objectives for the 7200 South station area, this plan 
has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas currently 

D
R
A
FT

has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas currently 
zoned TOD or TODO.  Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the 

D
R
A
FT

zoned TOD or TODO.  Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the 
north side of 7200 South. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 

D
R
A
FT

north side of 7200 South. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 
years are identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in 

D
R
A
FTyears are identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in 

the next 5-10 years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to 

D
R
A
FTthe next 5-10 years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to 

occur.  �e illustrative plan in Figure 17 also identi�es the location of known current 

D
R
A
FToccur.  �e illustrative plan in Figure 17 also identi�es the location of known current 

DR
AF
Topportunities and areas where land use and density should be constrained to bu�er 

D
R
A
FTopportunities and areas where land use and density should be constrained to bu�er 

adjacent stable neighborhoods.

D
R
A
FTadjacent stable neighborhoods.

D
R
A
FT



54

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Human-focused spaces are the most important component of the 7200 South Station 
Area Plan. Input from area residents, property owners and transit riders reinforced 
the importance of including human scaled connections and amenities throughout 
the station area to support and bene�t current and new residents, employees and 

visitors to the area. �e illustrative plan in Figure 18 identi�es a possible network 
of connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides 
connectivity to and from the station to existing and future development. 

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

Figure 18 – 7200 South Station Area Public Space Framework Map
DR
AF
T

visitors to the area. �e illustrative plan in Figure 18 identi�es a possible network 

D
R
A
FT

visitors to the area. �e illustrative plan in Figure 18 identi�es a possible network 
of connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides 

D
R
A
FT

of connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides 

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

connectivity to and from the station to existing and future development. 

D
R
A
FT

connectivity to and from the station to existing and future development. 



55

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Because of the increased connectivity of the area visitors and residents will be able to 
park once and walk to di�erent uses within the station area. �is will reduce reliance 
on the automobile and encourage shorter trips.  �e plan also focuses human-scaled 
amenities away from 7200 South preserving current roadway capacity and providing 
a more conducive pedestrian environment allowing for sidewalk cafes and a plaza 
protected from the high tra�c volumes of the major arterial.

�e new interior connection is designed to extend further east to State Street, 
creating an internal boulevard providing interior multi-modal access to a newly 
redeveloped area at 7200 South from State Street to I-15 while maintaining current 
T�X vehicular crossing points.  

PROJECTS AND IMPLEMENTATION:

1.  Work with existing business and property owners to identify a brand and theme 
consistent with the plan vision statements.

2.  Explore the appropriate mix of funding mechanisms for the public improvements 
within the station area. Options include:

a) Community Redevelopment Act Project Area

b) Special Improvement District

c) Transportation Reinvestment Zone Project Area

d) Grants

e) Pay-as-you-go

3. Work with UTA to:

a) Explore a viable alignment for cross platform connectivity

b) Explore realignment of the bus drop o� area

c)  Create a developer RFP for the station area for mixed use development 
focusing primarily on o�ce, hotel, and retail uses

  1. Incorporate new shared use street in redevelopment plans

   2. Explore replacement of existing parking on less than a 1:1 basis

4. Update the Zoning Code to require:

 a)   Dedication of open space associated with new developments to support the 
public space network incorporated in the plan

 b)  Contribution to an open space fund in lieu of dedication if the development 
is not adjacent to the public space network

 c) A balanced mix of land use types within the station area to include:

   1. Medium and high density residential

   2. O�ce

   3. Hotel

   4. Retail

 d)  New development to comply with design guidelines implementing the station 
area’s brand and theme

 e) �e most intensive development to be along the 7200 South frontage

 f )  A bu�er for existing single-family residential areas with less intensive 
development

 g)  Updated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis 
recommendations

5.  Develop street cross sections and streetscape requirements consistent with the 
station area brand and theme.

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

DR
AF
T

ork with existing business and property owners to identify a brand and theme 

D
R
A
FT

ork with existing business and property owners to identify a brand and theme 

xplore the appropriate mix of funding mechanisms for the public improvements 

D
R
A
FT

xplore the appropriate mix of funding mechanisms for the public improvements 

ransportation Reinvestment Zone Project Area

D
R
A
FT

ransportation Reinvestment Zone Project Area

xplore a viable alignment for cross platform connectivity

D
R
A
FT

xplore a viable alignment for cross platform connectivity

xplore realignment of the bus drop o� area

D
R
A
FT

xplore realignment of the bus drop o� area

reate a developer RFP for the station area for mixed use development D
R
A
FT

reate a developer RFP for the station area for mixed use development 
focusing primarily on o�ce, hotel, and retail usesD

R
A
FT

focusing primarily on o�ce, hotel, and retail uses

ncorporate new shared use street in redevelopment plansD
R
A
FT

ncorporate new shared use street in redevelopment plans

plore replacement of existing parking on less than a 1:1 basis

D
R
A
FT

plore replacement of existing parking on less than a 1:1 basis

pdate the Zoning Code to require:

D
R
A
FT

pdate the Zoning Code to require:

edication of open space associated with new developments to support the 

D
R
A
FT

edication of open space associated with new developments to support the 
public space network incorporated in the plan

D
R
A
FT

public space network incorporated in the plan

ontribution to an open space fund in lieu of dedication if the development 

D
R
A
FTontribution to an open space fund in lieu of dedication if the development 

is not adjacent to the public space network

D
R
A
FTis not adjacent to the public space network

alanced mix of land use types within the station area to include:

D
R
A
FTalanced mix of land use types within the station area to include:

1. M

D
R
A
FT1. Medium and high density residential

D
R
A
FTedium and high density residential

  

D
R
A
FT  2. O�ce

D
R
A
FT2. O�ce

  

D
R
A
FT  3. H

D
R
A
FT3. Hotel

D
R
A
FTotel

  

D
R
A
FT

  4. R

D
R
A
FT

4. Retail

D
R
A
FT

etail

d

D
R
A
FT

d)

D
R
A
FT

)  

D
R
A
FT

  N

D
R
A
FT

New development to comply with design guidelines implementing the station 

D
R
A
FT

ew development to comply with design guidelines implementing the station 
area’s brand and theme

D
R
A
FT

area’s brand and theme

e

D
R
A
FT

e)

D
R
A
FT

) �e mos

D
R
A
FT

�e most intensive development to be along the 7200 South frontage

D
R
A
FT

t intensive development to be along the 7200 South frontage

f

D
R
A
FT

f )

D
R
A
FT

)  

D
R
A
FT

  A bu

D
R
A
FT

A bu  A bu  

D
R
A
FT

  A bu  �er for existing single-family residential areas with less intensive 

D
R
A
FT

�er for existing single-family residential areas with less intensive 
development

D
R
A
FT

development

g

D
R
A
FT

g)

D
R
A
FT

)  

D
R
A
FT

  U

D
R
A
FT

Updated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis 

D
R
A
FT

pdated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis Updated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis U

D
R
A
FT

Updated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis U
recommendations

D
R
A
FT

recommendations

5.

D
R
A
FT

5. D

D
R
A
FT

D



56

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

CENTER STREET STATION AREA PLAN

�e Center Street Station area was once a thriving commercial center serving 
Midvale and the formerly unincorporated areas to the east. �e area can and should 
return to its role as a primary source of economic opportunity in the City.  New 
development in the station area should also maximize the value of past infrastructure 
investments and address increasing tra�c pressure, the area should be redeveloped 
to enhance multi-modal access and allow visitors and residents to park once and 
walk to di�erent uses within the station area. 

Redevelopment of the area should be consistent with this Station Area Plan based on 
the vision and goals of a community village with opportunities for social interaction 
as well as places to shop, eat, work, play and live.

VISION, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Goals and objectives were identi�ed for each of the �nal vision statements.

1. Awaken and activate the area

 a) Provide pedestrian connections to and from surrounding neighborhoods

 b) Improve the pedestrian experience across State Street

 c) Intensify land uses in the station area

 d) Diversify land uses in the station area

 e) Include the east side of State Street in plan implementation

2. Design and improve for charm

 a) New development should be: 

   1. aesthetically pleasing 

   2. classic

   3. livable

   4. pedestrian �iendly 

 b)  �e ideal ratio for space speci�cally designed for humans (as opposed to 
automobiles) is 40 percent.

3. Encourage transformative development 

 a) Actively recruit key partners for public/private partnerships

 b) Exercise patience within the real estate market to achieve plan goals

 c)  Invest in infrastructure improvements most likely to result in private 
development consistent with the plan

4. Concentrate the most intense uses near State Street and Center Street.

5.  Create a cohesive brand for the area as a village center and activity hub in the 
community.

 a)   Work with a branding agency to identify a brand consistent with the 
community vision and this station area plan

 b)   Create a comprehensive way�nding and branding package for the station area

To achieve the vision goals and objectives for the Center Street station area, this 
plan has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas 
currently zoned TOD. Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the 
east side of State Street. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 
years are identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in 
the next 5-10 years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to 
occur.  �e illustrative plan in Figure 19 also identify the location of known current 
opportunities and areas where land use and density should be constrained to bu�er 
adjacent stable neighborhoods.

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

DR
AF
T

Goals and objectives were identi�ed for each of the �nal vision statements.

D
R
A
FT

Goals and objectives were identi�ed for each of the �nal vision statements.

) Provide pedestrian connections to and from surrounding neighborhoods

D
R
A
FT

) Provide pedestrian connections to and from surrounding neighborhoods

) Improve the pedestrian experience across State Street

D
R
A
FT

) Improve the pedestrian experience across State Street

nclude the east side of State Street in plan implementation

D
R
A
FT

nclude the east side of State Street in plan implementation

ew development should be: 

D
R
A
FT

ew development should be: 

esthetically pleasing 

D
R
A
FT

esthetically pleasing 

al ratio for space speci�cally designed for humans (as opposed to D
R
A
FT

al ratio for space speci�cally designed for humans (as opposed to 

ncourage transformative development 

D
R
A
FT

ncourage transformative development 

ively recruit key partners for public/private partnerships

D
R
A
FT

ively recruit key partners for public/private partnerships

) Exercise patience within the real estate market to achieve plan goals

D
R
A
FT

) Exercise patience within the real estate market to achieve plan goals

nvest in infrastructure improvements most likely to result in private 

D
R
A
FT

nvest in infrastructure improvements most likely to result in private 
development consistent with the plan

D
R
A
FTdevelopment consistent with the plan

oncentrate the most intense uses near State Street and Center Street.

D
R
A
FToncentrate the most intense uses near State Street and Center Street.

reate a cohesive brand for the area as a village center and activity hub in the 

D
R
A
FTreate a cohesive brand for the area as a village center and activity hub in the 

community.

D
R
A
FTcommunity.

a

D
R
A
FTa)

D
R
A
FT)   

D
R
A
FT   W

D
R
A
FTW   W   

D
R
A
FT   W   ork with a branding agency to identify a brand consistent with the 

D
R
A
FTork with a branding agency to identify a brand consistent with the Work with a branding agency to identify a brand consistent with the W

D
R
A
FTWork with a branding agency to identify a brand consistent with the W

community vision and this station area plan

D
R
A
FT

community vision and this station area plan

b

D
R
A
FT

b) 

D
R
A
FT

) C

D
R
A
FT

Create a comprehensive way�nding and branding package for the station area

D
R
A
FT

reate a comprehensive way�nding and branding package for the station area

To achieve the vision goals and objectives for the Center Street station area, this 

D
R
A
FT

To achieve the vision goals and objectives for the Center Street station area, this 
plan has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas 

D
R
A
FT

plan has identi�ed opportunities for catalytic projects, primarily within the areas 
currently zoned TOD. Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the 

D
R
A
FT

currently zoned TOD. Some longer-term opportunities were identi�ed on the 
east side of State Street. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 

D
R
A
FT

east side of State Street. Catalytic opportunities likely to occur within the next 5 
years are identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in 

D
R
A
FT

years are identi�ed as “near-term”. “Mid-term” opportunities are likely to occur in 
the next 5-10 years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to 

D
R
A
FT

the next 5-10 years and “long-term” opportunities will take longer than 10 years to 
occur.  �e illustrative plan in Figure 19 also identify the location of known current 

D
R
A
FT

occur.  �e illustrative plan in Figure 19 also identify the location of known current 
opportunities and areas where land use and density should be constrained to bu�er 

D
R
A
FT

opportunities and areas where land use and density should be constrained to bu�er 
adjacent stable neighborhoods.

D
R
A
FT

adjacent stable neighborhoods.



57

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Figure 19 – Center Street Station Area Catalytic Opportunity Illustrative Plan

Human-focused spaces are the most important component of the Center Street 
Station Area Plan. Input from area residents, property owners and transit riders 
reinforced the importance of including human scaled connections and amenities 

throughout the station area to support and bene�t current and new residents, 
employees and visitors to the area. 

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

Figure 19 – Center Street Station Area Catalytic Opportunity Illustrative PlanD
R
A
FT

Figure 19 – Center Street Station Area Catalytic Opportunity Illustrative PlanDR
AF
T

Human-focused spaces are the most important component of the Center Street D
R
A
FT

Human-focused spaces are the most important component of the Center Street 
Station Area Plan. Input from area residents, property owners and transit riders D

R
A
FT

Station Area Plan. Input from area residents, property owners and transit riders 



58

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

Figure 20 – Center Street Station Area Public Space Framework Map

�e illustrative plan in Figure 20 identi�es a possible network connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides connectivity to and 
from the station to existing and future development. 

DR
AF
T

D
R
A
FT

�e illustrative plan in Figure 20 identi�es a possible network connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides connectivity to and 

D
R
A
FT

�e illustrative plan in Figure 20 identi�es a possible network connections and amenities focused on pedestrians and bicyclists that provides connectivity to and 



59

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

Because of the increased connectivity of the area visitors and residents will be able 
to park once and walk to di�erent uses within the station area. �is will reduce 
reliance on the automobile and encourage shorter trips.  �e plan also focuses 
human-scaled amenities east of the station area creating new connectivity to the 
east side of state street and moving the more intense uses away from existing single-
family neighborhoods west of the station. 

�e new interior connection is designed to create accessibility to the new 
development without the need to interact with tra�c on State Street. 

PROJECTS AND IMPLEMENTATION:

1.  Work with existing business and property owners to identify a brand and theme 
consistent with the plan vision statements.

2.  Explore the appropriate mix of funding mechanisms for the public improvements 
within the station area. Options include:

a) Community Redevelopment Act Project Area

b) Special Improvement District

c) Transportation Reinvestment Zone Project Area

d) Grants

e) Pay-as-you-go

3. Work with UTA to:

a) Redevelop the northerly parking lot with medium density housing

b) Improve the drive aisle as a new mixed-use local street

c) Create a park/plaza space adjacent to the existing platform (west)

d) Improve the pedestrian connection to the State Street 8000 South intersection

e)  Identify a development partner to acquire the USPS property for 
redevelopment in conjunction with UTA properties on State Street

  1. Incorporate new shared use street in redevelopment plan

 2. Create a park/plaza space adjacent to the existing platform (east)

4. Update the Zoning Code to require:

 a)  Dedication of open space associated with new developments to support the 
public space network incorporated in the plan

 b)  Contribution to an open space fund in lieu of dedication if the development 
is not adjacent to the public space network

 c) A balanced mix of land use types within the station area to include:

   1. Medium and high density residential

   2. O�ce

   3. Retail

 d)  New development to comply with design guidelines implementing the station 
area’s brand and theme

 e)  �e most intensive development to be in the area from State Street to the 
station

 f )  A bu�er for existing single-family residential areas with less intensive 
development

 g)  Updated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis 
recommendations

5.  Develop street cross sections and streetscape requirements consistent with the 
station area brand and theme.

6.  Create pedestrian areas on all four corners of the State Street and 8000 South, 
State Street and Center Street and State Street and 7615 South intersections.

7.  Recon�gure Center Street to improve the pedestrian environment and install 
streetscape improvements.

IV. Recommended Station Area Plans

DR
AF
T

ork with existing business and property owners to identify a brand and theme 

D
R
A
FT

ork with existing business and property owners to identify a brand and theme 

xplore the appropriate mix of funding mechanisms for the public improvements 

D
R
A
FT

xplore the appropriate mix of funding mechanisms for the public improvements 

ransportation Reinvestment Zone Project Area

D
R
A
FT

ransportation Reinvestment Zone Project Area

edevelop the northerly parking lot with medium density housing

D
R
A
FT

edevelop the northerly parking lot with medium density housing

mprove the drive aisle as a new mixed-use local street

D
R
A
FT

mprove the drive aisle as a new mixed-use local street

reate a park/plaza space adjacent to the existing platform (west)

D
R
A
FT

reate a park/plaza space adjacent to the existing platform (west)

mprove the pedestrian connection to the State Street 8000 South intersection

D
R
A
FT

mprove the pedestrian connection to the State Street 8000 South intersection

dentify a development partner to acquire the USPS property for D
R
A
FT

dentify a development partner to acquire the USPS property for 
redevelopment in conjunction with UTA properties on State StreetD

R
A
FT

redevelopment in conjunction with UTA properties on State Street

ncorporate new shared use street in redevelopment planD
R
A
FT

ncorporate new shared use street in redevelopment plan

reate a park/plaza space adjacent to the existing platform (east)D
R
A
FT

reate a park/plaza space adjacent to the existing platform (east)

pdate the Zoning Code to require:

D
R
A
FT

pdate the Zoning Code to require:

edication of open space associated with new developments to support the 

D
R
A
FT

edication of open space associated with new developments to support the 
public space network incorporated in the plan

D
R
A
FT

public space network incorporated in the plan

ontribution to an open space fund in lieu of dedication if the development 

D
R
A
FT

ontribution to an open space fund in lieu of dedication if the development 
is not adjacent to the public space network

D
R
A
FTis not adjacent to the public space network

alanced mix of land use types within the station area to include:

D
R
A
FTalanced mix of land use types within the station area to include:

1. M

D
R
A
FT1. Medium and high density residential

D
R
A
FTedium and high density residential

  

D
R
A
FT  2. O�ce

D
R
A
FT2. O�ce

  

D
R
A
FT  3. R

D
R
A
FT3. Retail

D
R
A
FTetail

d

D
R
A
FT

d)

D
R
A
FT

)  

D
R
A
FT

  N

D
R
A
FT

New development to comply with design guidelines implementing the station 

D
R
A
FT

ew development to comply with design guidelines implementing the station 
area’s brand and theme

D
R
A
FT

area’s brand and theme

e

D
R
A
FT

e)

D
R
A
FT

)  

D
R
A
FT

  �e mos

D
R
A
FT

�e most intensive development to be in the area from State Street to the 

D
R
A
FT

t intensive development to be in the area from State Street to the 
station

D
R
A
FT

station

f

D
R
A
FT

f )

D
R
A
FT

)  

D
R
A
FT

  A bu

D
R
A
FT

A bu  A bu  

D
R
A
FT

  A bu  �er for existing single-family residential areas with less intensive 

D
R
A
FT

�er for existing single-family residential areas with less intensive 
development

D
R
A
FT

development

g

D
R
A
FT

g)

D
R
A
FT

)  

D
R
A
FT

  U

D
R
A
FT

Updated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis 

D
R
A
FT

pdated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis Updated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis U

D
R
A
FT

Updated parking requirements in accordance with parking analysis U
recommendations

D
R
A
FT

recommendations

5.

D
R
A
FT

5. D

D
R
A
FT

Develop street cross sections and streetscape requirements consistent with the 

D
R
A
FT

evelop street cross sections and streetscape requirements consistent with the 
station area brand and theme.

D
R
A
FT

station area brand and theme.



DR
AF
T



61

M i d v a l e  S t a t i o n  P l a n n i n g   //   G S B S  C o n s u l t i n g

V. Appendix

V. APPENDIX

A Public Engagement Process Report

B. Existing Conditions Analysis Report

C. Parking Analysis Report

D. Internal Stakeholder Presentation #1

E. Internal Stakeholder Presentation #2

F. 7200 South Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #1

G. 7200 South Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #2

H. 7200 South Station Area External Stakeholder Survey Results 

I. Center Street Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #1

J. Center Street Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #2

K. Center Street Station Area External Stakeholder Survey Results

DR
AF
T

outh Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #1

D
R
A
FT

outh Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #1

outh Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #2

D
R
A
FT

outh Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #2

outh Station Area External Stakeholder Survey Results 

D
R
A
FT

outh Station Area External Stakeholder Survey Results 

enter Street Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #1

D
R
A
FT

enter Street Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #1

enter Street Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #2

D
R
A
FT

enter Street Station Area External Stakeholder Presentation #2

enter Street Station Area External Stakeholder Survey Results

D
R
A
FT

enter Street Station Area External Stakeholder Survey Results



 5 

Exhibit C 
 



WEST JORDAN CITY CENTER 
STATION AREA PLAN

MARCH 2019 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Jordan School District

Scott Thomas
Paul Bergera

Traci Mariano

Dave’s Auto Body Shop
Karen Ware

Alex Ware

Utah Transit Authority
Paul Drake
Kevin Leo

Eric Callison
Levi Roberts

Utah Department of Transportation
Brad Palmer

Peter Tang
Grant Farnsworth
Jordan Backman

Wasatch Front Regional Council
Alex Roy

City of West Jordan
Mayor Jim Riding

Korban Lee
Chris McConnehey

Chad Lamb
Paul Coates

Kent Anderson
David Pack

Nate Nelson
Scott Langford

Larry Gardner
David Naylor

Jeremy Olson
Bill Baranowski



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Project Process  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1

Station Area Analysis  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5

Long-Term Redevelopment | 30-Year Buildout  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  19

Short-Term Redevelopment | Phase 1: 10-Year Buildout  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  23

Short-Term Redevelopment | Initial Phase 1a: 5-Year Buildout  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  27

Business Case .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  35

Transportation Recommendations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  45



PROJECT PROCESS



2



3Project Process  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

3 4





STATION AREA ANALYSIS



6



7Station Area Analysis  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

TRANSIT
The UTA park-and-ride lot is currently underutilized and pedestrian unfriendly. The 
rail line and adjacent sound wall bisect walking and biking access across the tracks. 
There are no 18-hour active uses adjacent to the station, creating potentially unsafe 
conditions for transit riders.

REDWOOD ROAD
Redwood Road is a barrier between the existing civic center and the future city 
center area due to its auto-oriented character, including infrequent signals, high 
traffi  c volumes, and long pedestrian crossing distances. 

STREET GRID
The existing street grid is incomplete, limiting the amount of traffi  c distributed 
across the site. Due to large industrial parcels and disconnected streets, east–west 
and north–south connectivity is limited to arterial roadways.

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE NETWORK
The existing incomplete street grid limits pedestrian and bicycle routes to high-
speed roadways. These routes are neither comfortable or safe for pedestrians and 
cyclists.

EXISTING PRIVATE SECTOR LAND USE
Existing auto-oriented light industrial uses don’t support a walkable mixed-use city 
center area. 

EXISTING PUBLIC USES
The existing civic center and Veterans Memorial Park are located across Redwood 
Road and are oriented away from the UTA TRAX station, reducing walking and bik-
ing access to these destinations.

REAL ESTATE MARKET
There are few comparable examples of high-density mix-use TOD city centers in 
the region.

PHASING AND FINANCING
Due to the size of the Jordan School District site within the city center RDA, limited 
tax increment is available for public projects.



8



9Station Area Analysis  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

CITY OF WEST JORDAN GENERAL PLAN
The 2012 General Plan outlines goals and policies for the City Center and Neighbor-
hood TSOD Land Use designation. This designation applies to two areas within the 
project area boundary, one of which is the original West Jordan downtown core. 

This designation encourages the creation a traditional main street or downtown by 
focusing on two goals:
1 Evaluate and update sections of the zoning ordinance and zoning map relating to 

City Center and Neighborhood TSOD Center development.
2 Provide well designed, aesthetically pleasing, and effi  cient city center and neigh-

borhood center areas.

UTA TRANSIT-ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES

The UTA Transit-Oriented Development Guidelines provide a supportive framework 
for planning a successful station area. The following guidelines are particularly 
relevant to the City Center Station Area Plan.

Short to Medium Block Lengths
1.1 Blocks lengths shall not be longer than 350 feet in length in any direction and a 

pedestrian corridor shall be provided no less than every 250 feet.

Grid-Like Street Networks
1.2 Street networks shall be designed to create a grid-like street network.

Park-and-Ride
4.2 Site designs shall preserve or contemplate full replacement of park-and-ride stalls, 

unless otherwise directed by UTA staff .
4.3 Parking structures are highly encouraged and shall be used whenever feasible.
4.4 The location of park-and-ride stalls shall not exceed 1000 feet walking distance 

from the center of the platform to the closest stall.

REDEVELOPMENT SUPPORT

Meetings with City staff , elected offi  cials, the Jordan School District, and other key 
stakeholders confi rmed strong support for the development of the City Center Sta-
tion Area Plan. There is also developer interest in the West Jordan city center area.

SHORT-TERM REDEVELOPMENT SITES
Properties owned by the Jordan School District and UTA properties have strong 
potential for redevelopment and these agencies are willing partners in the process.

REDWOOD ROAD
Redwood Road provides signifi cant drive-by exposure for the city center area, aver-
aging over 40,000 average daily trips. Studies such as the Redwood Road Corridor 
Master Plan include recommendations and strategies for improving street condi-
tions through planned beautifi cation and multi-modal improvements.

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE NETWORK
The Jordan River Trail is a regional recreational walking and biking amenity. The 
1300 South bike lane and the Rail Trails are planned future recreational amenities.

PREMIUM TRANSIT
The existing TRAX Red Line and bus service in the city center area provide transit 
options for commuters. The potential Redwood Corridor BRT may further expand 
transit options available within the city center.

EXISTING PRIVATE SECTOR LAND USE
Multiple large parcels with underutilized parking lots and a worn character make 
the area ripe for redevelopment.

EXISTING PUBLIC USES
Existing civic uses and recreational facilities at Veterans Memorial Park provide a 
strong hub to attract visitors and employees.



10



11Station Area Analysis  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

CITY CENTER
A city center hub is proposed approximately a quarter-mile north of the station in 
order to realize a full radius of potential future development.

OPEN SPACE LINKS
Open space links connect residents and visitors to regional destinations with safe, 
convenient, and direct pedestrian and bicycle routes.

• The east–west open space link connects the Veterans Memorial Park and West 
Jordan Parks and Recreation, Gardner Village TRAX Station, and the Jordan 
River Trail.

• The north–south open space link connects the city center hub to the station 
and the neighborhood south of the TRAX line.

INWARD ORIENTATION
Development along the open space links should focus inwards, to support planned 
retail and to commercial development with strong pedestrian and bicycle facilities.

ROADWAY LINK
A proposed extension of 7900 South, connecting Redwood Road to 1300 West, will 
increase trips along this roadway, supporting planned retail and commercial uses 
while also allieviating congestion on parallel routes.



12



13Station Area Analysis  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

PARK BLOCKS
Linear park blocks create a central east–west spine, or main street, connecting 
recreation uses. Park blocks orient residents and visitors to the city center area and 
establish a neighborhood character that is vibrant, welcoming, and easy to navi-
gate.

Park blocks are approximately 130 feet wide with adjacent streets. Each direction of 
the proposed couplet includes:

• One 12-foot sidewalk adjacent to the building frontage.
• One 10-foot parking lane adjacent to the building frontage.
• One 14-foot travel lane.

DEVELOPMENT PARCELS
The redevelopment concept envisions a new fi ne-grained grid, based on UTA Tran-
sit-Oriented Development Guidelines, that creates a pattern of walkable blocks.

PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY
An interconnected network of streets ensures that trips to and from the station are 
short, direct, and easy for all modes to navigate. New public rights-of-way are 60-
feet wide and includes:

• Two 12-foot sidewalks.
• Two 8-foot parking lanes.
• Two 10-foot travel lanes.

STATION PROMENADE
The station promenade strengthens the north–south pedestrian and bicycle 
connection between the park blocks and the West Jordan City Center Station and 
includes:

• One 12-foot sidewalk.
• One 20-foot promenade.
• Two 8-foot parking lanes.
• Two 10-foot travel lanes.

STATION SQUARE
The station square adjacent to the West Jordan City Center Station establishes a 
sense of place and creates a sense of arrival for commuters, visitors, and residents. 
This square may accommodate a bike sharing station, bus and transit operator 
facilities, and other transit-supportive uses that promote a safe, active, and com-
fortable station area.

NEIGHBORHOOD PARK
The neighborhood park located south of the transit station creates a focal point 
and sense of place for neighborhood residents. The neighborhood park is connect-
ed to the station platform by the station promenade.



14



15Station Area Analysis  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

EXISTING SIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS
Existing signals are located at the intersections of:

• Redwood Road and 7800 South 
• Redwood Road and 8020 South

NEW INTERSECTIONS
Both 3/4 access and signalized intersection concepts should been explored for the 
intersections of:

• Redwood Road and 7900 South roadway link
• 7800 South and New Street (west of 1530 West)
• 7800 South and 1530 West
• 1300 West and 7900 South



16



17Station Area Analysis  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

LONG-TERM TRAFFIC SIGNAL
A traffi  c signal at the intersection of Redwood Road and the proposed 7900 South 
roadway link is crucial to successful future development. Providing pedestrian, bi-
cycle, and auto traffi  c access to West Jordan’s main street will support thriving retail 
and commercial uses along the corridor.

This traffi  c signal would also allievate growing congestion on 7800 South, a parallel 
route to the north, and would improve access to the West Jordan Fire Department.

POTENTIAL ROUNDABOUT
A roundabout at the proposed 7900 South roadway link and the promenade 
street, similar to the 8020 South roundabout design in the West Jordan civic center, 
should be further investigated and could be benefi cial to the proposed signalized 
intersection. A roundabout design that prioritizes pedestrian and bicycle facilities is 
recommended in order to better connect with the station promenade to the south. 
The design of the roundabout should not impact the function of the square, or 
degrade walking and biking access.





LONG-TERM REDEVELOPMENT 
30-Year Buildout



20



21Long-Term Redevelopment | 30-Year Buildout  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

30-YEAR BUILDOUT
The long-term redevelopment concept illustrates a thirty-year city center area 
vision and includes a range of uses.

MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING
Housing uses are located around the TRAX station area, in the center of the long-
term redevelopment area and on blocks west of Redwood Road and north of 8200 
South. A variety of housing typologies such as higher-density aff ordable and mar-
ket-rate apartments, senior housing, condominium, and townhome development 
are all encouraged within the initial phase to ensure that a diverse population of 
residents is served. 

OFFICE
Offi  ce uses are located near the corner of Redwood Road and 7800 South to cap-
ture optimal visibility and drive-by traffi  c.

RESEARCH OFFICE PARK
Research offi  ce park uses are located north and south of the park blocks, near the 
intersection of 7900 South and 1300 West, to capture visibility and drive-by traffi  c.

RETAIL
Locating the retail anchor and potential street-oriented shops off  Redwood Road 
provides high drive-by visibility and convenient access to encourage the devel-
opment of a retail main street. Future retail uses, such as shops and restaurants, 
should be located within the ground fl oors of buildings off  the proposed 7900 
South roadway link.

The retail anchor should be visible and accessible from Redwood Road. The main 
entrances should be located directly across from the parking structure to encour-
age easy access for customers. Retail buildings should have transparent windows, 
canopies, and include entrances off  the proposed 7900 South roadway link.

COMMERCIAL
Commercial uses should be located along the promenade street within the ground 
fl oor of multi-family buildings and the parking structure. Ground fl oor commercial 
buildings should have transparent windows, canopies, and include entrances off  
the promenade street. 

Commercial uses should also be located near the intersection of 7800 South and 
1300 West to capture visibility and drive-by traffi  c.

PARKING STRUCTURE
Locating a parking structure at the intersection of Redwood Road and 8020 South 
provides quick and convenient auto access and ample parking for commuters and 
customers alike.

Parking garage buildings should conceal their parking use by replicating building 
elements along the façade such as windows, columns, and vertical circulation 
and use materials similar to existing and proposed development. Parking garages 
should not have sloped fl oors articulated in the facade.





SHORT-TERM REDEVELOPMENT 
Phase 1: 10-Year Buildout



24



Short-Term Redevelopment | Phase 1: 10-Year Buildout  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

PHASE 1: 10-YEAR BUILDOUT
The phase 1 redevelopment concept illustrates a fi ve- to ten-year city center area 
vision and includes a range of uses.

The following property owners will be impacted in the short-term:
• Jordan School District
• Sundborn LLC 
• Utah Transit Authority
• First Security Bank of Utah
• Betos Mexican Food LLC
• Lube Development LC
• Go Go Ventures LLC
• Plaza America at 78th





SHORT-TERM REDEVELOPMENT 
Intial Phase 1a: 5-Year Buildout



28



29Short-Term Redevelopment | Initial Phase 1a: 5-Year Buildout  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

INITIAL PHASE 1A 5-YEAR BUILDOUT
The Initial Phase 1a redevelopment concept includes the following projects:

• City Center Square: The fi rst park block immediately east of Redwood Road.
• Station Promenade: Between the city center square and the City Center Sta-

tion.
• Station Square: Located adjacent to the City Center Station.
• Multi-Family Housing: Located on the UTA property immediately adjacent to 

the City Center Station.
• Parking Garage and Ground Floor Commercial: Located on the Sundborn 

property.
• Retail Anchor and Shops: Located on the Jordan School District property, adja-

cent to the city center square.

PROPERTY IMPACTS
The following properties will be impacted in the Initial Phase 1a:

• Jordan School District
• Sundborn LLC 
• Utah Transit Authority

Jordan School District
The Jordan School District Auxiliary Services Building and adjacent access routes to 
the building will not be impacted during the initial phase.

Jordan School District’s parking uses along Redwood Road will be impacted. Fur-
ther discussion between the City and the Jordan School District are necessary.



30



31Short-Term Redevelopment | Initial Phase 1a: 5-Year Buildout  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   



32



VIT UT LAUT
Tat acepre veles ipsam volumqu ibuscium fugia quo toremquunt qui nos dolup-
tisciis quaeperunt modis et a que nectatem andiae explaborem aut lia sed eos quas 
estectum quia dolo con comnis re et rent latem latibusdae. Qui aut viti tem iunt la 
volenisquat latur magnam que pelesciis alignistiam elestibus, ommodig natque 
pliquisque volorepro velendes excersp eratus dolupta taspid et minciis dolorro tet 
offi  ciaero berovid untenda verunt, suntiis aut qui re dus modisci pienis ma dollume 
nihit, omnihilique quatur?
Offi  cit quo consend ellorer uptaquis delisse quatempora non net quatum rem lat-
enimi, omnia nonserum rem erepelit quiatiunte voloreici aut qui quaspelia volupti 
onsecus sundanda quat ulpa dipsam, con cori sit maxim que ma nemperferrum 
accuptur, que a doluptatum accat ium repra natius endia aciet laccumque comnisit 
et doluptas dolum rest resenditis exerum, cust poria excerumetus autatis necusti 
dolorrorro dolore voluptae nonet omnimaio offi  ciistis eum ut ut quae mi, comni-
hictio. Ut essinte corpore con cum restemperum et faccusdam, odis aut asperro 
vitibus molor restrum facearc ienistiam eum, ut modis molut ex eum doluptatus 
mo vellaudit, tem illorum sum arum quassedia denihiliqui dolut il modio velentum 
ea inis etus pa quiat laccuptatium lateceaque laut faccae ea aut quatis maionet 
faccus corio et vent velis utem et aut laut vendic tem eos dendipicius autatius, quis 
prerrunt alibus aliquatur? Quiduscia plique della dolorib usciis evelit el iur molor 
aut eni in corio cone pre nonsequi optur, nieneca tquiae num evellaut ex entet et id 
maio et que nime et, consequ atiatin prae que es ab id ma qui untem que es ident 
illorenistis ad expligenest hiliquosam quod ut eos eaquamus arum harum quid que 
volupic taspiti te 

parumqui volupti tecum excersp erumquae volorem ut quis sequi ommodit ut 
untur atate vent abo. Ut qui omni cum labo. Nequiaspis susa qui omnis volor simaio 
vollis nihit et perehenimi, que plit, sum quiam quod que dit eum arum rerum 
ventem velestrum auditati voluptamus, aperspelicid et occus, quia qui consed que 
natecearibus asimaxi maxime.

33Short-Term Redevelopment | Initial Phase 1a: 5-Year Buildout  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   





BUSINESS CASE



Development Program Assessed Value
Block Dwelling Density Retail or Office Residential Commercial Office Total

Units (du/ac) Commercial
SF

5 Year
Plaza $0 $0
Retail 38,000 $12,350,000 $12,350,000
ROW $0 $0
Parking Str. $0 $0
Parking Str. 10,000 $3,250,000 $3,250,000
PS Easement $0 $0
ROW $0 $0
MF 1 245 182 $26,950,000 $0 $26,950,000
MF 2 A 12 35 $1,320,000 $0 $1,320,000
MF 2 B 22 27 $2,420,000 $0 $2,420,000
MF 3 205 176 $22,550,000 $0 $22,550,000
ROW $0 $0
Other $0 $0

Subotal 484 48,000 0 $53,240,000 $15,600,000 $0 $68,840,000
10 Year

Multifamily 716 93 40,000 $78,760,000 $13,000,000 $0 $91,760,000
ROW
Park
Office 35,000
Office 35,000 $0 $11,375,000 $11,375,000

Subotal 716 40,000 70,000 $78,760,000 $13,000,000 $11,375,000 $103,135,000
Total 1,200 88,000 70,000 $132,000,000 $28,600,000 $11,375,000 $171,975,000

$68,840,000

$103,135,000
$171,975,000

Subotal 484 48,000 0 $53,240,000 $15,600,000 $0

Subotal 716 40,000 70,000 $78,760,000 $13,000,000 $11,375,000
Total 1,200 88,000 70,000 $132,000,000 $28,600,000 $11,375,000



37Business Case  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   



38

Revenue to
(Seller) City Developer Total
Jordan SD $4,992,696 $7,818,300 $12,810,996
Private Owners $0 $4,440,000 $4,440,000
Sundborn $2,435,600 $0 $2,435,600
City $0 $939,250 $939,250
UTA $0 $2,708,083 $2,708,083 Converted to Equity
Total $7,428,296 $15,905,633 $23,333,929

          Cost to (Buyer)



39Business Case  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

City Costs (Uses of Funds)

Land Acquisitions and Options
Jordan School District $4,992,696
Private Property Owners $2,435,600
GSA Relocation $0
Contingency 20% $1,485,659
Subtotal $8,913,955

Hard Costs of Construction
Grading and Site Prep $0
Roads $7,300,000
Parks and Plazas $3,850,000
Parking Structure $9,540,000
Off Site Infrastructure (e.g., Redwood Rd.) $0
Signage $0
Off Site Paths, Trails $0
Soft Costs 25% $5,172,500
Contingency 20% $4,138,000
Subtotal $30,000,500

Transfer to Jordan SD for New Buildings $21,111,830
Total $60,026,285

City Revenues (Sources of Funds)

Land Sales $0
Reimbursements for Parking Structure

UTA: Hard Costs $6,480,000
UTA: Soft Costs and Contingency 45% $2,916,000
Retail Developers $939,250
Subtotal $10,335,250

Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Available for Projects $21,128,315
Admin and Housing Set Aside $2,031,898
Subtotal $23,160,213

Impact Fees
Parks $2,997,600
Roads (Assume all are vested w/site) $0
Utilities, Other $2,628,103
Subtotal $5,625,703

Retail Sales Tax $3,962,971
Other

Grants $250,000
Chamber of Commerce $100,000
Philanthropic $100,000
Crowd Funding $50,000
Other $0
Subtotal $500,000

City General Fund or Other $16,442,148
Total $60,026,285

Total $60,026,285

Total $60,026,285



40

Revenues
Property Taxes $6,877,174
Land Sales (to Developers and City) $12,810,996
Total Revenue $19,688,170

Costs
New Auxiliary Services Office Space $21,000,000
Warehouse Acquisition and Renovation $18,900,000
Moving Cost $900,000
Total $40,800,000

Gap - Covered by City or Other $21,111,830Gap - Covered by City or Other $21,111,830



41Business Case  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

Relocation of Auxiliary Services Offices and Warehouse
Auxiliary Services: Office Space

PSF Total
Land (Owned by Jordan SD) $0
Site Prep and Parking Area (Existing) $0
Administrative & Classroom Area (SF) 60,000                
Core and Shell: Hard Cost $214 $12,814,909
Tenant Improvements $40 $2,400,000
Base Cost $15,214,909
Soft Costs 25% $3,203,727
Contingency 20% $2,562,982
Total $20,981,618

$350
Warehouse

PSF Total
Warehouse Building Area 120,000              
Building Acquisition $100 $12,000,000
Building Improvements $20 $2,400,000
Base Cost $14,400,000
Soft Costs 15% $1,922,236
Contingency 20% $2,562,982
Total $18,885,218

Moving Cost
PSF Total

Total Area (SF) 180,000              
Moving Cost and Miscelleneous $5 $900,000

Total $18,885,218

Total $20,981,618



42

UTA Summary
Costs: Parking Structure

UTA: Hard Costs $6,480,000
UTA: Soft Costs and Contingency $2,916,000
Total $9,396,000

Revenues
Sales Tax Receipts $1,426,670
Joint Venture Equity (NPV) $3,907,791
Additional Riders and Transit Fares Not calculated
Total $5,334,460

Total $9,396,000

Total $5,334,460



43Business Case  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•





TRANSPORTATION RECOMMENDATIONS



46



47Transportation Recommendations  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

Through this planning process the project team has made recommendations to 
increase the grid network and overall connectivity within the study area in order to 
enhance accessibility, enhance commercial retail store frontage and provide ade-
quate access to the proposed developments. As part of this plan, the project team 
has also recommended installing new signals on Redwood Road at 7900 South, 
and either 7800 South and 1530 West or 7800 South and approximately 1590 West 
to tie the proposed grid network back to the existing roadways. According to UDOT 
standards, Redwood Road is an Access Category 5 roadway with a minimal signal 
spacing of 2,640 feet, and a minimum Right-In-Right-Out driveway spacing of 660 
feet. The proposed signal is roughly 700 feet from the existing signal at 8020 South 
and 7800 South. 

On February 7th, 2019 the project team met with UDOT representatives to discuss 
the proposed signals and they expressed concern with the signal on Redwood 
specifi cally, stating that because it did not meet their required spacing minimums 
it would need to be examined in greater depth outside of this study. 

The 2005 Corridor Agreement for Redwood Road from 6720 South to 9400 South 
was also evaluated and confi rmed that the 7900 South location was not identifi ed 
as a location for a future signal.

The aforementioned information indicates that a full signal at 7900 South is not 
possible at this time based on explicit UDOT standards and direction. However, 
there are long and short term recommendations outlined in the following pages 
that are intended to provide guidance around this topic moving forward.



48



49Transportation Recommendations  |   West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan   

SHORT-TERM RECOMMENDATIONS
A proposed 3/4 unsignalized intersection (allowing for all movements aside from 
anything on the proposed eastern leg of the intersection) at 7900 South is a short-
term recommendation. This type of intersection was called out in the February 7th 
UDOT meeting as acceptable by UDOT staff  in the immediate term. This type of 
intersection is also acceptable by the project team.

LONG-TERM RECOMMENDATIONS
In the long term, it is recommended that West Jordan City work with UDOT to 
evaluate a potential full signal at 7900 South – as a new signal without replacing or 
exchanging any other signal. The City may determine that a full signal is necessary 
to accommodate the fl ow of traffi  c into and out of the development, and to help 
pedestrian access and connectivity into the area. This type of evaluation could be 
a separate study, or it could potentially be an evaluation and update to the 2005 
Corridor Agreement for this area – due to the substantial proposed development. 
It should be noted that none of UDOT’s current Access Management Category 
descriptions allow for signal spacing of less than 1,320 feet. Future study may not 
recommend placement of a signal at this location. 

Evaluation of other alternatives at this intersection that do not involve a signal but 
could have a desired eff ect is recommended. For example, potentially there is an 
opportunity for a pedestrian overpass at this location because of the development 
being proposed in the area and because such a facility may create connections 
to existing and proposed green space in the area. Additionally, this could create a 
comfortable facility for active transportation users while connecting other paths 
and green space while not disrupting vehicular travel along Redwood Road. An-
other facility that could be considered is a Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon (PHB) at this 
intersection. Again, this would help with pedestrian connectivity in the area and 
may be more feasible than a full signal or a pedestrian bridge. 




	2019-0320 Agenda_Board Meeting
	3 Mar 19 Safety Poster
	2019-0313 Minutes_Board_UNAPPROVED
	Financial Report_Board Dashboard February 2019
	Financial Report_February 2019 Financial Statements
	2019.02 Financials as of 3.10.2019
	EX1-1 KEY
	EX1-2 BS
	EX1-3 P&L
	EX1-4 MTD
	EX1-5 YTD
	EX1-6 CAP
	EX1-7 SPR
	EX1-8 SPR
	EX1-9 AR
	EX1-10 Disbursements


	R2019-03-02 Modifying Organizational Structure _final
	R2019-03-02 Proposed Org Chart_Internal DRAFT V1
	Page-1�

	R2019-03-03 Lease Reimbursement_final

	Disbursement_Siemens_over $200K_Summary Sheet
	Disbursement_Siemens_over $200K_Itemized List
	Pre-Procurement_Bridge Inspections_Summary
	Pre-Procurement_Bridge Inspections_RFP
	R2019-03-04  Approving Station Area Plans (Final)
	Ogden Central Station Area Plan
	Midvale TRAX Station Area Plan
	West Jordan City Center Station Area Plan



